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CORPORATE PROFILE

EALTH MANAGEMENT
ASSOCIATES, INC. (NYSE:
HMA) is the premier operator of
acute care, non-urban hospitals

primarily in the southeast and
southwest United States. HMA
focuses on non-urban America
because many of those commu-
nities are underserved medically;
their populations are growing
faster than the national aver-

age, and they offer competitive
advantages when compared to
major urban areas.

MA IS THE TURNAROUND

specialist for non-urban
hospitals. It acquires and then
revitalizes those hospitals that
have a clear demographic need
and high growth potential; are
located primarily in the South-
east and Southwest in growing
communities with populations of
30,000 to 400,000; are located
preferably in states with Certifi-
cate of Need regulations; have
an established physician base,
and are available at reasonable
prices.

HMA's strategqy is to:
o Provide dynamic leadership

o Invest capital to bring hospital
facilities and their equipment
up to the most modem
standards

Health Management Associates, Inc.

o Recruit physicians with sub-
specialties, who then expand
the hospitals’ breadth of
services

o Introduce proven hospital prac-
tices that improve the guality of
care during a patient’s stay and
the utilization of resources.

HIS STRATEGY HAS PROVEN
Textremely successful. Since
1991, HMA has acquired 29
hospitals, increasing its total
hospital count to 43 in 14 states
and its licensed bed count from
1,593 to 5,920. During the same
period, its revenues rose more
than 9-fold to $2.3 billion from
$245 million while net earnings
increased over 20-fold to $246
million from $12 million.

At fiscal year-end 2002, HMA
common stock was owned by
approximately 1,500 sharehold-
ers of record, including several
hundred investor institutions.
More than 3.4 million shares
were owned by employees in
the 401-k plan, which attests to
the confidence HMA employees
have in its management and the
future of the company. m
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Percent

Year ended September 30, 2002 2001 Change
OPERATING DATA
Net patient service revenue $ 2,262,601 $ 1,879,801 + 204
Costs and expenses (including minority interest) 1,856,939 1,558,850 + 191
Income before income taxes 405,662 320,951 + 264
Net Income 946,436 194,978 + 964
Net income per share:

Basic $1.02 $0.80 + 9275

Diluted $0.97 $0.76 + 976
PERFORMANCE DATA
Return on revenue 10.9% 10.4%
Return on average equity 19.0% 17.1%

Percent

September 30, 2002 2001 Change
YEAR-END DATA
Total assets $ 2,364,317 $ 1,941,577 + 218
Working capital 499,043 377,144 + 19
Short-term debt 7,609 6,752 + 127
Long-term debt 650,159 498,990 + 51.6
Shareholders’ equity 1,346,759 1,253,649 + 74
Book value per common share $ 5.65 $ 5.11 + 106
Number of employees 23,000 21,000 + 95

2002 Annual Report 1
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REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS

WE ACHIEVED UNINTERRUPTED
growth in operating earnings
for the 14th consecutive year—a
consistency unmatched by any
other public hospital company or,
for that matter, most other public
companies.

This performance is the result
of our “Quality First” approach to
every aspect of our hospital oper-
ations, acquisitions and financial
management. It is the strategy that
has driven our growth for the past
quarter century, and it will remain
the constant centerpiece of all our
future strategies.

Compared to the results of
the prior fiscal year, fiscal year
2002s net patient service revenues
increased 20% to $2.3 billion, and
diluted eamings per share before
non-cash, non-recurring charges last
year rose 21% to 97 cents. These
gains in eamings resulted from a
combination of higher revenues and
consistent operations.

Higher revenues reflected the
health care services provided at
the hospitals we acquired in fiscal
2002, as well as a 7.6% increase in
patient service revenues from the
hospitals we owned for at least
one year. Thus, it is the combina-
tion of hospital acquisitions and
the organic growth achieved
after we begin to operate those
hospitals that has guided our pros-
perity year after year.

Underlying these achievements
are the quality upgrades we provide
to our hospitals — in buildings,
equipment, and the dedicated
health care professionals — doctors,
technicians and nurses — that we
recruit each year.

In this regard, we want to
convey our deep appreciation this
year to our nurses and recognize
their contributions to HMA. Nurses
are often the first contact our
hospitals make with a patient, and
our nurses are intimately involved
with each patient on a daily and
hourly basis.

Hospital Operations

On a year-to-year same hospital
comparative basis, patient reve-
nues, occupancy levels, admissions
and the number of surgeries per-
formed all posted healthy gains.

The hospitals we acquired in
fiscal year 2002 accelerated our
growth. The major categories by
which we measure our hospitals’
progress recorded double digit
growth in fiscal 2002.

Financial Matters

Last year we invested $116 mil-
lion in facility upgrades and state-
of-the-art medical equioment. This
sum was approximately one-third
of our continually expanding
cash flow from operations. It has
enaoled us to make multi-mitlion
dollar improvements to our hospi-
tals each year without rescrting to
borrowed funds.

We purchased our headquarters
office building in Naples, FL. It
gives us the space we need to ac-
commodate staff growth to man-
age our expanding hospital base.

We completed an offering of
senior subordinated notes last
January, netting the company
$277 million in proceeds. It will
enable us to readily facilitate
our acquisition strategy and
simultaneously reduce interest
expense.

We generated hospital oper-
ating margins that were 500 to 600
basis points higher than our peers,
which has made HMA a self-fund-
ing growth company.

We recently instituted a quar-
terly cash dividend policy, paying
Q cents per share per quarter. The
initial payment was made on De-
cember 2, 2002, to shareholders
of record on November 8, 2002.

Last February, your Board of
Directors authcrized the purchase
of up to 5 million shares of HMA
common stock. We completed
that purchase last August. The
shares were added to our treasury




for acquisitions and the exercise of
stock options.

We received preliminary ap-
proval from the State of Florida
to build the Collier Regional
Medical Center to be located
near our corporate headquarters
in Naples. The approval is the first
step in building our new hospital
in Collier County, which is among
the fastest growing counties in the
nation.

Independent Appraisals 2002
Standard & Poors put HMA in
its S&P 500 index. It also upgraded

our debt rating to “A-", which is
the highest credit rating within the
hospital industry.

Fortune magazine picked HMA
stock as one of its top 40 stocks
(among 4,000 companies sur-
veyed) to outperform the stock
market in 2003. In addition, forbes
magazine named us to its Platinum
400, its list of the best companies
in America based on profitability,
growth and return on capital and
revenues.

National Issues

Physicians nationwide are
finding it increasingly difficult to
obtain malpractice insurance.
Excessive jury awards have caused
some insurance carriers to stop
underwriting this risk, and others
have increased premiums so
high that doctors are leaving the
medical field.

Clearly, the time has come for
major tort reform. HMA is working
with legislators and others to bring
about changes that will enable
physicians to focus on medicine,
relieved of the burden of exces-
Sive Insurance costs.

A nationwide shortage of
nurses threatens many hospitals.
To address this, we have instituted
a successful and innovative
program called “Nurse Select” that
is already attracting nurses to our
hospitals in increasing numbers.

HMA—25 vears of growth,
consistency and quality

William J. Schoen, Chairman (left), with Joseph V. Vumbacco, President and CEO

Outiook

We believe that HMA is better
positioned now for accelerated
growth than at any other time in its
25-year history.

With 43 hospitals, we have at-
tained a critical mass that lends it-
self to greater economies of scale.

Qur strong financial base gives
us the capital to pursue attractive
hospitals that simply lack capital
for needed modemization.

Further, we are examining
other acquisition opportunities,
including non-uroan areas in the
West and central Midwest, thus
expanding our geographic focus.

Finally, many “baby boomers”
have begun to reach retirement
age and relocate into our sunbelt
markets. They are now begin-
ning to experience the health
problems associated with aging,
which should lead to substantially
increased health care demand.

In closing, we would like
to extend our appreciation

to our physicians, nurses and
other health care professionals.
Their unwavering dedication to
medicine has transformed us
during the past 25 years from

a fledgling health care entity to
the largest and most successful
hospital health care provider in
non-uroan America.

Sincerely,
William J. Schoen, Chairman

ot

Joseph V. Vumbacco,
President and CEO

Naples, Florida
December 12, 2002
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INNOVATION

Y THE TIME REPORTS OF A

nationwide shortage of
nurses reached a crescendo
in the news media, HMA had
already addressed this issue
by thinking “outside the box.”
Instead of simply trying to hire
temporary nurses to fill peak de-
mand periods, which can affect
guality, HMA launched “Nurse
Select”, an in-house nurse staff-
ing agency. It competes directly
with existing labor agencies on
base pay and flexible sched-
uling. Nurse Select facilitates the
assignment of nurses to meet the
fluctuating labor needs of HMA
hospitals that are within driving
distance of one ancther.

In Nurse Select, RNs accept a
higher base pay without benefits
and agree to work at more than
one HMA facility.

Since its inception last June,
we have employed several
hundred RNs in our Nurse Select
markets. Going forward, we
expect to employ as many as 200
additional nurses in this program.

in addition to the Nurse
Select program, we have
completed several international
recruiting trips to the Philippines,
Puerto Rico and India. During
fiscal year 2003, we expect to
recruit and place an additional
200 RNs as a result of this effort.
With 43 hospitals in 14 states,
we are readily able to place
candidates in locations that meet
their personal preferences and
our hospitals’ needs.

Regardliess, we perceive nurs-
ing as a long-term investment.
Thus, our primary strategy is to
continue to enhance the patient-
care environment so our nurses
remain with us for the fong-term,
regardless of other hospitals’
predatory tactics.

In 2002, we invested con-
siderable sums to improve
nurses’ working conditions with
enhanced orientation, education
and more flexible scheduling.

<« This report honors the dedicated
and caring nurses that staff our 43
hospitals.

2002 Annual Report
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QUALITY FIRST-ALWAYS
WHILE THE PURSUIT OF QUALITY

in recruiting and retaining
health care professionals, outfitting
facilities, or building new hospi-
tals undeniably costs more at the
outset, the payback for the com-
munity is immeasurable.

The common denominator in
our superlative growth is an abso-
lute insistence on outstanding
quality in everything we do.

When patients experience the
superior health care they receive at
an HMA hospital, they are reluctant
to accept less. This is one of the
reasons why our patient encoun-
ters keep rising in each of our mar-
kets. Patients who once got their
health care elsewhere, now get
their health care close to home.

More than anything else, it is
the quality element in all HMA
operations that has produced our
consistent growth record for the
past 25 vears. m

HOSPITAL OPERATIONS—2002
Fiscal year 2002 revenues at
hospitals we operated for at
least 12 months (same hospitals)
increased 7.6% to nearly $2
billion. Occupancy levels rose
to 47.5% from 46.0%; patient
days increased 2.5% to 844,000,
adjusted admissions gained 4% to
998,000, and surgeries performed
increased by nearly 6,000 to
177,000.

6 Health Management Associates, Inc.

This same hospital growth
last year was primarily the result
of needed expansions to our
emergency rooms and successful
physician recruiting.

Impact of Acquired Hospitals

Figures for the full year are even
more impressive when the results
of our recently-acquired hospitals
are added to the mix.

Total corporate revenues
gained 20% to $2.3 biltion.
Inpatient days passed the one
million mark for the first time in
our 95-year history, rising 13.6%;
adjusted admissions increased
18% to 344,000, and surgeries
rose 16.6% to 202,000, a gain of
nearly 29,000 surgeries during
fiscal 2002.

During the past year, our net
revenue was comprised of 38%
Medicare, 9% Medicaid, 8%
private pay, and 45% commercial
insurance and other sources.

inasmuch as a portion of our
private pay and commercial in-
surance patients includes senior
citizens, it becomes apparent that
HMA hospitals provide a substan-
tial amount of care to the elderly.
This is because many HMA hos-
pitals are located in the Sunbelt
where retired people congregate.

Consistency

Consistent revenue growth is
an HMA goal that has been met by
HMA's same hospital facilities for
the past 56 consecutive quarters.

< The 172-bed Mesquite
Community Hospital—one
of two hospitals HMA
acquired last year in
Mesquite, Texas.

HMA invested $3.7
million within months
of their acquisition to
renovate both hospitals
and add much needed
state-of-the-art medical
equipment.

These capital expen-
ditures helped to increase
post-acquisition admis-
sions by 13 percent.
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This remarkable achievermnent
ilfustrates not only the efficacy of
the operating strategies we em-
ploy following each acquisition,
but also the due diligence we
perform and careful selections we
make when acquiring hospitals.

Best Balance Sheet in the Industry

Our fourteen consecutive years
of uninterrupted revenue and earn-
ings growth is a record unmatched
in the health care industry.

The by-product of consistently
higher earnings is increasing inter
nally generated cash flow. And it

is our superior cash flow, year after
year, that generates the funds for
acquisitions, physician recruiting
and capital expenditures, which
are key components of our growth
strategy.

O UR QUTSTANDING CASH FLOW
reduces our borrowing
needs, which are substantially less
than those of our competitors. Our
debt-to-total capitalization was
33% at fiscal year-end, roughly half
the industry level, which gives us
competitive flexibility, should the
need arise.

deen's Pavilion

A The Women'’s Pavilion at the Riverview Regional Medical Center in Gadsden,
AL. HMA makes major investments each year to enlarge and expand its health
care facilities, opening many new centers devoted exclusively for women. Its
marketing studies indicate that women are usually the final decision makers when
it comes to choosing a hospital for their families.

In addition, our strong talance
sheet aids our acquisition efforts.
No acquisition proposal is con-
ditioned on our obtaining financ-
ing. We have in place the tender,
technology, talent, and systems
to efficiently acquire and upgrade
hospitals. These fundamentals
enable us to revitalize ailing hos-
pitals quickly, thereby providing
substantially improved health care
within the first year of acquisition.

Thus, the combination of
operational excellence and a
strong balance sheet distances us
from our competitors. m

ACQUISITIONS—2002

We acquired five hospitals last
year. They included the 88-bed
Lehigh Regional Medical Center
in Lehigh Acres, Florida; the 85-
bed Jamestown Regional Medical
Center in Jamestown, Tennessee;
the 129-bed Santa Rosa Medical
Center in Milton, Florida; and two
hospitals in Mesquite, Texas: the
176-bed Medical Center of Mes-
quite, and the 172-bed Mesquite
Community Hospital. These five
acquisitions increased our total
bed count by 650 to 5,920.

Each hospital met our acquisi-
tion criteria—growing, non-uroan
communities with demosgraphics
that indicated an unfuifilled health
care need.

Pricing for these hospitals
was in line with our criteria that
requires a cash-on-cash return in
four years or less.

Rapid Improvement

Subseqguent to their joining the
HMA family, the five acquisitions
posted significant gains in
patient volumes and admissicns,
particutarly the two Mesquite, Texas
hospitals.

AT THE MESQUITE HOSPITALS, POST
acquisition admissions gained
13% and ER visits rose 6%.

By changing the atmosphere in
Mesquite to a highly professional
cooperative relationship, operat-
ing efficiencies increased at both
hospitals, allowing for greater
capital investment—all within less
than a year. m

9002 Annual Report 7




° Medical Center of Mesquite
and Mesquite Community Hos-
pital, Mesquite, TX. A total of
$3.7 million for both hospitals

for renovations and purchase of
sophisticated medical equipment.
These expenditures were made in
the first six months following their
acquisition.

* River Oaks Hospital, Flowood,
MS. $5 million for state-of-the-art
medical technology. Included
were purchases of a GE Vivid
Seven cardiac ultrasound unit, a
GE Case 8000 stress test unit, and
a Digital Holter Monitoring system.
In addition, this hospital received
an ECHO PAC digital physician
reading station for echocardiology
and the GE Muse System, which
enables cardiologists to elec-
tronically retrieve the results of a
patient’s previous cardiac tests for
comparison, which is crucial for
cardiac diagnosis.

* Upstate Carolina Medical
Center, Gaffney, SC. $6 million

to construct and equip a 12,000
square foot addition to its current
3,500 square foot ER facility. The
expansion was necessitated by a
rapidly expanding patient load.

N

* Spring Hill Regional Hospital,
4 A sizable portion of HMA’s capital expenditures each year is made to equip Spring Hill, FL. $4.5 million for an
its intensive care units with the very finest in patient monitoring systems. These ER expansion, a necnatal ICU unit
upgrades enable staff physicians to perform more sophisticated surgeries. This  and correspending equioment
is one factor in reducing the number of patients that journey to distant cities for additions.

health care.

2002 CAPITAL INVESTMENTS CASH FLOWS FROM STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
During fiscal 2002, we invested OPERATIONS ($ in billions)

$116 million in our hospitals for (8 in millions) 8354

physical plant expansions and ‘Q

equipment upgrades. Upgrading 99 | |

hospitals are essential to enhancing
quality of care and providing
physicians with the necessary tools
to treat their patients in their own
community. The following is a brief
summary of some of these capital
expenditures:

and adding equipment in our I
|

8  Health Management Associates, Inc.




A HMA hospitals are predominantly located in the sunbelt areas of the Southeast
and Southwest, attractive areas for retirees. This aging population, which will
grow substantially as the “baby boomer” generation begins to retire, requires
progressively greater amounts of health care each year.

¢ Charlotte Regional Medical
Center, Punta Gorda, FL. $3.5 mil-
lion to build a 13-bed addition, a
special procedures laboratory, and
to purchase & new nuclear medi-
Cine camera.

o Community Hospital of
Lancaster, Lancaster, PA. $3.7
million to purchase land for a
replacement hospital and install a
variety of state-of-the-art medical
equipment.

» Central Mississippi Medical
Center, Jackson, MS. Opened a
47,000 square foot medical office
building, which is adjacent to

the hospital. It has enabled that
hospital to bring in additional
physician specialists that were
previously unavailable in its market
area. This building completes the
first phase of a 100,000 square
foot expansion project, which

is expected to be completed in
fiscal year 2003.

Additional investments include
3 GE LightSpeed CT scanner and
two Sechrist 3200 Hyperbaric
Oxygen Chambers for the
hospital's Wound Management
Center.

¢ Heart of Florida Regional
Medical Center, Haines City, FL.
$9 million to renovate and nearly
double the size of its ER facilities,
add 40 acute-care beds to its
current 75-bed capacity, install

a dual-head nuclear camera and
purchase 20 additional acres

of land adjacent to its 40-acre
campus to provide space for
future growth.

¢ Lehigh Regional Medical
Center, Lehigh Acres, FL. Nearly
$3 million for new medical
equipment, which included a
dual-head nuclear medicine
camera, a spiral CT scanner, a
lithotripter and an obstetrical
monitoring system.

Additional funds are earmarked
for fiscal 2003 to renovate its ER
Triage/Registration and Waiting
room, its Radiology Department,
its Medical Surgical/lCU units and
to outfit and equip a full-service
laboratory.

» Rankin Medical Center,
Brandon, MS. $1.4 million to
renovate this hospital’s second
floor and to purchase a Millennium
MG/MC Nuclear Medicine Scanner.
This scanner is able to get precise
images of the heart, lungs, gall
bladder, and bones.

v Emergency departments throughout HMA hospitals are given special
emphasis as they account for about one-half of all patient admissions.

9002 Annual Report 9




A HMA provides its hospitals with an extensive array of modern diagnostic equipment such as the full body MRI scanner
shown above. These devices help physicians detect medical problems at an early stage, which greatly improves a patient’s

chances for a full recovery.

* Lake Norman Regional Medical
Center, Mooresville, NC. $1
million to construct a 4,300 square
foot, ultramodern outpatient
endoscopy center. The center
contains 11 prep and recovery
stations and includes an additional
investment for scopes, cameras
and data processing units.

¢ Midwest Regional Medical
Center, Midwest City, OK.
Approximately $1 million to
expand this hospital’'s Heart
Pavilion. The expansion added 20
monitored telemetry beds and an
8-bed cardiac cath recovery area.

In addition, the hospital
purchased a Newton Unloader
for its physical rehabilitation
department and installed an Image
Checker, which assists radiologists
in detecting hard-to-see cancers
upon additional review of a
mammogram.

10 Health Management Associates, Inc.

¢ Santa Rosa Medical Center,
Milton, FL. $2 million for extensive
renovations and new equioment.

The hospital also broke ground
for the construction of a 40,000
square foot medical office build-
ing adjacent to the hospital.

* Riley Hospital, Meridian,

MS. $1.6 million to cpen and
outfit a 6,000 square foot, 11-
room addition to its emergency
department.

* | ge Regional Medical Center,
Pennington Gap, VA. More than $1
million for a major renovation of its
ER facilities and the purchase of a
GE LightSpeed CT scanner.

* Franklin Regional Medical
Center, Louisburg, NC. Opened
a new, state-of-the-art physical
therapy unit. It was outfitted
with more than $100,000 in
rehabilitation equipment,
including an elliptical trainer,

stationary bicycles, treadmills and
Nautilus weight equipment.

The new center is one of the
best hi-tech centers in the region.
It is @ boon to patients needing a
multitude of therapies, such as car-
diovascular or occupational rehab.
This service is now available in
their community, and patients no
longer have to travel many miles to
a large city to get this specialized
treatment.

* Davis Regional Medical Center,
Statesville, NC. In excess of
$400,000 to create a digital
fluoroscopy center within this
hospital’s radiolcgy department.
The unit is totally digital, which
reduces examination times and
produces higher resolution
images. With better images, earlier
diagnoses can be made, thereby
providing better health care to the
community. The digital images can
be transmitted to other medical
specialists in Statesville, the State




of North Caroling, or elsewhere in
the entire nation, if the need arises.

In addition, this hospital was
also equipped with a new GE 800
T Senograph Mammography unit at
a cost of approximately $70,000.

¢ Sebastian River Medical
Center, Sebastian, FL. $650,000 for
the purchase of a GE LightSpeed
CT scanner. It is the only such
scanner available from Jupiter, FL
to Orlando, FL.

» Highlands Regional Medical
Center, Sebring, FL, and Paul B.
Hall Regional Medical Center,
Paintsvile, KY. $1.3 million to equip
both hospitals with state-of-the-art
CT scanners.

HE COMPANY’S CAPITAL EXPEN-

ditures budget for fiscal 2003
is targeted at $120 to $125 mil-
lion, with the focus on patient
care equipment and expansion
projects to address capacity
constraints. m

HOSPITAL VALIDATIONS-2002
The superior guality of the
health care services provided at
HMA hospitals is documented
vear after year by independent

third-party evaluations.

¢ The Joint Commission on
Accreditation of Health Care
Organizations (JCAHO) inspected
17 HMA hospitals last year.
Despite more stringent guidelines
adopted by the Commission

for 2002, our surveyed hospitals

<] The healing process can be short-
ened in patients of all ages when they
receive close attention from caring
and dedicated nurses. HMA enables
its nurses to spend more time with
their patients by making substantial
investments in data processing equip-
ment that reduces the time nurses
spend on clerical work.

¥ Upon discharge, patients are

asked to complete a questionnaire
that seeks their opinions about their
hospital-stay experiences. Their
responses are the basis of our entire
Quality Service Management program.
No other data on quality is reviewed
more carefully by senior management.

2002 Annual Report 11
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A Tobroaden the scope of medical services it provides to its communities, HMA
continues to greatly expand its physical facilities for maternity patients.

received an average grade of 92
out of a possible score of 100.

» Our Franklin Regicnal Medical
Center in Louisburg, NC, was ac-
credited by the JCAHO last year
with a score of 95, among the
higher scores awarded last year by
the JCAHO under its new scoring
criteria.

* QOur Charlotte Regional Med-
ical Center in Punta Gorda, FL,
was named one of the Top 100
Cardiac Hospitals in America by
Solucient, Inc. Solucient conducts
independent annual studies that
measure hospitals’ clinical prac-
tices, operations and financial
management.

e The Heart Program at our Medical
Center of Mesquite in Mesquite,
TX, was awarded a five-star

rating by Health Grades, Inc., an
independent rating agency that
measures quality outcomes for
patient encounters at health care
facilities nationwide.

19 Health Management Associates, Inc.

» Our Rankin Medical Center in
Brandon, MS, was named the
best facility for basic life suppont
training in Mississippt and ranked
second for the number of people
it trained in CPR.

¢ The dietary department at our
Franklin Regional Medical Center
was also awarded a perfect score
of 100 by the North Carolina Board
of Health. m

APPRAISALS BY PATIENTS
Although the objective
measurements of independent
rating agencies are extremely
important, we go a step further and
seek the subjective evaluations of
our patients, as well. We want o
know what they think about our
hospitals’ services. Thus, upon their
discharge, they are asked to fill out
a confidential survey that asks them
their opinions aoout everything
from their medical treatment, the
quality time and personal attention
our staff devoted to their concems

to the overall admissions process,
room cleanliness, and the quality of
our food service,

These patient responses are the
basis of our entire Quality Service
Management program, and no
other data on quality is reviewed
more carefully oy top management.

Last year, these surveys, which
are tabulated by a nonaffiliated
organization, reported that
patients rated our hospitals’
services “good or excellent” 96
percent of the time. The results of
these surveys are an important tool
for administrators, physicians and
hospital staff. They are also one of
the many measures that influence
staff compensation. m

HmA ACQUISITION POLICIES

HMA maintains & consistent
standard regarding acquisitions.
We seek respected but capital-
starved hospitals in non-urban
communities of 30,000 to 400,000.
These markets have favorable
demographics and are located at
some distance from competitive
major metropolitan areas. Typically
these communities are located in
Certificate of Need states in the
southeast and southwest United
States.

These regions of the country are
attractive to retirees, who require
more extensive levels of medical
care, the inevitable result of aging.

In recent years, however, HMA
has expanded its scope of inter-
est and has identified qualified
prospects in the West and central
Midwest states.

Al fiscal year-end 2002, HMA
had one acauisition pending and
several others under consideration.
In addition, HMA has identified
approximately 200 hospitals in a
fourteen state area that meet our
acquisition criteria.

Our goal is to acquire 2 to 4
hospitals each year. m

THE ACQUISITION CLIMATE
Opportunities to acquire hos-
pitals are increasing as potential
acquisition hospitals are either
already experiencing a financial
crisis or are approaching one.
Many of their prollems are




centered around declining revenues
caused by patient cutmigration,
and a lack of operational focus.

Patient Outmigration

Outmigration occurs when staff
physicians conclude they can no
longer practice cutting-edge med-
icine at their non-urban community
hospital because its facilities are
either cutdated, inadequate, or
nonexistent.

Conseguently, they have no
choice but to send patients
needing specialized care to
better-equipped, ultramodern
urban hospitals, even though they
may be inconveniently located at
some distance from their patients’
homes.

Outmigration is endemic in
many non-urban communities
because their hospitals have
little access to capital. This has
an enormous negative impact on
revenues, cperating results and
staffing levels.

Operational Issues

Net revenues can shrink signifi-
cantly when internal procedures
for documenting services ren-
dered are cumbersome or inad-
eguate. This can occur in potential
acquisitions most often when sys-
tems are outdated or difficult to use.

A further problem often arises
at the administrative level. Clerical
staffs are frequently overwhelmed
with the complexities in billing
and collecting from insurance

EQUIPMENT CAPITAL

EXPENDITURES
(% in millions) $57

318

companies, Medicare and
Medicaid. As a result, patient
receivables scar, a sizgble
portion remains uncollected, and
operating margins decline as cash
collections falter.

The root cause for these opera-
tional difficulties is usually a lack of
capital—for recruiting physicians
and other staff professionals, for
equipment upgrades, for modermn

operating systems, and for
adequate staff training.

Not-For-Profit Hospitals

The downturn in the national
economy and reverses in stock
market values have seriously
eroded the capital base of many
not-for-profit hospitals. These
hospitals have experienced a
decline in charitable contributions

¥ Modern, well-equipped surgical suites now enable staff physicians to prac-
tice many state-of-the-art surgical procedures in HMA’s non-urban hospitals.
By investing in the latest medical equipment, HMA has been able to attract
many physicians with advanced medical specialties, thereby reversing patient
outmigration, and improving the guality of care.
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4 This modern, well-equipped nurses’ station in HMA's River Oaks Hospital in
Flowood, Mississippi, enables its nursing staff to continuously monitor its patients

from a centralized site.

and a sharp drop in the market
value of those reserves that were
invested in stocks. As a result,
many now lack sufficient capital to
refurbish their facilities, upgrade
their medical equipment, or recruit
physicians with advanced medical
specialties, all of which would
enable them to expand their
services, thereby enhancing their
potential for revenue growth and
an improving financial condition.
Not-for-profit hospitals can
no longer automatically rely on
municipal bond issues to restore
their financial health. Counties are
presently reluctant to authorize the
sale of such bonds because many
are already deep in debt, and
elected officials are loath to add
to the taxpayers’ burden.

ONSEQUENTLY WE FIND MANY

not-for-profit hospitals more
receptive to our acquisition
approach than at any other time in
our 25-year history.

Acquisition Issues

From the viewpoint of a
community that is considering the
sale of its hospital, price is rarely
the sole deciding factor. Many
other sensitive community issues
are involved.

Town leaders worry about the

14 Health Management Associates, Inc.

quality of health care their resi-
dents will receive if they sell their
hospital. They also want to know
how quickly the new owner will
respond to the health care needs
of their community.

Hospital trustees and boards
of directors have deep concerns
about loss of control. Staff physi-
cians, nurses and technicians are
often wary about change.

Elected officials and others fear
employee layoffs will inevitably
occur should the new owners

focus first on costs and concemn
themselves later with improving
health care service levels.

We recognize that the
prospect of change is unsettling
and that community concerns
must be treated with respect
and addressed fairly, openly and
thoroughly. Uniless these issues
are addressed at the outset, no
mutually beneficial acquisition is
possible. m

HMaA's ACQUISITION APPROACH
The compelling differences
HMA brings to a potential
community include a reputation
for integrity and an unboroken,
95-year record for increasing the
quality and breadth of health
care services at our hospitals.
We immediately commit to the
financial resources we will invest
to revitalize the prospective
hospital acquisition, and we
ensure local control of day-to-day
operational decisions.
Fortunately for us, the hospital
industry is a tight-knit community.
There are no secrets. We invite
community leaders, elected
officials, hospital administrators,
financial managers, and physicians
to contact their peers at any
HMA hospital. We are confident
these inquiries will result in highly
pOositive responses.
A major issue is timing. The

¥ Low-stress aquatic facilities are one of the many rehabilitation exercise

programs available at HMA hospitals.




prospective seller wants to know
when promised improvements will
actually take place, or whether the
buyer’s promises are conditioned
on its ability to obtain financing,
either for the purchase of the
hospital or the promised capital
improvements.

AL HMA there is no delay. We
do not have to find financing. We
already have it in hand. At fiscal
year-end 2002, we had cash and
an untapped credit line combined
in excess of half a billion dollars.

In short, we have the capital
to deliver on promises immedi-
ately. This is of great importance
because once prospects decide
to sell, their concerns turn to how
quickly they will see a positive
change within their community. m

POST ACQUISITION STEPS

Within days following an acquisi-
tion, HMA\ introduces its hospital-
proven procedures to revitalize that
hospital and enhance its reputation
within that community. They include:

* A proprietary management infor-
mation system that provides the
hospital management team with
the information it needs to im-
prove the quality and efficiency of
its health care delivery.

¢ Computerized accounting and
tracking systems that bring order to
that hospital’s operations and pro-
mote efficient resource allocation.

e Signature HMA programs
designed to help each hospital
increase the level of quality in its
health care delivery.

Among the more effective and
innovative programs are:

* Nurse First. This is a quality-
driven program for emergency
room patients.

For HMA, the emergency room
is the other “front door” to the hos-
pital, with 40%-60% of hospital
admissions generated here,

Many residents in non-uroan
communities do not have a
“regular” doctor. Instead, when
they feel they need medical care,
they simply come to the hospital
emergency room. As this is often

A Preventive medicine is practiced routinely at HMA hospitals. Undergoing
a stress test that evaluates cardiovascular efficiency can help to identify a
potentially dangerous heart condition.

a patient’s first contact with a
hospital, HMA’s hospitals adopt
our “Nurse First” program to assure
that every ER visit is as pleasant as
possible under the circumstances.

To achieve this, a well-qualified
and dedicated registered nurse is
selected and then given additional
training in ER duties.

The nurse's primary function is
to assess the condition of each
patient within minutes of arrival.
Genuine medical emergencies
are recognized quickly, and those
patients are expedited for prompt
medical attention.

These specially-trained nurses
have two essential characteristics:
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a high level of emergency medical
expertise and an innate ability to
handle very intense and emotional
situations with a particularly com-
passionate and calming demeanor,
effectively ensuring that every
emergency room patient is seen in
a timely and caring manner.

* ProMed. This program is a
computer-accessed diagnostic
tool that helps doctors assess a
patient’s condition, formulate a
diagnosis and suggest a course
of treatment. When combined
with the “Nurse First” program, our
hospitals have been able to meet
and often exceed our internal
goal of providing an emergency
department encounter in two
hours or less, which is 50 to 75
percent better than the national
average.

* MedKey. This is a bar-coded
identification card our hospitals
provide local residents. It contains
relevant patient information that
streamlines the admission and
registration process, and in certain
instances, can help speed medical
treatment.

The use of the Medkey card
is increasing rapidly because we
introduce this program into each
community when we acauiire its
hospital.

At year-end, nearly 500,000
cards were in use.

Physician Recruiting

One of the most valuable skills
we bring to our acquired hospitals
is an ability to add and expand
services through selective physi-
cian recruitment. Whether it's a
new specialist service, or a new
physician to address an existing,

growing community need, phy-
sician recruitment is necessary
to reduce the outmigration of
patients to major urban centers.

Consequently, we selectively
recruit both primary care and
specialist physicians to address
the medical needs of the
community.

By working closely with the
acquired hospital's established
medical staff and community
leaders, we are able to identify
what specialty medical services
are needed for that hospital.

These services vary widely,
depending on the size and demo-
graphic profile of the community
and its distance from major urban
centers.

Once these needs are deter-
mined, we invite physician candi-
dates and their families to visit our
communities and our hospitals.

¥ Upon arrival at an HMA emergency department, patients are met immediately by a specially trained nurse, as part of
our Nurse First program. Medical conditions are quickly evaluated, and a course of treatment is initiated. This program is
a first step in helping keep ER encounter times to an average of two hours or less.

16 Health Management Associates, Inc.
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A A patient receives his MedKey Card. This is a bar-coded identification card HMA hospitals provide local residents. It
contains relevant patient information that streamlines the admission and registration process, and in certain instances,
can help speed medical treatment. Approximately 500,000 Medkey Cards are presently in use.

These sojourns enable visiting
physicians to learn where and how
their skills can be utilized at a giv-
en hospital, thereby enabling them
to begin building their practices
from an existing patient base.

In addition to an improved
quality of life and a community in
need of their services, recruited
physicians are also impressed
with the access to the state-of-
the-art medical equipment in an
HMA hospital. This is precisely
why we invest heavily in our
facilities and up-to-date medical
equipment. We want our doctors
to know they can practice
sophisticated medicine without
having to work and live in the
pressured environment of a major
metropolitan area.

Physician recruiting is an

ongoing program at all our
hospitals. Our recruiting grows
more successful each year as the
number of openings and locations
increase naturally as we acquire
more hospitals, thereby providing
a greater range of choice for our
physician candidates.

In the past three years we've
recruited more than 600 net new
physicians, including more than
220 in fiscal year 2002.

Community Involvement
Qur physicians, nurses and staff
members typically reside close to
their hospitals. Many become an
integral part of their communities
and its many activities, which bring
the community and its hospital
closer together.

The community involvement

is substantial and includes
memberships in the local
chambers of commerce, civic
organizations, Little League
Baseball, and local PTAs. They
actively support charitable fund
drives, outreach programs to
children and the elderly, “fun runs”
to raise money for various causes
and “health fairs” that provide
important health screenings to
residents.

in 2002, HMA and its em-
ployees, raised several million
dollars for many charitable orga-
nizations, including the United
Way, the March of Dimes, and the
American Cancer Society.

HMA remains commitied to
improving the access to and
quality of health care in the
communities we serve. m
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HOSPITAL LOCATIONS

ALABAMA
Riverview Regional Medical Center, Gadsden
Stringfellow Memorial Hospital, Anniston

ARKANSAS
Crawford Memorial Hospital, Van Buren
Southwest Regional Medical Center, Little Rock

FLORIDA

Brooksville Regional Hospital, Brooksville
Charlotte Regional Medical Center, Punta Gorda
Fishermen’s Hospital, Marathon

Heart of Florida Regional Medical Center,
Greater Haines City

Highlands Regional Medical Center, Sebring
Lehigh Regional Medical Center, Lehigh Acres
Lower Keys Medical Center, Key West

Pasco Regional Medical Center, Dade City
SandyPines, Tequesta

Santa Rosa Medlical Center, Milton

Sebastian River Medical Center, Sebastian
Spring Hill Regional Hospital, Spring Hill
University Behavioral Center, Orlando
GEOCRGIA

East Georgia Regional Medical Center, Statesboro
KENTUCKY

Paul B. Hall Regional Medical Center, Paintsville
MISSISSIPPI

Biloxi Regional Medical Center, Biloxi

Central Mississippi Medical Center, Jackson
Natchez Community Hospital, Natchez

Northwest Mississippi Regional Medical Center,
Clarksdale

Midwest City

OK

Durant

Mesquite (2)
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Van Buren

Rankin Medical Center, Brandon

Riley Hospital, Meridian

River Qaks Hospital, Flowood

Woman’s Hospital at River Qaks, Flowood
NORTH CAROLINA

Davis Regional Medical Center, Statesville
Franklin Regional Medical Center, Louisbourg

Lake Norman Regional Medical Center, Mooresville
Sandhills Regional Medical Center, Hamlet

OKLAHOMA
Medical Center of Southeastern Oklahoma, Durant
Midwest Regional Medical Center, Midwest City

PENNSYLVANIA

Carlisle Regicnal Medical Center, Carlisle
Community Hospital of Lancaster, Lancaster
Lancaster Regional Medical Center, Lancaster

SOUTH CARCLINA
Carolina Pines Regional Medical Center, Hartsville
Upstate Carolina Medical Center, Gaffney

TENNESSEE
Jamestown Regional Medical Center, Jamestown

TEXAS
Medical Center of Mesquite, Mesquite
Mesquite Community Hospital, Mesquite

VIRGINIA
Lee Regional Medical Center, Pennington Gap

WEST VIRGINIA
Williamson Memorial Hospital, Williamson

Williamson

— Statesville

— Mooresville

Carlisle
j PA ' /

Pennington Gap

(T —————

" Lancaster (2)

Paintsville

™ //
Jamestown

Brooksyville
— Orlando
Dade City
Greater Haines City

¥~ . CLSebastian
[ L Sebring

Tequesta

Lehigh Acres

Key West —O Marathon
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT/FORWARD- LOOKING STATEME‘NTS

Report of Management/Forward Loeking Statements

To Our Shareholders and Other interested Parties
Health Management Associates, Inc.

The management of Health Management Associates, Inc., (the “Company”) is responsible for the preparation,
presentation, and.integrity of the consolidated financial-statements and other information included in this
annual report. The financial statements have been prepared by the Company in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States and, as such, include amounts based on management’s
- best estimates and judgements. - ‘

The financial statements have been audited by Emst & Young LLP, independent auditors. Their audits were
made in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and included such
reviews and tests of the Company’s internal accounting controls as they considered necessary.

The Company maintains a system of internal accounting controls designed to provide reasonable assurance
at reasonable cost that Company assets are protected against loss or unauthorized use and that transactions
and events are properly recorded.

The Board of Directors, through its. Audit Committee, comprised solely of independent directors who are

not employees of the Company, meets with management and the independent auditors to assure that each

is properly discharging its respective responsibilities. The independent auditors have free access to the

- Audit Committee, without management present, to discuss the results of their work and thenr assessment of
the adequacy of internal accounting controls and the quality of fmancxal reporting.

Ferward Looking Statements ,

Certain statements contained in this report, including, without limitation, statements containing the words
“believes,” “anticipates,” “intends,” “expects” and words of similar import, constitute “forward looking
statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements may
include projections of revenues, income or loss, capital expenditures, capital structure, or other financial
items, statements regarding the plans and objectives of management for future operations, statements of
future economic performance, statements of the assumptions underlying or relating to any of the foregoing
statements, and other statements which are other than statements of historical fact.

Statements made through this report are based on current estimates of future events, and the Company has
no obligation to update or correct these estimates. Readers are cautioned that any such forward looking
statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve risks and uncertainties, and that actual
results may differ materially as a result of these various factors.

Wwilliam J. Schoen : Robert E. Farnham
Chairman of the Board ' Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

October 23,2002

20 Health Management Associates, Inc.




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTHFUED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Health Management Associates, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Health Management Associates, Inc.
and subsidiaries as of September 30, 2002 and 2001, and the related consolidated statements of income,
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended September 30, 2002.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.
Those standardis require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Health Management AssOciates, Inc. and subsidiaries at September 30,
2002 and 2001 and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended September 30 QOOQ in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States. »

"~ As discussed in Note 1 to the conso’ﬁdated financial statements, the Company changed its method of
accounting for the excess of cost over acquired net assets during the year ended September 30, 2002.

Emnst & Young LLP
Tampa, florida
October 23, 2002
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C@NS@MDATEDALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands)

2002

2001

See accompanying notes.

.92 Health Management Associates, Inc.

September 30,
ASSETS
Current assets: _ :
Cash and cash equivalents $ 193,736 $ 70,263
Accounts receivable, less allowances for doubtful accounts of '
$138,616 and $116, 785 at September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively 418,264 350,941
Accounts receivable — other . , . 36,163 - 99195
Supplies, at cost 59,412 50,113
Prepaid expenses and other assets 19,622 19,006
Funds held by trustee 2,698 1,892
Deferred income taxes 35,961 43,801
Total current assets 695,786 565,231
Property, plant and equipment: o .
Land and improvements 78,879 53,582
Buildings and improvements 964,100 824,363
Leaseholds 104,672 103,272
Equipment 518,129 435,903
Constryction in progress 57,563 36,783
o . 1,793,343 1,453,903
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization (441 561) (364,490)
- Net property, plant and equipment 1,281,782 1,089,413
Funds held by trustee A - 1,450 1,791
Excess of cost over acquired het assets, net 335,313 951,315
* Deferred charges and other assets "~ 40,986 33,8927
" $9,364,317 $1,941,577
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities: : .
Accounts payable $ 132,998 $. 91,862
"Accrued payroll and related taxes - 39,367 31,942
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 61,381 41,675
Due to third party payors 21,900 14,500
Income taxes — currently payable 11,298 1,356
Current maturities of long-term debt 7,609 6,752
Total current ligbilities Q73,743 188,087
Deferred income taxes 17,861 34,986
Other long-term liabilities 49.793 36,565
Long-term debt 650,159 498,990
Minority interests in-consolidated entities 33,009 —
Stockholders’ equity: '
Preferred stock, $.07 par value, 5,000 shares authorized — —
Common stock, Class A, $.07 par value, 750,000 shares
authorized, 261,067 and 258,074 shares issued
September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively 2,611 2,581
Additional paid-in-capital 373,214 . 340,192
Retained eamings 1,971,583 1,025,147
A , 1,647,408 1,367,920 .
Less: treasury stock, 22,500 and 12,639 shares at :
September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively (300,656) (114,271)
Total stockholders’ equity ' 1,346,752 1,953,649
o $2,364,317 $1,941,577




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(in thousands,. except per share data).

Year ended September 30, A j 2002 9001 2000

Net patieht service revenue - , $ Q,%Q,(JOT $1,879.801  $1,577,767
" Costs and expenses: . - ‘ ‘ .
Salaries and benefits . _ ‘ . 874,729 710,535 569,112
Supplies and other - o 650,852 535,926 - 458,817
Provision for doubtful accounts 172,430 143,923 135,862
Depreciation and amortization ‘ 95,398 90,646 74,499
Rent expense ‘ ) . 47,048 40,850 38,118
Interest, net . o ‘ 15,543 19,970 95,364
Non-cash charge for retirement benefits and , ‘
write-down of assets held for sale . ' — 17,000 —
Total costs and expenses .~ o - 1,855,930 1,558,850 1,301,772
Income before minority interests and incone taxes 406671 390,951 975,995
Minority interests in earnings of consolidated entities 1,009 - — —
Income before income taxes o ‘ 405,669 390,951 975,995
Provision for income taxes ’ _ - 159,996 195,973 108,328
Netincome S '§ 946436 $ 194978  $ 167,667
Net income per share: . ) :
Basic o ' $ 1.02 $ 80 $ 69
Diluted : o -8 97 . § 7 % 68
Weighted average number of shares outstanding:‘ _ ) :
Basic ' ‘ . 941,908 Q44,495 941,946

Diluted- . : . 260,641 964,351 947,277

See accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY

(in thousands)

Common Stock

$373,214

: Additional :
Years ended September 30, Par Paid-in Retained Treasury
2002, 2001 and 2000 Shares Value Capital | Earnings Stock
BALANCE AT SEPTEMBER 30, 1999 253405 %9534 $9204579 $ 662502 $ (69,099)
Exercise of stock options : 1952 . 20 - 11,611 — —_
Income tax benefit from exercise
of stock options —_ — 2,644 — —
Purchase of treasury stock, at cost — - — — {42,399
Net income , — — — 167,667 —
BALANCE AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2000 955,357 2,554 308,834 830,169 (111,491)
Exercise of stock options 2,717 97 - 95,945 — —
Income tax benefit from exercise . . :
of stock options o = — 6,113 — —
Purchase of treasury stock, at cost — = Lo — (2,780)
Net income — . — — 194,978 —
- BALANCE AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2001 958,074 2,581 340,192 1,025,147 (114:271)
Exercise of stock options 2,993 30 14,629 - —
Income tax benefit from exercise ~ ) )
of stock options . ‘ — — 18,393 — —
Purchase of treasury stock, at cost ’ — — — . — (186,385)
Net. income — — — 946,436 —
BALANCE AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2002 261,067  $2,611 $1,271,583

$(300,656)

See accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STA’TEMENTS OF CASH FL@WS »

(»n thousands)-

Year ended September 30,

2002, 2001 2000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: -
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities: -
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for doubtful accounts
Loss (gain) on'sale of fixed assets
Change in deferred income taxes
Charges for retirement benefits and
write down of assets held for sale
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects
of acquisitions:
Accounts receivable
Supplies
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Deferred charges and other assets
. Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Income taxes — currently payable
Other long-term liabilities
Net cash provided by operat(ng activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Acquisition of facilities, net of cash acguired and
purchase price adjustments

Additions to property, plant and eguipment

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

" Proceeds from sale of minority mterests in
consolidated entities

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from long-term oorrowings

Principal payments on debt

Purchase of treasury stock, at cost

Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Payment of interest on debentures

(Decrease) increase in funds held by trustee

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH
INVESTING -AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Fair value of assets acquired (including cash)
Consideration: Cash paid
Ligbilities assumed

See accompanying notes.

. $ 246,436 $ 194,078 $ 167,667

- 95,398 90,646 74,499

- 172,430 143,993 135,862

‘ 62 (6 85
(8,585 (6,600) (4,979

— 17,000 —

(909 972) (149,288) (160,239

(4,656) (9,993) (4,802)

479 (957) (9,146)
(1,035) (6,018) (10,426)
99,746 13,315 4,632
7,915 . 2053 1,785
98,960 5,347 (15,512)
(2979) - 1,055 . 115
354,136 206,155 179,541

(300,179) (100,894) (130,402)

(116,047) (73,473) (120,704)
41,074 3,357 207
392,000 —

(343,152) - (171,010) (250,899)

479,314 35,591 447117
(263,482) (129,098) (349,774)
(186,385) - (2,780) (42,399)

14,659 95,972 11,631
(1,222) (1,299 —

(395) 884 1,398
42,489 (71,353) 74,903
53,473 53,79¢ 3,545
70,263 16,471 12,926

$ 123,736 $ 70,263 $ 16,471

$ 299,456 $ 63,049 $ 136,649
291,435 59,436 130,402

$ 1,021 $ 3,613 $ 6047
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NOTES TO @@NS@MDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Health Management Associates, Inc. (the “Company”), through its subsidiary companies, substantially
~ all of which are wholly-owned, provides health care services to patients in owned and leased facilities
primarily in the southeast and southwest United States. The Company consistently aoplies the followrns
significant accountmg policies:

a. Principles of consolldatlon ,

"~ The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries in
which the Company exercises control. All sngmﬁcant mtercompany accountsand transactrons have been
ehmtnated

b. Cash equivalents
" The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with a maturity of less than three
months to be cash equivalents. The Compam/s cash equivalents consist prmctpa!ly of investment grade
. instruments.

c. Property, plant and eqmpment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost and include ma)or expenditures which increase thelr
* values or extend their useful lives. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight line

method based on estimated useful lives. Estimated useful lives for buildings and improvements range

from twenty to forty years and for equipment range from three to ten years. Leaseholds are amortized on

astraight-line basis over the terms of the respective leases. Depreciation expense was $91.9 million, $77.3

million and $63.7 mllhon for the years ended September 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

d. Excess of cost over acqu1red net assets net and deferred charges and other assets

Prior to October 1, 2001, excess of cost over acquired net assets (Soodwill) had been amortized on a
straight-line basis over lives ranging from three to twenty-five years. As of October 1, 2001, the Company
adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142, Goodwill and
Ctherintangible Assets. SFAS No. 142 requires that goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives no longer be amortized, but instead tested for impairment at least annually in accordance with
the provisions of SFAS No..142. The transition provisions of SFAS No. 142 require the completion of a
transitiohal impairment test within six months of adoption of SFAS No. 142. The Company completed

" the required transitional impairment test in March 2002, which resufted.in no goodwill impairment.

Deferred charges and other assets consist principally of deferred financing costs and certain non-
productive assets held for sale. The financing costs are being amortized over the life of the related
debt. The accumulated amortization of deferred financing costs was $4.5 mil hon and $3.7 million at
September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectrvely

Certain long-lived assets may become impaired, requiring'a writedoWn of the assets to their estimated
fair values. The Company periodically reviews future cash.flows related to these assets, and if necessary,
will reduce such assets to their estimated fair values. :

e. Use of estimates ’ ,
The preparation of financial statements in conform|ty with accountlng principles generally accepted in
the United States requires management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the amounts reported in the consolidated frnancral statements and accompanying notes. Actual results
could dlffer from those estlmates : :

f. Net patient service revenue and accounts receivable
Approximately 59%, 59% and 60% of gross patient service charges for the years ended September 3O
9002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, relates to services rendered to patients covered by the Medicare and
- Medicaid programs. Payments for services rendered to patients covered by these programs are generally
less than billed charges. Provisions for contractual adjustments are made to reduce the charges to these

‘96 Health Management Associates, Inc,




patients to estimated receipts based upon the programs’ principles of payment/reimbursement (either
prospectively determined or retrospectively determined.costs). Final settlements under these programs
are subject to administrative review and audit, and provision is currently made for adjustments which
may result. Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are extremely complex
and subject to interpretation. As a result, there is a possibility that recorded estimates may change in the
future. Revenues and receivables from governiment programs are significant to the Company’s operations,
but the Company does not believe that there are significant credit risks associated with these government
programs.

Estimates for contractual allowances under managed care health plans are based primarily on the
payment terms of contractual arrangements such as predetermmed rates per diagnosis, per drem rates
or discounted fee for service rates. ‘

Net patient service revenue is presented net of provisions for contractual adjustments and other

-allowances of $4.121 billion, $2.981 billion and $2.195 billion in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, in-
the accompanying consolidated statements of income. In the ordinary course of business, the Company
renders services in its facilities to patients who are financially unable to pay for their hospital care. The
value of these services to pat|ents ‘who are unable to pay is not material to'the Company s consolidated
results of operations.

g. Provision for doubtful accounts

The collection of receivables from third party payers and patients is the Companys primary source of
cash and is critical to its operating performance The primary collection risks relate to uninsured patient
accounts and patient accounts for which the primary insurance payer has paid, but patient responsibility
amounts (generally deductibles and co-payments) remain outstanding. Provisions for doubtful accounts .
are estimated based primarily upon the age of the patients’ account, the patients” economic ability to
pay and the effectiveness of collection efforts. Accounts receivable balances are routinely reviewed
" in conjunction with historical collection rates and other economic conditions which might ultimately
affect the collectibility of patient accounts when considering the adequacy of the amounts recorded
as allowances for doubtful accounts. Significant changes in payer mix, business office operations,
economic conditions or trends in Federal and state governmental health care coverage could affect the
Company’s collection of accounts receivable, cash flows and results of operations.

h. Professional liability insurance claims _

The Company insures for its professional liability risks under a “claims-made” basis policy. Each claim is
covered up to $1 million per occurrence, subject to a $100,000 deductible the Company must pay (with
an annual deductible cap of $6.1 million). Liabilities in excess of these amounts are covered through
a combination of limits provided by commercial insurance companies and a self-insurance program.
(see Note 9)

Estimates for self-insured professional liability risks are determined by management using the Company’s
incident reporting system and actuarially determined amounts. The estimates are continually reviewed

.and adjustments recorded as experience develops and/or new information becomes available. Actual
results could vary from those estimates recorded. (see Note 9)

i. Minority interests in consolidated entities

The consolidated financial statements include all assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of less than
100% owned entities controlled by the Company. Accordingly, the Company has recorded minority
interests m the earnings and equity of such entrtfes

j- Income taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. Deferred
income tax assets and liabilities are determined based upon difference between financial reporting and
tax bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in
effect when the differences are expected to reverse (see Note 5). Management must make estimates
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

in recording the Company's provision for income taxes, including determination of deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities and any valuation allowance that might be required against the deferred tax
asset. Management believes that future income will enable the Company to realize these benefits in the
future; therefore, the Company has not recorded a valuation allowance against the deferred tax asset.

The Company operates in multiple states with varying tax laws. The Company is subject to-both Federal
and state audits of tax returns. Management must make estimates to determine that tax reserves are
adequate to cover any potential audit adjustments. Actual results of those audits, if any, could vary from
the estimates recorded by management. '

- k. Earnings per share

Eamings per share is based on the weighted average number of common and common equwalent
shares(stock options and convertible debt) outstanding during the periods presented (see Note 7).

l. Segment reporting :

The Company’s business of providing health care services to patients in owned and leased facilities
comprises a single reportable operating segment under SFAS No. 131, D/sclosures About Segments of
an Enterprise and Related Information.

m. Reclassifications v : :
Certain amounts have been reclassified in prior years to conform with the current year presentation.

. . Recent accounting pronouncements

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, the Company discontinued the amortization of goodwill effective

" October 1, 2001. During the years ended September 30, 2001 and 2000, the Company recorded $9.2

miflion and $7.8 million of goodwill amortization expense which reduced earnings by approximately
$5.5 milfion and $4.7 million (net of tax expense of approximately $3.7 million and $3.1 million), or
approximately $0.02 per share on a diluted basis for 2007 and 2000, respectively.

In August 2001, the Financial Acc‘oun‘ting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, which addresses financial accounting and reporting for

" the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets and supersedes SFAS No. 121, Accounting for the

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of, and the accounting
and reporting provisions of APB Opinion No. 30, Reporting the Results of QOperations, for a disposal of

-a segment of a business. SFAS No. 144 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001.

The Company will adopt SFAS No. 144 as of October 1, 2002 and does not expect the adoption will
have a significant impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS

During 2002, the Company acquired certain assets of two hospitals and the stock of three hospitals
through purchase agreements for $296.2 million in cash and the assumption of $1.0 million in liabilities.
During 2001, the Company acquired certain assets of two hospitals through purchase agreements for
$59.4 million in cash and the assumption of $3.6 million in liabilities. During 2000, the Company ac-
auired certain assets of three hospitals (one at September 30, 2000) through purchase agreements for

. $130.4 million in cash and the assumption of $6.2 million in liabilities. The foregoing acquisitions were

accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. The allocation of the purchase price has been
determined by the Company based upon available information and is subject to further refinement.

As part of a group purchase of four hospitals during 2002, the Company acquired one acute-care hospital
and sold it on the same day for $40.0 million in cash.

The operavting results of the foregoing hospitals have been included in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income from the respective dates of acquisition. The following unaudited pro forma
combined summary of operations of the Company for each of the years in the three year period ended
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September 30, 2002 give effect to the operation of the hospitals purchased in 2002, 2001 and 2000
as if the acquisitions had occurred as of October 1, 2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively:

_ (in millions, except per share data) o <. 2002 R 2001 2000
Net patient service revenue $ 9,403‘.0 $ 21399 $ 1,963.7
Netincome % 92530 $ 1928 $ 164.6
Net income per share — Basic o $ 105 $ .79 $ 67
Net income per share ~ Diluted . $ 99 $ 75 $ .64

The changes in the carrying amount of goodWill for the year ended September 30, 2002 are as follows:

: ' 2002
Balance at September 30, 2001 ' : $ 951,315
Goodwili acquired during the year : 92,061
Impairment losses o ‘ ) —
Goodwill written off related to d|sposals ‘ —
Other ' (8,063)
Balance at September 30, 2002 . ‘ _ $ 335,313

. LONG-TERM DEBT
The Company’s long-term debt consists of the following (in thousands):

September 30, ; ' T 20092 2001

Revolving Credit Agreements (a) $ — $ 45,000
Zero-Coupon Subordinated Convertible Debentures due QOQO at 3%,

net of discount of $184.9 and $192.6 million at September 30, 2002

and 2007, respectively (b) 303,274 995,864
Zero-Coupon Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes due 2022 at

at 0.875%, net of discount of $51.2 million at September 30, 2002 (©) Q78,757 —
Mortgage notes, secured by real and personal property (¢) 10,417 50,486
Various mortgage and installment notes and debentures,

some secured by equipment, at interest rates ranging from

6% to prime plus 1%, payable through 2009 . 98,368 9,039
Industrial Revenue Bond issue : ) 5,190 5,580
Capitalized lease obligations (see Note 4) ’ 31,762 98,873
’ 657,768 435,742
Less current maturities _ 7,609 6,752

$650,159 $ 428,990

a. Revolving Credit Agreements

The Company currently has a 5-year $450 mllhon Credlt Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) due
November 30, 2004. The Credit Agreement is a term Joan agreement which permits the Company to
borrow under an unsecured revolving credit loan at any time through November 30, 2004, at which time
the agreement terminates and all outstanding amounts become due and payable. The Company may
choose a Base Rate Loan (prime interest rate) or a Eurodollar Rate Loan (LIBOR interest rate). The interest
rate for a Eurodollar Rate Loan is currently LIBOR plus 1.00 percent, ahd will increase or decrease in
relation to a change in the Company’s credit rating. Monthly or quarterly interest payments are required
depending on the type of loan chosen by the Company. The interest rate at September 30, 2002 and
2001 was 2.8% and 3.7%, respectively. As of September 30; 2002, there were No amounts outstanding
under the Credxt Agreement.

The Company also has a $15 million unsecured revolving credit commitment with a bank. The $15 million
credit commitment is a working capital commitment which is tied to the Company’s cash management
system, and renews annually on November 1.-Currently, interest on any outstanding alance is payable
monthly at a fluctuating rate not to exceed the bank’s prime rate less .25%. The interest rate at September
30, 2002 and 2001 was 4.5% and 6.0%, respectively. As of September 30, 2002 and 2001, there were
no amounts outstanding under this credit commitment.
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3. LONG-TERM DEBT, CONTINUED
‘In addition, the Company is obligated to pay certain commitment fees based upon amounts available
for borrowing dunng the terms of the credit agreements described above. :

The credit agreements contain covenants which, without prior consent of the banks, limit certain activities,
including those relating to mergers, consolidations and the Company’s ability to secure additional
indebtedness, make guarantees, grant security interests and declare dividends. The Company must

* also maintain minimum levels of consolidated tangible net worth, debt service coverage and interest
coverage. At September 30, 2002, the Company was in compliance with these covenants.

b. Subordinated Convertible Debentures and Notes

- On August 16, 2000, the Company sold $488.8 million face value of Zero- Coupon Subordrnated
Convertible Debentures due 2020 (the “Debentures”) for gross proceeds of $287.7 million. The
Debentures mature on August 16, 2020 unless converted or redeemed earlier. The Debentures are
convertible into the Company’s common stock at-a conversion rate of 29.5623 shares of common stock
for each $1,000 principal amount of the Debbentures (equivalent to a conversion price of $19.9125 per
share). Interest on the Debentures is payable semiannually in arrears on August 16 and February 16 of
each year at a rate of .25% per year on the principal amount at maturity. The rate of cash interest and
accrual of original issue drscount represent ayield to maturlty of 3% per year calculated from August
16, 2000.

Holders may require the Company to purchase-all or a portion of their Debentures on August 16, 2003,
August 16, 2008 and August 16, 2013 for a purchase price per Debenture of $635.88, $724.58 and
$827.53, respectively, plus accrued and unpaid interest to each purchase date. The Company may
choose to pay the purchase price in cash or common stock or a combination of cash and common
stock. In addition, upon a change in control of the Company occurring on or before August 16, 2003,
each holder may require the Company to repurchase all or a portion of such holder’s Debentures. The
Company may redeem all or a portion of the Debentures at any time on or after August 16, 2003.

On January 28, 2002, the Company sold $330.00 million in face value of Zero-Coupon Convertible
Senior Subordinated Notes due 2022 (the “Notes”) for gross proceeds of approximately $277.0 million.
The Notes are the Company’s general unsecured obligations and are subordinated in right of payment
to the Company’s existing and future indebtedness that is not, by its terms, expressly subordinated or
pari passu in right of payment to the Notes. The Debentures rank pari passu with the Notes. The Notes
mature on January 28, 2022, unless converted or redeemed earlier. Upon the occurrence of certain
events, the Notes are convertible into the Company’s common stock at a conversion rate of 32.1644
‘shares of common stock for each $1,000 principal amount of the Notes (equivalent to a conversion
price of $26.11 per share). The equivalent number of shares associated with the conversion of the Notes
become dilutive (and thus would be included in the Company’s earnings per share calculation) when
the Company’s common stock attains a level of $31.33 for at least 20 trading days of the 30 trading days
prior to the conversion or the Notes otherwise become convertible. The accrual of the original issue’
discount represents a yield to maturity of 0.875% per year calculated from January 28, 2002, excludlng
any contlngent interest which could be payable under the terms of the Notes.

Holders may require the Company to purchase all or a portion of their-Notes.on January 28, 2005,
January 28, 2007, January 28, 2012 and January 28, 2017 for a purchase price per note of $862.07,
$877.25, $916.40 and $957.29, respectively, plus accrued and unpaid interest to each purchase date.
The Company will pay cash for all Notes so purchased on January 28, 2005. The Company may choose
to pay the purchase price in cash or common stock or a combination of cash and common stock for
purchases on or after January 28, 2007. In addition, upon a change in control of the Company occurring
on or before January 28, 2007, each holder may require the Company to purchase all or a portion of such
holdeér’s Notes. The Company may redeem all or a portion of the Notes at any time on or after January
' 98, 2007.
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¢. Mortgage Notes :

The Company has four mortgage notes at September 30, 2002 arid six mortgage notes at September
30, 2001 which are secured by all the real and personal property related to facilities with a net book
value of $64.5 million and $96.3 million at September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The notes are
payable in various instaliments with maturity dates ranging from 2002 through 2007 and carry interest
rates ranging from prime (4.75% and 6.0% at September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively) to 11.5%.

As of September 30, 2002 and 2001, the quoted market price for the Debentures was approximately
$335.4 million and $340.3 million, respectively. As of September 30, 2002, the quoted market price for
the Notes was approximately $287.9 million. The fair value of the other debt included above, based
on available market information, approximates its carrying value. .

Maturities of long-term debt and capital leases for the next five fiscal years and thereafter are as follows
(in thousands):

2003 ' ‘ ‘ $ 7,609

2004 ‘ : 8,100
9005 , ' ' 7,708
2006 - EE o 6,742
2007 : : : 14,936

Thereafter ‘ $612,673

The Company paid interest of $7:4 mrllron $14.9 mrllron and $31.1 million for the years ended September
30, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. There was no capitalized interest for the years ended September
30, 2002 and 2001. Capitalized interest totaled $3.1 million for the year ended September 30, 2000.

. LEASES.

The Company leases real estate properties, equrpment and vehicles under cancelable and non-
' cancelable leases. future minimum operating and capital lease payments, including amounts relating
to leased hospitals, are as follows at September 30, 2002 (in thousands):

Operating Capital

: o Real . Real Property
September 30; ’ Property . Equipment and Equipment Total
2003 $ 6,469 $ 21,310 $ 5,839 $ 33,618
2004 . 5,800 16,674 5,714 98,188
2005 ST _ ) 5,432 12,674 5,134 - 93,240
2006 ) © . 4,589 8,439 - 4,947 17,275
2007 ' . 3,869 3,550 3,048 10,467
Thereafter C. 19479 1,259 35,649 56,387
Total minimum payments $ 45,638 © % 63,906 59,631 $169,175
Less amounts representing mterest Q27,869
Present value of minimum lease payments oo $ 31,762

The following summarizes amounts related to assets leased by the Company under capital leases (in thousands):

September 30, - ' , © 2002 2001

Cost o ' $ 76,819 $ 71,870
Less accumulated amortization o o « (16,799) (17,191)

Net bookvalue R ' A - $ 60,090 $ 54,679

The Company entered into capitalized leases for equipment of $8.7 million, $4.0 million and $.2 million
for the years ended September 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
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5. INCOME TAXES

The significant components of the brovision for income taxes are as follows (in thousands):

Year ended September 30,

2002 9001 2000
Federal: _ o
Current $144,017 $114,109 $ 96,713
Deferred (11,322) (6,731) (3,439)
Total Federal 132,695 107,378 93,274
State: » :
Current 28,794 19,823 16,594
Deferred (2,263) (1,298) (1,540)
Total State 26,531 18,595 15,054
Total $150,296 $195,973 $108,398

An analysis of the Company’s effective income tax rates is as follows:

Year ended September 30, , 2002

2001 2000

Statutory income tax rate
State income taxes,

$141,982 35.0% -

$112,333 35.0% $ 96,598 35.0%

" net of Federal benefit 15,824 3.9 19,628 3.9 10,797 3.9

Cther items (each less than -

5% of computed tax) ‘ 1,420 4 1,012 4 . 933 4
Total $159,226 39.3% $195,973 39.3% $108,398 39.3%

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the Federal and state
deferred income tax assets and liabilities are comprised of the following (in thousands):

2002 . 2001

September 30,

Deferred income tax assets: :
Alfowance for doubtful accounts $ 27,417 $ 24,082
Accrued liabilities 14,645 . 10,524
Self insurance liability risks 17,505 - 6,519
Cther 3,606 - 2,676

. , 63,173 43,801

Less: Valuation allowance — —

Net deferred income tax assets 63,173 43,801

Deferred income tax liabilities: -

" Depreciable assets (38,441) (32,1924)
Accrued liabilities and other (6,632) (2,162)

Net deferred income tax asset $ 18,100 $ 9515

SFAS No. 109 requires a valuation allowance to reduce the deferred tax assets reported if, based on
the weight of the evidence, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets
will not be realized. After consideration of all the evidence, both positive and negative, management
has -determined that a valuation allowance is not necessary as of September 30, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. C ‘

" Income taxes paid (net of refunds) amounted to $139.7 million, $126.1 million, and $123.6 million for
the years ended September 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
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6 RETIREMENT PLAN
The Company has a defined contrlbunon retirement plan which covers substantially all eligible employees
at its hospitals and the corporate office. This plan includes a provision for the Company to match a
portion of employee contributions. Total retirement program expense under this plan was $6.0 million,
$4.5 million and $4.0 million for the years ended September 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

In addition, the Company maintains a supplemental retirement plan for certain Company executives
which provides for predetermined annual payments to these executives after the attainment of age 62,
if still employed by the Company at that time. These payments generally continue for the remainder of
the executive’s life (see Note 10).

7. EARNINGS PER SHARE
The following table sets forth the’ computatlon of basic and diluted earntngs per share (in thousands,
except per share data):

Year ended September 30, . 2002 2001 20060

Numerator:
Numerator for basic earnings per share—
net income _ o ' $946,436 $194,978 $167,667
 Effect of convertible debt ' 5,419 5,346 655

Numerater for diluted eamings per share $251,855 $200,324 $168,322

Denominator: _
Denominator for basic eamings per share—

- weighted average shares 241,298 944 495 241,946
Effect of dilutive securities: ' »
-Employee stock options ' 4,894 . 5477 3,550
Convertible debt S 14,449 14,449 1,781
Denominator for-diluted earnings per share ’ 260,641 264,351 947,277
Basic earnings per share - , % 109 $ 80 $ 69
Diluted earnings per share ' $ .97 $ - 76 $ .68

Qutstanding options to purchase 2.8 million, 1.2 million, and 1.4 million shares of the Company’s common
stock were not included in the computation of earnings per share for the years ended September 30,

2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively, because the options’ exercise prices were greater than the average
market price of the Company’s common stock.

8. STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
The Company has elected to follow Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees (“APB 95”). Under APB 25, since the exercise price of the Company’s employee
stock options equals the market price of the underlying stock on the date of grant, no compensation
expense is recognized. Pro forma disclosure of alternative fair value accounting is then required under
SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, utilizing an option valuation model.

The Company has a 1991 Stock Option Pian, a 1993 Stock Option Plan and a 1996 Executive Incentive
Compensation Plan for the granting of options to key employees of the Company. All options granted
have 10 year terms and vest and become fully exercisable at the end of either 3 or 4 years of continued
employment.
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8. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY, CONTINUED ,
- Pertinent information covering the plans is summarized below:

. Weighted
Shares . Price Average
(in thousands) Range Price
Balance at September 30, 1999 ' 20,238 v $ 1.24-21.63 - $10.30,
Granted . T 3,807 - 1213-14.69 12.14
Exercised ) . : (1,809 ©1.94-13.00 5.97
Terminated o ' (403) 10.33-21.63 16.14
Balance at September 30, QOOO . 91,833 1.94-91.63 10.87
- - Granted ' . 2,804 16.60-21.25 - 16.62
Exercised . o (2,553) . ©1.94-13.00 ©9.99
Terminated ' , v (1,506) 12.13-21.63 13.38
Balance at September 30, 9001 ‘ o 20,578 - 2.07-21.63 11.59
Granted S 1,808 19.10-19.95 19.93
Exercised ' - o 2847y - 9.07-19.63 4.4%
Terminated o ‘ (320) - 8.95-21.63 18.17
Balance at September 30, 2002 ' 19,219 $ 2.07-21.63 - %1333

Exercisable at September 30, 2002 - - 14,073
The fdllowing table summarizes information concerning currently oUtstanding and exercisable options:

Options Outstanding . ) ‘ Options Exercisable

‘Weighted T )
Average Veighted : Weighted
Range of . - Remaining Average ‘ Average
Extercise ' Number Contractual Exercise Number- Exercise
’ Prices - Qutstanding - - Life - Price ‘Exercisable Price
- $ 207-% 833 2,419,000 2.8 - $ 594 2,366,000 - $ 518
$10.33-$13.00 11,298,000 57 $12.47 - 10,010,000 $12.49
$14.50 - '$21.63 5,502,000 .84 $18.66 1,697,000 $19.76

Pro forma information regarding net income and earnings per share is required by SFAS No. 123, which

. also requires that the information be determined as if. the Company has accounted for its employee
stock options granted subsequent to December 31, 1995 under the fair value method of SFAS No. 123.

* The fair value for these options was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model with the following weighted-average assumptions for 2002, 2001 and 2000: risk-free interest rate
of 4.60%, 5.51%, and 6.56%,; no dividend vields; volatility factor of the expected market price of the
Company's common stock of .536, 489 and .486; and weighted average expected lives of the options
of 5, 7and 7 years

' The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded
‘options which have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models
require the input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected stock price volatility. Because

" the Company’s employee stock options have characteristics significantly different from those of traded
options, and because changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value
estimate, in management’s opinion, the existing models do not necessanly provide a reliable single
measure of the fair value of its employee stock options.
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For purposes of pro forma disclosures the estimated fair value of the options is amortized to expense
over the options’ vesting penod The Companys pro forma information follows (in thousands, except
per share data):

2002 = 2008 - 2000

- Pro forma net income C : $ 235,261 $184,537 $156,702
Pro forma earnings per share: - o ' 7

_ Basic S %97 $ 75 $ . 65

Diluted o o \ S8 93 s 72 $ 64

At September 30, 2002, there were approximately 13.1. million shares of common stock reserved for
future issuance under the plans. In addition, the Company has granted options for shares of Class A
Common Stock to seven non-employee directors. At September 30, 2002, there-were approximately
196,000 options outstanding at $4.49 to $21.63 per share, expiring in 2004 through 2012.

The Company also has a Stock Incentive Plan for corporate officers and management staff. This plan
provides for the awarding of additional compensation to key personnel in the form of Company stock.
The stock will be issued to the grantee four.years after the date of grant, provided the individual is
still an employee of the Company. At September 30, 2002, there were approximately 450,000 shares

reserved under the plan, for which the Company has recorded $2.9 million, $2.0 million and $1.5 million .
of compensation expense for the years ended September 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

In September 1999, the Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program of up to 25 million
shares of common stock. On October 14, 1999 the Company executed a share repurchase agreement
with an independent third party, whereby the third party agreed to “sell short” 5 million shares of the
Company’s common stock to the Company. As of October 19, 1999 the 5 million shares were delivered
to the Company and became treasury stock. From October 15, 1999 to December 15, 1999, a pericd of
60 days, the third party covered the “short sale” by-buying shares on the open market. On December 15,
1999 the Company reimbursed the third party $42,399,000, which represented the cost of the common
stock purchased plus a commission plus interest (at LIBOR) on the outstanding balance of funds used
to purchase the common stock.

In September 2001, the Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program to repUrcha'se up to
5,000,000 shares of the Company's common stock. On January 29, 2002, the Company announced that

- it had completed the stock repurchase program by purchasinga total of 5, OOO 000 shares of its common
stock at.an average purchase prrce of $1 9. 29 per share.

In Februar\_/ 2002, the Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program to repurchase up to
5,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. On August 8, 2009, the Company announced that it
had completed the stock repurchase program Dy purchasing a total of 5,000,000 shares at an average
purchase price of $18.54 per share. ‘ .

At September 30, 2002 and 2001, there were approximately 14.5 million shares of common stock
reserved for future issuance upon the.conversior of the Company’s Debentures. At Septemoer 30, 20092,
there were approximately 10.6 million shares of common stock reserved for future issuance upon the
conversion of the Company's Notes.
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9. PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY. RISKS : ' :
Through September 30, 2002, the Company insured for its professronal liability risks under a “claims-
made” basis policy, whereby each claim'is covered “up to $1 million per occurrence, subject to-a
$100, 000 deductible (with an annual deductible cap of $6.1 miliion). Lrabrlrtres in excess of these
~ amounts are covered through a combination of Jimits provrded by commercral rnsurance companies
and a self-insurance program

Accruars for seh‘—rnsured professronal Irabrlrty risks are determrned using asserted and unasserted claims
identified by the Company’s rncrdentrepomng system and actuarially determined estimates based
on'Company and irdustry historical loss payment patterns and have been discounted to their present
- value using a discount rate of 6.0%. Although the ultimate settlement of these accruals may vary from
. these estimates, management believes that the amounts provided in the Company’s.consolidated
- financial statements are adequate. If actual payments of claims exceed projected estrmates of claims,
the’ Companys insurance accruals could be materially adversely affected.

Effective October 1, 2002, in response to drﬁ‘rcurty in obtarnrng primary insurance from commercral .
. companies at reasonable rates, the Company formed a wholly owned insurance subsidiary in orderto
_self-insure a greater portion of its primary professional and general liability risk. The captive subsidiary
reinsures risk up to $1 million per claim and $3 miillion in the aggregate per hespital, and further acts as. -
" an excess insurer for all hospitals.in combination with three. commercial insurance companies.

1 0 NON- CASH CHARGE
The non-cash charge for retirement beneﬁts and wrrte down of assets held for sale in 2001 represents (1 )
the present vaiue of the future costs of retirement benefits granted to the Company’s. chairman pursuarnt -
to an employment agreement which became effective January 2, 2001, and (2) the write down of two
hospital assets held for sale in conjunction with their respective replacement, '

11. COMMITMENTS -
© The Company has a number of hosprtal renovation/expansion prOJects underway at September 30, 9009

" None of these projects are individually significant nor do they represent a significant commitrent in
total at September 30, 2002. In addition, the Company plans to replace three of its existing hospitals
and build one new hospital over the next fouryears. Regulatory approval to begin construction on one
replacement facility has been granted while the remaining planned projects.are awaitins regqulatory
approval by the appropriate agencies. Included in these planned projects isthe’ Companys obligation .
to construct a new facility at its Carlrsie Pennsylvanra locatron

12, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS :
. On October 29, 2002, the Company rnrtrated a8 quarterly cash drvrdend pohcy and declared its first
cash dividend of $0.02 per share of the Company’s common stock payable on December 2, 2002 to.
stockholders of record at the close of business on November 8, 2002.

36 Health Management Associates, Inc.




13.QUARTERLY DATA (UNAUD!TED)
"Years ended September 30, QOOQ and 9001 (in thousands except per share data):

Quarter : o 1st" .. ond _3rd ah Tou
2002 _ S ; ,

Net patient service revenue '$495,821 $570,9048  $592476 $594,356  $2,269,601

- Income before income taxes 83,072 - 113,965 109,665 98,960 405,662

Net income S ' . 50,466 69,236 66,616 60,118 246,436

Net income per share: o : 4
Basic S %921 s 99 8 28 3 25 % - 1.02
Diluted % 92 % 27 - % 2 % 24 % .97

. Weighted average number - . - :
of shares: , o ' : ‘ '

" Basic | ST 043,649 - 241959 941,997 239,052 941,998
Diluted . 263,365 260,661 260,821 257,740 260,641
2001 ‘ : :

Net patient service revenue $434,937 " $481,144  $473,203 . $491,217  $1,879,801

' Income before income taxes 66,122 80,265 89,156 85,408 - 320,951

Net income : o 4078 48,740 54,138 51,022 194,978

" Net income per share: , S : : ,

~ Basic % a7 % 2 s 2% 21§ .80
Diluted L% 16 8. 9 s 21 08 2§ 76
Weighted average number S I E :
of shares: T ' :
. Basic L T 943,234 244117 245,048 245,997 Q44,425

Diued T 964997 9263700 © 264305 265508~ 264,351
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS
5811 Pelican Bay Boulevard, Suite 500
Naples, Florida 34108-2710 '
(239) 598-3131

INTERNET ADDRESS
www.hma-corp.com

ANNUAL REPORT TO THE SEC

* - The Company’s annual report to the Securities

and Exchange Commission (Form 10-K) and othéf
- filings may be obtained by writing the Company.

Additional financia! information on SEC reports is .

- available by accessmg the Companys website at
www hma-corp.com.

. ANNUAL MEETING
“Shareholders are cordially.invited to attend the
Annual-Meeting of Shareholders; which will be
held at 1:30 p.m. on February 18, 2003, in Naples,
- Florida.

Managemént urges all shareholders to vote their |

proxies and thus participate in the decisions that

wifl be made at this meeting.

TRANSFER AGENT

Wachovia Bank, N.A.

1525 West' W. T. Harris Boulevard
" Mail Code 3C3NC1153.
Charlotte, North Caroling 28288
(800) 829-8432

For changé of name, addresé or to replace lost.
stock certificates, write or call the Transfer Asent 3
Securities Transfer Division.

SECURITIES ANAL\/ST CONTACT

John C. Merriwether

Director of Financial Relations
(239) 598-3104

NYSE SYMBOL
HMA | B
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© -+ Fiscal Year Ended

. INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC -

ACCOUNTANTS
Ernst & Young.LLP
Tampa, Florida

COMMON STOCK PRICE RANGE AND
DIVIDEND IN_FORMATION :
Al September 30, 2002, there were 238,567,000

~shares outstanding and approximately 1,500
shareholders of record.

. The range of high and low prices for the past eight -
~ quarters ended September 30, 2002, is shown

below. Per share prices have been adJusted for all
stock sphts

Price Range
September 3¢ 2002 v 2001
Ist Quarter  $21.00 - $17.44  $92.75 - $17.69
~ 9nd Quarter  $21.00 - $17.00 = $20.56 - $14.75
3rd Quarter  $22.99 - $19.50 - .$21.14 - $15.00
4th Quarter- -~ $20.75 - $16.94 $99.29 - $17.95
~ ANALYST COVERAGE -

Banc of America Securities, L.L. C
CIBC World Markets

. Credlit Suisse/First Boston
.Deutsche Banc Alex Brown

Fox Pitt, Kelton
Goldman, Sachs & Co.
J.P.Morgan -

o efferies & Company
- Legsg Mason Wood Walker Inc

Lehman Brothers

Merrill tynch & Co.

Morgan Stanley . -

Raymond James

Salomon Smith Barney

SG Cowen Securities Corporation

.- UBS Warburg

Wachovia Securities
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Item 1. Business

General

Health Management Associates, Inc. (the "Company" or the "Registrant") was incorporated in Delaware in
1979 and succeeded to the operations of its subsidiary, Hospital Management Associates, Inc., which was formed in.
1977. The Company provides a broad range of general acute care health services in non-urban communities. As of
September 30, 2002, the Company operated 41 general acute care hospitals with a total of 5,769 licensed beds and
two psychiatric-only hospitals with a total of 134 licensed beds. (See Item 2 "Properties"”) For the year ended
September 30, 2002 ("Fiscal 2002"), the acute care hospital operations accounted for approximately 97% of the
Company's net patient service revenue and the psychiatric-only hospital operations and other revenue accounted for
approximately 3%.

Business Strategy

The Company pursues a business strategy of efficiently and profitably operating its existing base of
facilities and selectively acquiring additional 100 to 300 bed acute care hospitals located in non-urban communities
in market areas of 30,000 to 400,000 people primarily in the southeastern and southwestern United States. The
Company seeks to acquire, at reasonable prices, acute care hospitals which are the sole or predominant health care
providers in their market service areas. In evaluating potential acquisitions, the Company requires a hospital's
market service area to exhibit a demographic need for the facility and to have an established physician base which
can be augmented by the Company’s ability to attract additional physicians to the community. Many of the hospitals
the Company has acquired were unprofitable at the time of acquisition. Upon acquiring a facility, the Company
employs a well-qualified chief executive officer, chief financial officer, and chief nursing officer, implements its
proprietary management information system, recruits physicians, introduces strict cost control measures with respect
to hospital staffing and volume purchasing under Company-wide or group purchasing agreements, and spends the
necessary capital to renovate the facility and upgrade equipment. The Company strives to provide all of the acute
care needs of each community its hospitals serve, thereby reducing the out-migration of potential patients to
hospitals in larger urban areas.

The Company manages each acquired hospital to maximize operating margins and return on capital within
the first 24 to 48 months of operations, a time period which the Company believes is sufficient to fully implement
the plan of improvement. Generally, the Company has been successful in achieving a significant improvement in
the operating performance of its facilities within this time period. Once a facility has matured, the Company
generally achieves additional growth through favorable demographic trends, the continued growth of physicians'
practices in the community, expansion of health care services offered and selective rate increases.

The Company continually seeks to improve the quality of the health care services delivered through a
company-wide proprietary Quality Service Management (“QSM”) program. Upon discharge, all patients are asked
to fill out a confidential survey that seeks the patients perception of the hospitals health care services, including
medical treatment, nursing care, the hospitals attention to patient concerns, the admissions process, room
cleanliness, and the quality of dietary services. The Company’s commitment to quality is evidenced by the
achievements and accomplishments awarded to its hospitals by independent raters of quality for health care
organizations. In Fiscal 2002 such achievements and accomplishments included:

¢ 17 of the Company’s hospitals were surveyed by the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Health Care
Organizations (“JCAHO™). Despite more stringent guidelines adopted by the Commission for 2002, the
Company’s hospitals that were surveyed in 2002 received an average grade of 92 out of a possible 100.

¢ Franklin Regional Medical Center in Louisburg, North Carolina received a JCAHO score of 95, which was
among the higher scores awarded last year by the JCAHO under its new scoring criteria.

¢  Charlotte Regional Medical Center in Punta Gorda, Florida, was named one of the Top 100 Cardiac
Hospitals in America by Solucient, Inc., a provider of independent annual studies that measure the
effectiveness of hospitals’ clinical practices, operations and financial management.

¢  The Heart Program at Medical Center of Mesquite in Mesquite, Texas, was awarded a five-star rating by
Health Grades, Inc., an independent rating agency.



e  Rankin Medical Center in Brandon, Mississippi, was named the best facility for basic life support training
in Mississippi and ranked second for the number of people that it trained in CPR.

o The dietary department at Franklin Regional Medical Center in Louisburg, North Carolina, was awarded a
perfect score of 100 by the North Carolina Board of Health.

Operations and Marketing

Upon acquisition of a hospital, the Company immediately implements its policies to achieve its financial
and operating goals. The Company: (i) appraises current management personne! and makes necessary changes; (ii)
seeks to reduce expenses by managing staffing more effectively and purchasing supplies through volume and group
purchasing agreements; (iil) improves billings and collections; and (iv) installs its proprietary management
information system. The Company's flexible staffing program allows the Company to manage its labor costs
effectively by properly staffing a hospital based on current occupancy, utilizing a combination of full-time and part-
time employees. The Company's proprietary management information system provides the hospital’s chief
executive officer, chief financial officer, and chief nursing officer with the necessary financial and operational
information to operate the hospital effectively and to implement the Company's flexible staffing program. Based on
the information gathered, the Company can also assist physicians in appropriate case management.

The Company also attempts to increase admissions and outpatient business through marketing programs.
The marketing programs of each of the Company's hospitals are directed by the hospital's chief executive officer to
best suit the particular geographic, demographic and economic characteristics of the hospital's market area. A key
element of the Company's marketing strategy is to establish and maintain a cooperative relationship with its
physicians. The Company pursues an active physician recruitment program to attract and retain qualified specialists
and other physicians to broaden the services available and meet identifiablé community needs. The Company's
hospitals often provide newly recruited physicians with various services necessary to relocate and assist them in
opening and commencing the operation of their practices. Such costs are generally expensed as incurred. The
Company's hospitals also pursue various strategies aimed at increasing utilization of their services, particularly
emergency and outpatient services. For example, hospitals offer an emergency service program called “Nurse
First,” which quickly assigns a registered nurse specially trained for emergency room duties to assess the condition
of each patient upon arrival. Other programs include “Pro Med,” an emergency room computer-based diagnostic aid
that helps physicians assess a patient’s medical condition quickly and formulate a diagnosis and course of treatment,
“Med Key,” a plastic identification card that contains a variety of patient information which streamlines the
registration process, and “One Call Scheduling,” a dedicated phone system which physicians and their staff can
utilize to schedule various diagnostic tests and other services easily at one time.

The operations of the Company’s two psychiatric-only hospitals focus mainly on child/adolescent intensive
residential treatment programs. Since the Company’s psychiatric hospitals receive most of their admissions for the
child/adolescent programs from state and locally-sponsored child and adolescent care agencies and the court system,
the majority of the hospitals’ marketing efforts are devoted to these areas. There is little direct marketing to the
public. See “Competition - Psychiatric Hospitals” in this Item 1.

The Company considers its management structure to be decentralized. Its hospitals are run by experienced
chief executive officers, chief financial officers and chief nursing officers that have both the authority and
responsibility for day-to-day operations. Incentive compensation programs have been implemented to reward such
managers for accomplishing established goals. The Company employs a relatively small corporate staff to provide
services such as systems design and development, marketing assistance, training, human resource management,
reimbursement, technical accounting support, purchasing, risk management, and construction management,
Financial control is maintained through fiscal and accounting policies which are established at the corporate level
for use at the hospitals. Financial information is centralized at the corporate level through the Company's
proprietary management information system.



Selected Operating Statistics

The following table sets forth selected operating statistics for the Company's hospitals for the periods and
dates indicated.
Year ended September 30,
2002 2001 2000

Total hospitals owned or leased (as of the end of each period,
except for 2000, which is as of October 1) ... 43 38 37
Licensed beds (as of the end of each period, except for 2000

which is as of October 1) 5,903 3,318 5,090
AdmISSIONS ....ocvvvvenecrrereannene 216,256 187,062 161,855
Patient days ....oceveeiireneeeeee e 1,000,480 880,624 791,617
Acute care average length of stay (days) 4.4 4.5 4.5
Occupancy rate (1) ..o, 48% 47% 46%
Qutpatient utilization (2) 37% T 36% 35%
Earnings margin, before depreciation,

interest and income taxes (excluding minority interest)................. 23% 23% 24%
n Hospital occupancy rates are affected by many factors, including the population size and general economic

conditions within the service area, the degree of variation in medical and surgical products, outpatient use
of hospital services, quality and treatment availability at competing hospitals, and seasonality. Generally,
the Company's hospitals experience a seasonal decline in occupancy in the first and fourth fiscal quarters.

(2) Outpatient revenue as a percent of Total Patient Service Revenue (defined as revenue from all sources
before deducting contractual allowances and discounts from established billing rates).

Competition

Acute Care Hospitals. The health care industry is highly competitive and, in recent years, has been
characterized by increased competition for patients and staff physicians, a shift from inpatient to outpatient settings,
and increased consolidation. The principal factors contributing to these trends are advances in medical technology,
cost-containment efforts by managed care payors, employers and traditional health insurers, changes in regulations
and reimbursement policies, increases in the number and type of competing health care providers and changes in
physician practice patterns. A hospital competes within the geographic area in which it operates by distinguishing
itself based on the quality and scope of medical services provided. With respect to the delivery of general acute care
services, most of the Company's hospitals face less competition in their immediate patient service areas than would
be expected in larger communities. While the Company's hospitals are generally the predominant provider in their
respective communities, most of its hospitals face competition; however, that competition is generally limited to a
single competitor in each respective market. The Company seeks to provide all the acute health care needs in each
community its hospitals serve.

The competitive position of a hospital is increasingly affected by its ability to negotiate service contracts
with purchasers of group health care services. Such purchasers include employers, preferred provider organizations
(“PPOs™) and health maintenance organizations (“HMOs”). PPOs and HMOs attempt to direct and control the use
of hospital services through management of care and either (i) receive discounts from a hospital's established
charges or (ii) pay based on a fixed per diem or on a capitated basis, where hospitals receive fixed periodic payments
based on the number of members of the organization regardless of the actual services provided. To date, HMOs
have not been a competitive factor in the Company's non-urban hospitals. In addition, employers and traditional
health insurers are increasingly interested in containing costs through negotiations with hospitals for managed care
programs and discounts from established charges. In return, hospitals secure commitments for a larger number of
potential patients. Accordingly, the Company has been proactive in establishing or joining such programs to
maintain, and even increase, hospital services. Management believes the Company is able to compete effectively in
its markets, and does not believe such programs will have a significant adverse impact on the Company's net
revenue. See "Operations and Marketing" in this Item 1.




Acquisitions. The Company faces competition for the acquisition of non-urban community acute care
hospitals from proprietary and not-for-profit multi-hospital groups. Some of these competitors may have greater
financial and other resources than the Company. Historically, the Company has been able to acquire hospitals at
reasonable prices. However, increased competition for the acquisition of non-urban community acute care hospitals
could have an adverse impact on the Company's ability to acquire such hospitals on favorable terms.

Consolidation. There has been significant consolidation in the hospital industry over the past decade due,
in large part, to continuing pressures on payments from government and private payors and increasing shifts away .
from the provision of traditional inpatient services. Those economic trends have caused many hospitals to close and
many to consolidate either through acquisitions or affiliations. The Company believes that these cost containment
pressures will continue and will lead to further consolidation in the hospital industry.

Sources of Revenue

The Company receives payment for services rendered to patients from: (i) the Federal government under
the Medicare program,; (ii) each of the states in which its hospitals are located under the Medicaid program; and (iii)
private insurers and patients. The following table sets forth the approximate percentage of Net Patient Service
Revenue (defined as revenue from all sources after deducting contractual allowances and discounts from established
billing rates) derived from the various sources of payment for the periods indicated:

Year Ended September 30,

2002 2001 2000

MEQICATE «vvviviiviite ettt e e e st be e snr et es 38% 39% 40%
IMEAICAIA «oeeeeiiis ittt ettt e e st ca e e a e sae e nn : 9 8 g
Private and other SOUICES ....ccvovvviivviiiie e e 53 33 52

TOAL 1ot 100% 100% 100%

Hospital revenues depend upon inpatient occupancy levels, the extent to which ancillary services and
therapy programs are ordered by physicians and provided to patients, and the volume of outpatient procedures.
Reimbursement rates for inpatient routine services vary significantly depending on the type of service (e.g., acute
care, intensive care or psychiatric) and the geographic location of the hospital. The Company has maintained
increased levels in the percentage of patient revenues attributable to outpatient services in recent years. These
increased levels are primarily the result of advances in medical technology (which allow more services to be
provided on an outpatient basis) and increased pressures from Medicare, Medicaid and private insurers to reduce
hospital stays and provide services, where possible, on a less expensive outpatient basis. The Company's experience
with respect to increased outpatient levels mirror the trend the Company believes is occurring in the hospital
industry.

Medicare. Most hospitals (including all of the Company's acute care hospitals) derive a substantial portion
of their revenue from the Medicare program, which is a Federal government program designed to reimburse
participating health care providers for covered services rendered and items furnished to qualified beneficiaries. The
Medicare program is heavily regulated and subject to frequent changes which in recent years have reduced, and in
future years could further restrict increases in, Medicare payments to hospitals. In light of its hospitals' high
percentage of Medicare patients, the Company's ability in the future to operate its business successfully will depend
in large measure on its ability to adapt to changes in the Medicare program.

The Medicare program is designed primarily to provide health care services to persons aged 65 and over
and those who are chronically disabled or who have End Stage Renal Disease ("ESRD"). The Medicare program is
governed by the Social Security Act of 1965 and is administered by the Federal government, primarily the
Department of Health and Human Services ("DHHS") and the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services
("CMS"), formerly known as the Health Care Financing Administration (“HCFA™).




Legislative action and Federal regulatory changes over the years have resulted in significant changes in the
Medicare program. Formerly, Medicare provided reimbursement for the reasonable direct and indirect costs of
hospital services furnished to beneficiaries, plus an allowed return on equity for proprietary hospitals. Pursuant to
the Social Security Amendments of 1983 (“the Amendments”) and subsequent budget reconciliation act
modifications, Congress adopted a prospective payment system (“PPS”) to reimburse the routine and ancillary
operating costs of most Medicare inpatient hospital services. In November 2000, as described below, a prospective
payment system was proposed for rehabilitation hospitals and rehabilitation units that are a distinct part unit of a
hospital. Psychiatric, long-term care and pediatric hospitals, as well as psychiatric units that are distinct parts of a.
hospital, currently are exempt from PPS and continue to be reimbursed on a reasonable cost basis. Effective August
1, 2000, as also further described below, a prospective payment system was implemented for hospital outpatient
services. The Company’s two psychiatric hospitals do not participate in the Medicare program.

Under PPS, the Secretary of DHHS has established fixed payment amounts per discharge for categories of
hospital treatment, commonly known as diagnosis-related groups ("DRGs"). DRG rates have been established for
each individual hospital participating in the Medicare program, in part based upon each facility's geographic
location. As a general rule under PPS, if a facility's costs of providing care for the beneficiary are less than the
predetermined DRG rate, the facility retains the difference. Conversely, if the facility's costs of providing the
necessary service are more than the predetermined rate, the facility must absorb the loss. Because DRG rates are
based upon a statistically normal distribution of severity, patients falling outside the normal distribution are afforded
additional payments and defined as "outliers." In certain instances, additional payments may be received for
outliers.

The DRG rates are updated annually to account for projected inflation. For several years the annual
updates or percentage increases to the DRG rates have been lower than the actual inflation in the cost of goods and
services purchased by general hospitals. The inflation index used by CMS to adjust the DRG rates gives
consideration to the cost of goods and services purchased by hospitals as well as non-hospitals (the "market
basket"). Pursuant to the Balanced Budget Act of 1997, the net annual updates were set as follows: market basket
minus 1.1% for the Federal fiscal year (“FY”) beginning October 1, 2001 (“FY 2001”) and FY 2002; and for FY
2003 and each subsequent FY, the market basket percentage. The Medicare, Medicaid and State Children’s Health
Insurance Program (“SCHIP”) Benefits Improvement and Protection Act of 2000 (“BIPA”) further revised the
update for FY 2001 to the full market basket and for FY 2002 and FY 2003 to the market basket minus 0.55%. The
Company cannot predict how future adjustments by Congress and the CMS will affect the profitability of its health
care facilities. The increase in the market basket for FY 2002 and FY 2001 was 3.3% and 3.4%, respectively.

On December 21, 2000, BIPA was enacted. BIPA made a number of changes to the Medicare and
Medicaid Acts affecting payments to hospitals which total more than $35 billion nationwide and target $2 billion to
rural providers over the next six years. Some of the changes made by BIPA that affect the Company’s facilities are
as follows: (i) lowering the threshold by which hospitals qualify as rural or small urban disproportionate share
hospitals; (ii) decreasing the reductions in payments to disproportionate share hospitals that had been mandated by
previous Congressicnal enactments; (ili) increasing the update factors for inpatient PPS payments to hospitals; (iv)
increasing certain payments to non-PPS psychiatric hospitals and units; and (v) increasing Medicare reimbursement
for bad debt from 55% to 70%. In addition, BIPA places limits on the amount of co-insurance a Medicare
beneficiary must pay for outpatient services. Under BIPA, outpatient service co-payments are capped at a maximum
of 57% of the Ambulatory Payment Classification (“APC” rate) for the period April 1, 2001 to December 31, 2001,
55% of the APC for calendar years 2002 and 2003; 50% of the APC rate for calendar year 2004; 45% of the APC
rate for calendar year 2005; and, 40% of the APC rate for calendar year 2006 and thereafter. BIPA also directs
DHHS to establish categories of items eligible for additional or “pass-through™ payments to hospitals for certain
outpatient services rendered on or after April 1, 2001 including such items as current cancer therapy drugs,
biologicals, brachtherapy, and medical devices.



Hospitals currently excluded from the PPS, such as psychiatric and rehabilitation hospitals, receive
reimbursement based on their reasonable costs, with limits placed upon the annual rate of increase in operating costs
per discharge. Pursuant to the Balanced Budget Act of 1997, the annual update for FY 1998 was set at 0%. For FY
1999 through FY 2002, the annual update factor was and is dependent upon where the hospital's costs fall in relation
to the limits set by the Tax Equity and Fiscal Responsibility Act of 1982 ("TEFRA"). The annual update factor will
range from 0% to the market basket percentage increase, depending upon whether the hospital's costs are at, below
or above the TEFRA target limits. On November 3, 2000, CMS announced plans to implement a PPS system for
certain rehabilitation hospitals and rehabilitation units of a hospital currently exempt from the PPS system. The -
final rules implementing the rehabilitation PPS were issued on August 7, 2001 and became effective on January 2,
2002 for cost reporting periods beginning on or after January 2, 2002. The payment unit under PPS is a discharge,
and the payment rate will encompass the inpatient operating costs and capital costs of furnishing the covered
rehabilitation services. Payment rates have been calculated using a relative weight system to account for the varying
resources used in each patient category. Payments during FY 2001 and 2002, by statute, are to be budget neutral,
with the FY 2001 payments equaling 98% of the amount the payments would have been if paid under the old
reasonable cost system, and 100% for fiscal year 2002. Although the BBA envisioned a 2-year phase-in period for
the new PPS system, beginning on April 1, 2001, because the final rules were promulgated late, the transitional
phase-in period will be truncated. For cost reporting periods beginning on or after January 2, 2002 and before
October 1, 2002, payment was based on 1/3 of the facility-specific and 2/3 of the FY 2002 Federal prospective
payment. For cost reporting periods beginning on or after October 1, 2002, payment is based solely on the Federal
prospective payment. Under final rules, a facility has the option to select payment solely based on the Federal
prospective rate for periods prior to October 1, 2002. Because of the limited number of rehabilitation beds operated
by the Company, changes under the PPS system will not have a material effect on the Company’s financial results.
The Company’s two psychiatric-only hospitals are exempt from the PPS system.

Prior to October 1, 1990, Medicare payments for outpatient hospital-based services were generally the
lower of hospital costs or customary charges. Due to Federal budget restraints, the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation
Act of 1993 ("OBRA-1993™ reduced Medicare payments for the majority of outpatient services to the lower of
94.2% of hospital costs, customary charges or a blend of 94.2% of hospital costs and a fee schedule (such fee
schedule generally being lower than hospital costs) through FY 1998. The Balanced Budget Act of 1997, and the
Balanced Budget Refinement Act of 1999, extended this reduction to the first date that an outpatient PPS was
implemented. On August 1, 2000, as required by the Balanced Budget Act of 1997 and the Balanced Budget
Refinement Act of 1999, a Medicare PPS went into place for hospital outpatient services. Under the outpatient PPS,
all outpatient services are grouped into Ambulatory Payment Classifications (“APCs™). Services in each APC are
clinically similar and are similar in terms of the resources they require. A payment rate has been established by
CMS for each APC, with adjustments provided for geographic wage differentials. Hospitals may be paid more than
one APC per patient and per encounter, depending upon the services required by and provided to the Medicare
eligible beneficiary. Significantly, the outpatient PPS revises the way in which beneficiary co-insurance amounts
are determined. Initially, co-insurance amounts were based on 20% of the national median charge for the APC. The
Balanced Budget Refinement Act of 1999 limits beneficiary liability so that no co-insurance amount can be greater
than the Medicare hospital inpatient deductible for a given year. The outpatient PPS provides for a transitional
adjustment to limit potential payment reductions experienced as a result of the transition to prospective encounter
payments. For the FY 2000 through FY 2003, providers will receive an adjustment if their payment-to-cost ratio for
outpatient services furnished during such year is less than a set percentage of their payment-to-cost ratio for those
services in their cost reporting period ending in 1996 (the base year). Rural hospitals with 100 or fewer beds and
cancer hospitals will be held harmless under this provision. In addition, small rural hospitals, for services furnished
before January 1, 2004, will be maintained at the same payment-to-cost ratio as their base year cost report, if their
PPS payment-to-cost ratio is less. The outpatient PPS has not had a material impact on reimbursement to the
Company. The Company anticipates the Medicare outpatient prospective payment system will continue to be
refined and future adjustments may limit or reduce payments from the program. OQutpatient laboratory services are
paid based on a fee schedule which is substantially lower than customary charges. Certain ambulatory surgery
procedures are paid for at a rate based on a blend of hospital costs and the rate paid by Medicare for similar
procedures performed in free standing ambulatory surgery centers. Certain radiclogy and other diagnostic services
are paid on a blend of actual cost and prevailing area charge.




Payments under the Medicare program for capital related costs, for cost reporting periods prior to October
1, 1991, were made on a reasonable cost basis. Reasonable capital costs generally include depreciation, rent and
lease expense, capital interest, property taxes, insurance related to the physical plant, fixed equipment and movable
equipment. As a result of changes made to the Social Security Act by the Omnibus Reconciliation Act of 1987
("OBRA-1987"), hospitals paid under PPS for operating costs must be reimbursed for capital costs on a prospective
basis, effective with the cost reporting period beginning October 1, 1991 (i.e.,, FY 1992). CMS implemented the
PPS for capital costs for FY 1992 based upon FY 1989 Medicare inpatient capital costs per discharge updated to FY
1992 by the estimated increase in Medicare capital costs per discharge. A ten year transition period, beginning with
FY 1992, was established for the phasing-in of the capital PPS. Under the transition period rules, hospitals with a
hospital-specific capital rate below the standard Federal rate are paid on a fully prospective methodology. Hospitals
with a hospital-specific rate above the standard Federal rate are paid based on a hold-harmless method or 100% of
the standard Federal rate, whichever results in the higher payment. Beginning with cost reporting periods on or after
October 1, 2001, at the end of the transition period, all hospitals are to be paid at the standard Federal rate. Pursuant
to the Balanced Budget Act of 1997, capital payment rates were rebased in FY 1998 using the actual rates in effect
in FY 1995 and the budget neutrality adjustment factor used to determine the Federal capital payment rate on
September 30, 1995. In addition, capital rates are reduced by an additional 2.1% by the Balanced Budget Act of
1997. For FY 2002, CMS increased the Federal rate by 2.28%. The increase for FY 2003 was 4.2%. The Company
anticipates further adjustments in the future but is unable to predict the amount or impact of future adjustments.

The Medicare program reimburses each hospital on a reasonable cost basis for the Medicare program's pro
rata share of the hospital's allowable capital costs related to outpatient services. Outpatient capital reimbursement
was reduced by 15% (i.e., 85% of outpatient capital costs) during FY 1990 and OBRA-1990 extended the 15%
reduction through FY 1991. OBRA-1990 and OBRA-1993 further directed that outpatient capital reimbursement be
reduced by only 10% beginning FY 1992 through FY 1998. The Balanced Budget Act of 1997 continued the 10%
reduction during FY 2000 up to January 1, 2000. The Company anticipates that payments to hospitals could be
reduced as a result of future legistation but is unable to predict what the amount of the final reduction will be.

On October 1, 2000, as required by the Balanced Budget Act of 1997 and the Balanced Budget Refinement
Act of 1999, Medicare began paying all home health agencies under a PPS system. Medicare will pay home health
care agencies for each covered 60-day episode of care for each Medicare beneficiary who continues to remain
eligible for home health services. The home health care PPS system provides payment at a higher rate for the
beneficiaries with greater medical needs, based upon a payment system that relies upon data collected by caregivers
on a patient clinical assessment. PPS rates vary depending upon the intensity of care required by each beneficiary,
with actual rates adjusted by CMS to reflect the geographic area wage differentials. Home health care agencies will
receive less than the full PPS amounts in those instances where they provide only a minimal number of visits to
beneficiaries. In addition, the new PPS provides for “outlier” payments in instances where the costs of care are
significantly higher than the specified rate. In most other instances, they will be paid the full PPS amount.
Currently, there is not a material impact on the Company due to the implementation of this PPS system. However,
the Company will continue to monitor the progress of the program and take the necessary steps to minimize any
further reductions in payments as a result of this program.

The Balanced Budget Act of 1997 mandated numerous other adjustments and reductions to the Medicare
system that collectively may impact the Company's operations. With respect to the valuation of capital assets as a
result of a change in hospital ownership, the Balanced Budget Act of 1997 eliminates the allowance for return on
equity capital, and bases reimbursement on the book value of the assets, recognizing no gain, loss or recapture of
depreciation. In addition, the Balanced Budget Act of 1997 mandated the following changes: i) reimbursement for
Medicare enrollee deductible and coinsurance bad debts is reduced 40% for FY 2000 and 45% for FY 2001 and each
subsequent year — BIPA further changed the bad debt reimbursement reduction to 30% for FY 2001 and subsequent
years; ii) the bonus payments made to hospitals whose costs are below the target amounts is reduced to 2% of the
target amount; and, iii) skilled nursing home reimbursement must transition to a prospective payment system, based
upon 1995 allowable costs, with a three year transition period beginning on or after July 1, 1998.




The Balanced Budget Refinement Act (“BBRA”) was signed into law on November 29, 1999, and provided
hospitals some relief from the impact of the Balanced Budget Act of 1997. The provisions enacted by the BBRA
did not materially impact the Company. It did, however, indicate the recognition by Congress that further
reductions in payments to hospitals were not necessary. Congress continues to evaluate a number of proposals that
would give hospitals additional relief from the impact of the Balanced Budget Act of 1997. However, the
uncertainty and fiscal pressures placed upon the Federal government as a result of the ongoing War on Terrorism,
and the economic recovery stimulus, may affect the funds available to provide such additional relief in the future.

Medicaid. The Medicaid program, created by the Social Security Act of 1965, is designed to provide
medical assistance to individuals unable to afford care. Medicaid is a joint Federal and state program in which states
voluntarily participate. Payment rates and services covered under the Medicaid program are set by each
participating state. As a result, Medicaid payment rates and covered services may vary from state to state.
Approximately 50% of Medicaid funding comes from the Federal government, with the balance shared by the state
and local govemments. The Medicaid program is administered by individual state governments, subject to
compliance with broadly defined Federal requirements.

The Balanced Budget Act of 1997 repealed the Boren Amendment to the Medicaid Act which had been
interpreted by the Courts as establishing a Federal minimum standard for Medicaid rates payable to hospitals and
nursing homes. Congress repealed the Boren Amendment in order to give states greater flexibility in establishing
Medicaid payment methods and rates. The Boren Amendment required states to undertake a finding analysis and
then to assure the Federal government that their Medicaid rates were reasonable and adequate to meet the costs that
must be incurred by economically and efficiently operated hospitals in providing care to Medicaid recipients. In
place of this minimum standard, Congress has mandated that states employ a rate setting process that requires prior
publication and an opportunity for provider comment on the rates. This replacement requirement became effective
for rates of payment on and after January 1, 1998.

State Medicaid payment methodologies vary from state to state. The most common methodologies are
state Medicaid prospective payment systems or state programs that negotiate payment rates with individual
hospitals. Generally, Medicaid payments are less than Medicare payments and are substantially less than a hospital's
cost of services. In 1991 Congress passed legislation limiting the states' use of provider-specific taxes and donated
funds to bolster the states’ share and obtain increased Federal Medicaid matching funds. Certain states in which the
Company operates have adopted broad-based provider taxes to fund their Medicaid programs in response to the
1991 legislation. Congress has also established a national limit on disproportionate share hospital adjustments
{which are additional amounts required to be paid to hospitals defined as providing a disproportionate amount of
Medicaid and low-income inpatient services). This legislation and the resulting state broad-based provider taxes
have adversely affected the Company's net Medicaid payments, but to date the net impact has not been materially
adverse.

The Federal government and many states are currently considering additional ways to limit the increase in
the level of Medicaid funding, which also could adversely affect future levels of Medicaid payments received by the
Company's hospitals. Because the Company cannot predict precisely what action the Federal government or the
states will take as a result of existing and future legislation, the Company is unable to assess the effect of such
legislation on its business. Like Medicare funding, Medicaid funding may also be affected by health care reform
legislation, and it is impossible to predict the effect such legislation might have on the Company.

TRICARE. Some of the Company's hospitals provide services to retired and certain other military
personnel and their families pursuant to the TRICARE program. TRICARE pays for inpatient acute hospital care on
the basis of a prospectively determined rate applied on a per discharge basis using DRGs similar to the Medicare
system. At this time, inpatient psychiatric hospital services are reimbursed on an individual hospital per diem rate
calculated based upon the average charges for these services by all psychiatric hospitals. The Company can make
no assurance that the TRICARE program will continue per diem reimbursement for psychiatric hospital services in
the future.




The Medicare, Medicaid and TRICARE programs are subject to statutory and regulatory changes,
administrative rulings, interpretations and determinations, requirements for utilization review and new governmental
funding restrictions, all of which may materially increase or decrease program payments as well as affect the cost of
providing services and the timing of payments to facilities. The final determination of amounts earned under the
programs often requires many years, because of audits by the program representatives, providers' rights of appeal
and the application of numerous technical reimbursement provisions. Management believes that adequate provision
has been made for such adjustments. Until final adjustment, however, significant issues remain unresolved and
previously determined allowances could become either inadequate or more than ultimately required.

Commercial Insurance. The Company's hospitals provide services to individuals covered by private health
care insurance. Private insurance carriers either reimburse their policy holders or make direct payments to the
Company's hospitals based upon the particular hospitals’ established charges and the particular coverage program
that provides its subscribers with hospital benefits through independent organizations that vary from state to state.
The Company’s hospitals are paid directly by local Blue Cross organizations on the basis agreed to by each hospital
and Blue Cross by a written contract.

Recently, several commercial insurers have undertaken efforts to limit the costs of hospital services by
adopting prospective payment or DRG-based systems. To the extent such efforts are successful, and to the extent
that the insurers' systems fail to reimburse hospitals for the costs of providing services to their beneficiaries, such
efforts may have a negative impact on the results of operations of the Company's hospitals.

Health Care Reform, Regulation and Other Factors

General. Health care, as one of the largest industries in the United States, continues to attract much
legislative interest and public attention. Medicare, Medicaid, mandatory and other public and private hospital cost-
containment programs, proposals to limit health care spending, proposals to limit prices and industry competitive
factors are highly significant to the health care industry. In addition, the health care industry is governed by a
framework of Federal and state laws, rules and regulations that are extremely complex and for which the industry
often has the benefit of little or no regulatory or judicial interpretation. Although the Company believes it is in
compliance in all material respects with such laws, rules and regulations, if a determination is made that the
Company was in material violation of such laws, rules or regulations, its operations and financial results could be
materially adversely affected.

Licensure, Certification and Accreditation. Health care facility construction and operation is subject to
Federal, state and local regulation relating to the adequacy of medical care, equipment, personnel, operating policies
and procedures, fire prevention, rate-setting and compliance with building codes and environmental protection laws.
Facilities are subject to periodic inspection by governmental and other authorities to assure continued compliance
with the various standards necessary for licensing and accreditation. All of the Company's health care facilities are
properly licensed under appropriate state laws and are certified under the Medicare program or are accredited by the
Joint Commission on Accreditation of HealthCare Organizations or the American Osteopathic Association
("Accredited"), the effect of which is to permit the facilities to participate in the Medicare/Medicaid programs.
Should any Accredited facility lose its accreditation, and then not become certified under the Medicare program, the
facility would be unable to receive reimbursement from the Medicare/Medicaid programs. Management believes
that the Company's facilities are in substantial compliance with current applicable Federal, state, local and
independent review body regulations and standards. The requirements for licensure, certification and accreditation
are subject to change and, in order to remain qualified, it may be necessary for the Company to effect changes in its
facilities, equipment, personnel and services. Although the Company intends to continue its qualification, there can
be no assurance that its hospitals will be able to comply in the future.

Utilization Review. In order to ensure efficient utilization of facilities and services, Federal regulations
require that admissions to, and the utilization of, facilities by Medicare and Medicaid patients be reviewed by a
Federally funded Peer Review Organization ("PRO"). Pursuant to Federal law, the PRO must review the need for
hospitalization and the utilization of services, denying admission of a patient or denying payment for services
provided, where appropriate. Each of the Company's facilities has contracted with a PRO and has had in effect a
quality assurance program that provides for retrospective patient care evaluation and utilization review.



Certificates of Need. The construction of new facilities, the acquisition of existing facilities, and the
addition of new beds or services may be reviewable by state regulatory agencies under a program frequently referred
to as Certificate of Need. Except for Arkansas, Oklahoma, Pennsylvania, and Texas, all of the other states in which
the Company's health care facilities are located have Certificate of Need or equivalent laws which generally require
appropriate state agency determination of public need and approval prior to beds or services being added, or a
related capital amount being spent. Failure to obtain necessary state approval can result in the inability to complete
the acquisition, the imposition of civil or, in some cases, criminal sanctions, the inability to receive Medicare or .
Medicaid reimbursement and/or the revocation of the facility's license.

State Hospital Rate-Setting Activity. The Company currently operates one facility in a state that has some
form of mandated hospital rate-setting. The West Virginia Health Care Authority ("HCA") requires that hospitals
seeking an increase in rates must submit requests for increases to hospital charges annually. Requests for rate
increases are reviewed by the HCA and are either approved at the amount requested, approved for a lower amount
than requested or are rejected. As a result, in West Virginia, the Company’s ability to increase its rates to
compensate for increased costs per admission is limited and the Company’s operating margin on its West Virginia
facility may be adversely affected. There can be no assurance that other states in which the Company operates
hospitals will not enact rate-setting provisions as well.

Anti-kickback and Self-Referral Regulations. During 1998, the Federal government announced that
reducing health care fraud was a top priority. As a result, the health care industry continues to be subjected to
unprecedented scrutiny and a panoply of statutes, regulations and government initiatives intended to prevent those
practices deemed fraudulent or abusive by the government, extensive Federal, state and local regulation relating to
licensure, conduct of operations, ownership of facilities, addition of facilities and services and prices for services. In
particular, Medicare and Medicaid anti-kickback, antifraud and abuse amendments codified under Section 1128B(b)
of the Social Security Act (the "Anti-kickback Amendments") prohibit certain business practices and relationships
that might affect the provision and cost of health care services reimbursable under Medicare and Medicaid,
including the payment or receipt of remuneration for the referral of patients whose care will be paid for by Medicare
or other government programs. Sanctions for violating the Anti-kickback Amendments include criminal penalties
and civil sanctions, including fines and possible exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. Pursuant to
the Medicare and Medicaid Patient and Program Protection Act of 1987, the DHHS has issued regulations that
describe some of the conduct and business relationships permissible under the Anti-kickback Amendments ("Safe
Harbors"). The fact that a given business arrangement does not fall within a Safe Harbor does not render the
arrangement per se illegal. Business arrangements of health care service providers that fail to clearly satisfy the
applicable Safe Harbor criteria, however, risk increased scrutiny by enforcement authorities. Because the Company
may be less willing than some of its competitors to enter into business arrangements that do not clearly satisfy the
Safe Harbors, it could be at a competitive disadvantage.

In addition, Section 1877 of the Social Security Act, enacted on December 19, 1989, which restricts
referrals by physicians of Medicare and other government-program patients to providers of a broad range of
designated health services with which they have ownership or certain other financial arrangements, has been
amended numerous times since initial enactment, the most recent of which was amended effective January 1, 1995,
to significantly broaden the scope of prohibited physician referrals for certain services to entities with which they
have financial relationships (the “Stark Law” or the "Self-Referral Prohibitions"). Final rules implementing the
Self-Referral Prohibitions were adopted by DHHS on August 14, 1995 (the “Stark I” rules) and January 4, 2001 (the
“Stark 1I” rules). Many states have adopted or are considering similar legislative proposals, some of which extend
beyond the Medicaid program to prohibit the payment or receipt of remuneration for the referral of patients and
physician self-referrals regardless of the source of the payment for the care. The Company's participation in and
development of joint ventures and other financial relationships with physicians could be adversely affected by these
amendments and similar state enactments. The Company systematically reviews all of its operations on an ongoing
basis to ensure that it complies with the Social Security Act and similar state statutes. In addition, the Company has
in operation a corporate compliance program at all of the Company's hospitals, which is an ongoing, working
program to monitor and promote continuing compliance with these statutory prohibitions and requirements. (See
“Compliance Program” below for further discussion)
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Both Federal and state government agencies have announced heightened and coordinated civil and criminal
enforcement efforts in accordance with the requirements of recent Federal statutory enactments including the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996. The Company is unable to predict the future course of
Federal, state and local regulation or legislation, including Medicare and Medicaid statutes and regulations. Further
changes in the regulatory framework could have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial condition.

Conversion Legislation. Many states have enacted or are considering enacting laws affecting the
conversion or sale of not-for-profit hospitals. These laws generally require prior approval from state attorney.
generals, advance notification and community involvement. In addition, state attorney generals in states without
specific conversion legislation may exercise authority over these transactions based upon existing law. States are
showing an increased interest in overseeing the sales or conversions of not-for-profit hospitals. The adoption of
conversion legislation and the increased review of not-for-profit hospital conversions may make it more difficult for
the Company to acquire not-for-profit hospitals, or could increase acquisition costs in the future. See “Business
Strategy” in this Item 1.

Environmental Regulations. The Company’s health care operations generate medical waste that must be
disposed of in compliance with Federal, state and local environmental laws, rules and regulations. The Company’s
operations, as well as the Company’s purchases and sales of facilities, are also subject to compliance with various
other environmental laws, rules and regulations. Such compliance does not, and the Company anticipates that such
compliance will not, materially affect the Company’s capital expenditures, financial position or results of operations.

Compliance Program. During 1996 the Company began developing, and in 1997 formally implemented, a
Corporate compliance program to supplement and enhance its existing ethics program. The Company believes its
current compliance program meets or exceeds all applicable Federal guidelines and industry standards. The
program is designed to raise awareness of various regulatory issues among employees and to stress the importance
of complying with all governmental laws and regulations. As part of the program, the Company provides ethics and
compliance training to every employee. Management encourages all employees to report, without fear of retaliation,
any suspected legal or ethical violation to their supervisors, the compliance officer on staff at the hospital or the
Company’s corporate compliance officer. In addition, the Company maintains a 24-hour toll-free telephone hotline,
which is manned by an independent company, so that employees can report suspected violations anonymously.

HIPAA. The Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA”) was enacted on
August 21, 1996. HIPAA is an effort to encourage overall administrative simplification and enhance the
effectiveness and efficiency of the health care industry. It mandates the adoption of standards for the exchange of
electronic health information. The two key factors of HIPAA are accountability and portability. Accountability
refers to the attempt of the legislation to ensure privacy and security of patient information and portability refers to
the legislation’s intent to ensure that individuals can take their medical and insurance records with them when they
change employers.

HIPAA mandates new security measures, sets standards for electronic signatures, standardizes a method for
identifying providers, employers, health plans and patients, requires that the health care industry utilize the most
efficient method to codify data and may significantly change the manner in which hospitals communicate with
payors. These are significant and potentially costly changes to the health care industry.

Although proposed security rules were issued on August 11, 1998, DHHS has yet to adopt final rules
implementing the security and integrity portions of HIPAA. It is anticipated that final security rules will be
promulgated and adopted on or about December 27, 2002. On December 28, 2000, DHHS published final privacy
rules implementing the privacy portions of HIPAA, which were subsequently amended by CMS on August 14,
2002. The final privacy rules were effective April 14, 2001. The privacy rules give patients greater access to their
own medical records and more control over how their personal health information is used and disclosed. The privacy
rules address the obligations of health care providers to protect health information. Providers, including the
Company, have until April 14, 2003 to comply with the privacy rule’s requirements. Sanctions for failing to comply
with HIPAA include criminal penalties and civil sanctions.
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The Company filed a plan with the Secretary of DHHS as permitted under The Administrative
Simplification Compliance Act (the “ASCA™). This law was signed by President Bush on December 27, 2001. The
ASCA granted covered entities a one-year extension (until October 16, 2003) to be in compliance with the electronic
submission requirements of all HIPAA transactions as defined in the rule. The Company anticipates that it will be
in compliance with the transaction standards by October 16, 2003. The Company also anticipates that it will be able
to fully comply with the HIPAA requirements and regulations as they have been adopted to date. The Company has
initiated a plan which will allow it to comply with the currently adopted regulations. Estimating the cost of such
compliance is difficult and no such estimations have been made at this time. Based on its current knowledge, -
however, the Company believes that the cost of its compliance will not have a material adverse effect on its
business, financial condition or results of operations.

Employees and Medical Staff

As of September 30, 2002, the Company had approximately 23,000 full-time and part-time employees,
approximately 600 of whom were covered by three collective bargaining agreements. The Company's corporate
office staff consisted of approximately 100 people at that date. The Company believes that its relations with
employees are satisfactory. In general, the staff physicians at the Company's acute care and psychiatric-only
hospitals are not employees of the Company. The physicians may also be staff members of other hospitals. The
Company provides physicians with certain services and assistance. The Company does employ approximately 100
physicians, approximately one-half of whom are primary care physicians located at clinics the Company owns and
operates. In addition, the Company's hospitals provide emergency room coverage, radiology, pathology and
anesthesiology services by entering into service contracts with physician groups which are generally cancelable on
90 days notice.

Liability Insurance

Through September 2002, the Company insured for its professional liability risks under a “claims-made”
basis policy, whereby each claim is covered up to $1 million per occurrence, subject to a $100,000 deductible (with
an annual deductible cap of $6.1 million). Liabilities in excess of these amounts were covered through a
combination of limits provided by commercial insurance companies and a self-insurance program.

Accruals for self-insured professional liability risks are determined using asserted and unasserted claims
identified by the Company’s incident reporting system and actuarially determined estimates based on Company and
industry historical loss payment patterns and have been discounted to their present value using a discount rate of
6.0%. Although the ultimate settlement of these accruals may vary from these estimates, management believes that
the amounts provided in the Company’s consolidated financial statements are adequate. If actual payments of
claims exceed projected estimates of claims, the Company’s insurance accruals could be materially adversely
affected.

Effective October 1, 2002, in response to difficulty in obtaining primary insurance from commercial
companies at reasonable rates, the Company formed a wholly owned insurance subsidiary in order to self-insure a
greater portion of its primary professional and general liability risk. The captive subsidiary reinsures risk up to $1
million per claim and $3 million in the aggregate per hospital, and further acts as an excess insurer for all hospitals
in combination with three commercial insurance companies.

The Company believes that its insurance is adequate in amount and coverage. There can be no assurance
that in the future such insurance will be available at a reasonable price or that the Company will not have to increase
its levels of self-insurance.

Available Information

The Company maintains an internet website located at www.hma-corp.com. The Company makes
available through such website its Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports
on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act as soon as reasonably practicable after electronically filing such material with the Securities and Exchange
Commission.
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Item 2. Properties

The Company's acute care hospitals offer a broad range of medical and surgical services, including
inpatient care, intensive and cardiac care, diagnostic services and emergency services that are physician-staffed 24
hours a day, seven days a week. The Company also provides outpatient services such as one-day surgery,
laboratory, x-ray, respiratory therapy, cardiology and physical therapy. At certain of the Company's hospitals,
specialty services such as oncology, radiation therapy, CT scanning, MRI imaging, lithotripsy and full-service
obstetrics are provided.

The Company's psychiatric care operations consist of two psychiatric-only hospitals: one 64-bed and one
70-bed intensive residential treatment hospital.

13




The following table presents certain information with respect to the Company's facilities as of September
30, 2002. For more information regarding the utilization of the Company's facilities, see Item 1 “Business -
Selected Operating Statistics."

Owned, Acquisition
Licensed Leased or Commencement
Hospital Location ___ Type _Beds _ Managed Date

Paul B. Hall Regional Medical Center Paintsville, Acute Care 72 Owned January 1979
Kentucky

Williamson Memoria! Hospital Williamson, Acute Care 76 Owned June 1979
West Virginia

Highlands Regional Medical Center Scbring, Acute Carc 126 Leased August 1985
Florida

Lake Norman Regional Medical Center Mooresville, Acute Care 105 Owned January 1986
North Carolina

Fishermen's Hospital Marathon, Acute Care 58 Leased August 1986
Florida

Franklin Regional Medical Center Louisburg, Acute Care 70 Owned August 1986
North Carolina

Biloxi Regional Medical Center Biloxi, Acute Care 153 Leased September 1986
Mississippi

Medical Center of Southeastem Oklahoma Durant, Acute Care 103 Owned May 1987
Oklahoma

Crawford Memorial Hospital Van Buren, Acute Carc 103 Lcascd May 1987
Arkansas

Sandhills Regional Medical Center Hamlet, Acute Care 54 Owned August 1987
North Carolina Psychiatric 10

Upstate Carolina Medical Center Gaffney, Acute Care 125 Owned March 1988
South Carolina

University Behavioral Center Orlando, Psychiatric 70 Owned January 1989
Florida

SandyPincs Tequesta, Psychiatric 64 Owned January 1990
Florida

Riverview Regional Medical Center Gadsden, Acute Care 281 Owned July 1991
Alabama

Hcart of Florida Regional Medical Center Greater Haines Acute Care 75 Owned August {993
City, Florida

Natchez Community Hospital Natchez, Acute Carc 101 Owned September 1993
Mississippi
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Hospital

Sebastian River Medical Center

Charlotte Regional Medical Center

Carolina Pines Regional Medical Center

East Georgia Regional Medical Center

Northwest Mississippi Regional

Mecdical Center

Midwest Regional Medical Center

Stringfellow Memorial Hospital

Rankin Medical Center

Southwest Regional Medical Center

Riley Hospital

River Oaks Hospital

Woman's Hospital at River Oaks

Brooksville Regional Hospital

Spring Hill Regional Hospital

Central Mississippi Medical Center

Lower Keys Medical Center

Owned, Acquisition

Licensed Leased or Commencement

Location Type Beds Managed Date
Scbastian, Acute Care 129 Owned September 1993
Florida
Punta Gorda, Acute Care 156 Owned December 1994
Florida Psychiatric 52
Hartsville, Acute Carc 116 Owned September 1995
South Carolina
Statesboro, Acute Care 150 Owned October 1995
Georgia
Clarksdale, Acute Carc 175 Lecased January 1996
Mississippi Skilled Nursing 20
Midwest City, Acute Care 197 . Leased Junc 1996
Oklahoma Psychiatric 30

Skilled Nursing 20
Anniston, Acute Care 125 Managed January 1997
Alabama
Brandon, Acute Care 120 Leased January 1997
Mississippi Gero-Psych 14
Little Rock, Acute Care 108 Owned November 1997
Arkansas Gero-Psych 17
Meridian, Acute Care 168 Owned January 1998
Mississippi Skilled Nursing 12
Flowood, Acute Care 110 QOwned January 1998
Mississippi
Flowood, Acute Carc 94 Owned January 1998
Mississippi Skilled Nursing 17
Brooksville, Acute Care 91 Leased June 1998
Florida
Spring Hill, Acute Care 75 Leased June 1998
Florida
Jackson, Acute Care 444 Leased April 1999
Mississippi Psychiatric 29
Key West, Acute Care 112 Leased May 1999
Florida Skilled Nursing 15

Psychiatric 40
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Owned, Acquisition

Licensed Leased or Commencement
Hospital Location __Tvpe _ Beds _Managed __ Date .
Community Hospital of Lancaster Lancaster, Acute Care 154 Owned July 1999
Pennsylvania
Lancaster Regional Medical Center Lancaster, Acute Care 268 Owned July 2000
Pennsylvania
Pasco Regional Medical Center Dade City, Acute Care 120 Owned September 2000
Florida
Davis Regional Medical Center (1) Statcsville, Acute Care 149 Owned October 2000
North Carolina
Carlisle Regional Medical Center (2) Carlisle, Acute Care 200 Lcased June 2001
Pennsylvania
Lee Regional Medical Center (3) Pennington Gap,  Acute Care 80 Owned Scptember 2001
Virginia
Lehigh Regional Medical Center (4) Lehigh Acres, Acute Care 88 Owned December 2001
Florida
Jamestown Regional Medical Center (5) Jamestown, Acute Care 85 Owned January 2002
Tennessee
Medical Center of Mesquite (5) (7) Mesquite, Acute Care 176 Owned January 2002
Texas
Santa Rosa Mcdical Center (5) Milton, Acute Care 129 Owned January 2002
Florida
Mesquite Community Hospital (6) (7) Mesquite, Acute Care 172 Owned May 2002
Texas
Total licensed beds owned, leased or managed
at September 30, 2002 2903

1

(2)

3

Effective October 1, 2000, the Company acquired Davis Regional Medical Center pursuant to an
Asset Purchase Agreement. The Agreement included the purchase of substantially all property, plant and
equipment and working capital of the hospital. The total consideration approximated $55.0 million in cash.

Effective June 18, 2001 the Company acquired Carlisle Hospital from Carlisle Hospital and
Health Services, Inc. pursuant to a Definitive Agreement. The Agreement included the lease of certain real
property, the purchase of certain real property and substantially all plant and equipment and working
capital of the hospital. The total consideration involved approximately $41.0 million in cash. The
Company is obligated to the construction of a replacement hospital, subject to obtaining all required
governmental and regulatory approvals.

Effective September 1, 2001, the Company acquired Lee County Community Hospital pursuant to
an Asset Purchase Agreement. The Agreement included the purchase of substantially all property, plant
and equipment and working capital of the hospital. The total consideration approximated $18.0 million in
cash and the assumption of $3.6 million in liabilities.
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“4) Effective December 1, 2001, the Company acquired the assets of East Pointe Hospital. The assets
purchased included substantially all of the property, plant and equipment of the hospital. The total
consideration approximated $16.5 million in cash.

(5) On December 31, 2001 (with an effective date of January 1, 2002), the Company acquired four
acute care hospitals from Clarent Hospital Corporation pursuant to a Stock Purchase Agreement for-
approximately $170.0 million in cash. On the same day the Company sold one of these hospitals to a third
party for $40.0 million in cash.

6) Effective May 1, 2002, the Company acquired Mesquite Community Hospital pursuant to an Asset
Purchase Agreement from Manor Care, Inc. The Company purchased 100 percent of the assets of the
hospital for $80.0 million using cash on hand and subsequently sold back to Manor Care, Inc. a 20 percent
equity interest in such hospital for $16.0 million in cash. As part of the transaction, the Company also sold
to Manor Care, Inc. a 20 percent equity interest in the Medical Center of Mesquite (acquired by the
Company on December 31, 2001) for $16.0 million in cash.

@) The Company owns an 80 percent interest in this hospital pursuant to the transaction described in
(6) above.

As indicated in the table above, the Company currently leases the facilities of Highlands Regional Medical
Center, Fishermen's Hospital, Biloxi Regional Medical Center, Crawford Memorial Hospital, Northwest Mississippi
Regional Medical Center, Midwest Regional Medical Center, Rankin Medical Center, Brooksville Regional
Hospital/Spring Hill Regional Hospital, Central Mississippi Medical Center, Lower Keys Medical Center and
Carlisle Regional Medical Center pursuant to long-term leases expiring in 2025, 2011, 2040, 2027, 2025, 2026,
2026, 2027, 2028, 2040, 2029 and 2006, respectively, which provide the Company with the exclusive right to use
and control the hospital operations.

The Company's corporate headquarters are located in an office building complex in Naples, Florida, which
was purchased by the Company during Fiscal 2002. The Company uses approximately 20 percent of the complex
and leases the remaining space.

The Company believes that all of its facilities are suitable and adequate for its needs. Certain of the
Company's hospitals are subject to mortgages securing various borrowings. See Note 3 of the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 hereof.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

The Company is subject to claims and legal actions by patients and others in the ordinary course of
business. The Company believes that all such claims and actions are either adequately covered by insurance or are
unlikely, individually or in the aggregate, to have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial condition.
(See also Item 7 — Critical Accounting Policies, Professional Liability Insurance Claims)

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2002.
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Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following is certain information regarding the executive officers of the Company.

William J. Schoen, age 67, has served as Chairman of the Board since April 1986. He was first elected a
director in February 1983, became President and Chief Operating Officer in December 1983, Co-Chief Executive
Officer in December 1985 and Chief Executive Officer in April 1986. He served as President until April 1997 and
Chief Executive Officer until January 2001. From 1982 to 1987 Mr. Schoen was Chairman of Commerce National
Bank, Naples, Florida, and from 1973 to 1981 he was President, Chief Operating Officer and Chief Executive
Officer of The F&M Schaefer Corporation, a consumer products company. From 1971 to 1973, Mr. Schoen was
President of the Pierce Glass subsidiary of Indian Head, Inc., a diversified company. Mr. Schoen also serves on the
Board of Directors of Horace Mann Insurance Companies.

Joseph V. Vumbacco, age 57, became Chief Executive Officer of the Company in January 2001. Prior to
that and since April 1997, he has been the Company’s President, as well as serving as Chief Administrative Officer
and Chief Operating Officer. He joined the Company as an Executive Vice President in January 1996 after 14 years
with The Turner Corporation (construction and real estate), most recently as an Executive Vice President. Prior to
joining Turner, he served as the Senior Vice President and General Counsel for The F&M Schaefer Corporation, and
previously was an attorney with the Manhattan law firm of Mudge, Rose, Guthrie & Alexander. Mr. Vumbacco was
elected a director by the Board of Directors in May 2001.

Timothy R. Parry, age 47, is Senior Vice President and General Counsel of the Company. He joined the
Company in February 1996 as a Divisional Vice-President and Assistant General Counsel after 12 years in the law
firm of Harter, Secrest & Emery, the last seven years as partner. Prior to joining Harter, Secrest & Emery he was an
Assistant Ohio Attorney General for two years and before that a'law clerk for the United States District Court for the
Southern District of Ohio.

Robert E. Farnham, age 47, is Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company. He
joined the Company in 1985 and served as the Company’s Controller for twelve years before his promotion to Chief
Financial Officer in March 2001. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Farnham, who is a C.P.A., was with Cooper’s
& Lybrand, LLP.
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PART H

Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

The Company completed an initial public offering of its Class A Common Stock on February 5, 1991. The
Company's Class A Common Stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “HMA”. At
December 16, 2002 there were approximately 1,500 record holders of the Company's Class A Common Stock. The
following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low sale prices per share of the Company's Class A -
Common Stock as listed on the New York Stock Exchange.

High Low

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

First QUATLET .voveniiiiieiieie e $22.75 $17.69

Second QUATET ....ccccvereimniierieieerec s 20.56 13.42

Third QUarter ......ooceecevviieiiie e 21.14 15.00

Fourth QUarter .........c.ocoeeevevrvverreiennience e $2222 $17.95
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

First QUAarter .....c...oovievvieiiieiccerecee e $21.00 $17.44

Second QUArter .........ccoeveveeiiieiriecen e e 21.00 17.00

Third QUArter .........oooeevvieeieicr e 22.99 19.50

Fourth Quarter ........cccocoveveieceeiiirncen e $20.75 $16.24

On October 29, 2002, the Board of Directors initiated a quarterly cash dividend policy and declared its first
cash dividend of $0.02 per share of the Company’s common stock payable on December 2, 2002 to stockholders of
record at the close of business on November 8, 2002. Prior to the initiation of this quarterly cash dividend policy,
the Company had not paid any cash dividends since inception.

In September 2001, the Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program to repurchase up to
5,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. On January 29, 2002, the Company announced that it had
completed the stock repurchase program by purchasing a total of 5,000,000 shares of its common stock at an
average purchase price of $19.29 per share.

In February 2002, the Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program to repurchase up to
5,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. On August 8, 2002, the Company announced that it had
completed the stock repurchase program by purchasing a total of 5,000,000 shares of its common stock at an
average purchase price of $18.54 per share.

At September 30, 2002 and 2001, there were approximately 14.5 million shares of common stock reserved
for future issuance upon the conversion of the Company’s Convertible Senior Subordinated Debentures due 2020.
At September 30, 2002, there were approximately 10.6 million shares of common stock reserved for future issuance
upon the conversion of the Company’s Zero-Coupon Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes due 2022 (see Note
No. 3(b) of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 hereof).
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Plan category

Equity compensation

plans approved by

security holders..............
Equity compensation

plans not approved

by security holders..........

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of securities
to be issued
upon exercise of
outstanding options,
warrants and rights

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding options,
warrants and rights

Number of securities
remaining available for
future issuance under
equity compensation plans
(excluding securities
reflected in column (a))

(@) (b)
19,865,000 $13.33
19,865,000 $13.33

(©)

13,068,000

13,068,000

The following table summarizes certain selected financial data of the Company and should be read in
conjunction with the related Consolidated Financial Statements and accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements in Item 8§ hereof.

HEALTH MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATES, INC.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY OF SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Net patient service revenue

Costs and expenses(1)

Income before income taxes(2)
Net income(2)

Net income per share-diluted(2)
Weighted average number of
shares outstanding-diluted

Cash dividends per common share

At Year End

Working capital

Total assets

Short-term debt

Long-term debt

Stockholders' equity

Book value per common share

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Year ended September 30

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
$2,262,601 $1,879,801 $1,577,767 $1,355,707 $1,138,802
1,856,939 1,558,850 1,301,772 1,109,054 913,523
405,662 320,951 275,995 246,653 225,279
246,436 194,978 167,667 149,845 136,844
$ .97 $ .76 3 .68 3 59 $ .54
260,641 264,351 247277 255,067 255,575
3 422,043 3 377,144 $ 317,181 $ 250,549 $ 196,578
2,364,317 1,941,577 1,772,065 1,527,381 1,106,022
7,609 6,752 6,523 9,351 8,544
650,159 428,990 520,151 401,522 134,217
1,346,752 1,253,649 1,030,066 890,523 756,825
$ 5.65 $ 5.11 3 4.24 § 362 $ 3.01

(1) For the year ended September 30, 2002, amount includes minority interests in earnings of consolidated entities.

(2) As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, in accordance with SFAS No. 142, the Company
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discontinued the amortization of goodwill effective October 1, 2001, The selected financial data summarized for the years
ended September 30, 1998 through September 30, 2001 has not been adjusted for the effect of this accounting change.




Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the-
United States requires management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the Consolidated Financial Statements and the accompanying Notes.

The Company considers its critical accounting policies to be those that require the more significant
judgments and estimates in the preparation of the Company’s financial statements, including the following:

Net Patient Service Revenues

The Company derives a significant portion of its revenues from the Medicare and Medicaid programs and
from managed care health plans. Payments for services rendered to patients covered by these programs are
generally less than billed charges. For Medicare and Medicaid revenues, provisions for contractual adjustments are
made to reduce the charges to these patients to estimated receipts based upon the programs’ principles of
payment/reimbursement (either prospectively determined or retrospectively determined costs). Final settlements
under these government programs are subject to administrative review and audit, and provision is currently made for
adjustments which may result. Provisions for contractual allowances under managed care health plans are based
primarily on the payment terms of contractual arrangements such as predetermined rates per diagnosis, per diem
rates or discounted fee for service rates. Historical collection rates, law changes and changes in contract terms are
closely monitored to be certain that provisions are made using the most accurate information available. However,
due to the complexities involved in these estimations, actual payments could be different from the amounts
estimated and recorded in the contractual provisions included in these financial statements.

Provision for Doubtful Accounts

The collection of receivables from third party payers and patients is the Company’s primary source of cash
and is critical to its operating performance. The primary collection risks relate to uninsured patient accounts and
patient accounts for which the primary insurance payor has paid, but patient responsibility amounts (generally
deductibles and co-payments) remain outstanding. Provisions for doubtful accounts are estimated based primarily
upon the age of patients’ account, the patients’ economic ability to pay and the effectiveness of collection efforts.
Accounts receivable balances are routinely reviewed in conjunction with historical collection rates and other
economic conditions which might ultimately affect the collectibility of patient accounts when considering the
adequacy of the amounts recorded as reserves for doubtful accounts. Significant changes in payer mix, business
office operations, economic conditions or trends in Federal and state governmental health care coverage could affect
the Company’s collection of accounts receivable, cash flows and results of operations.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company periodically reviews the carrying values of long-lived assets, including goodwill, for
impairment of value. In performing the review of asset impairment, management calculates future cash flows
expected to result from these assets and determines whether the asset is impaired. Significant judgments are required
by management in determining these future cash flows as well as determining whether the asset is impaired.
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Income Taxes

Management must make estimates in recording the Company’s provision for income taxes, including
determination of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities and any valuation allowances that might be required
against the deferred tax assets. Management believes that future income will enable the Company to realize these
benefits in the future and, therefore, has not recorded any valuation allowance against the deferred tax asset.

The Company operates in multiple states with varying tax laws. The Company is subject to both Federal
and state audits of tax returns. The Company’s Federal income tax returns have been examined by the Internal -
Revenue Service through Fiscal Year 1999, which resulted in no material adjustments. Management must make
estimates to determine that tax reserves are adequate to cover any potential audit adjustments.

Professional Liability Insurance Claims

Through September 30, 2002, the Company insured for its professional liability risks under a “claims-
made” basis policy, whereby each claim is covered up to $1 million per occurrence, subject to a $100,000 deductible
(with an annual deductible cap of $6.1 million). Liabilities in excess of these amounts are covered through a
combination of limits provided by commercial insurance companies and a self-insurance program.

Accruals for self-insured professional liability risks are determined using asserted and unasserted claims
identified by the Company’s incident reporting system and actuarially determined estimates based on Company and
industry historical loss payment patterns and have been discounted to their present value using a discount rate of
6.0%. Although the ultimate settlement of these accruals may vary from these estimates, management believes that
the amounts provided in the Company’s consolidated financial statements are adequate. If actual payments of claims
exceed projected estimates of claims, the Company’s insurance accruals could be materially adversely affected.

Effective October 1, 2002, in response to difficulty in obtaining primary insurance from commercial
companies at reasonable rates, the Company formed a wholly owned insurance subsidiary in order to self-insure a
greater portion of its primary professional and general liability risk. The captive subsidiary reinsures risk up to $1
million per claim and $3 million in the aggregate per hospital, and further acts as an excess insurer for all hospitals
in combination with three commercial insurance companies.

Results of Operations
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

Net patient service revenue for Fiscal 2002 was $2,262.6 million, as compared to $1,879.8 million for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2001 (“Fiscal 2001"). This represented an increase in net patient service revenue of
3382.8 million, or 20.4%. Hospitals in operation for the entire period of Fiscal 2002 and Fiscal 2001 (“same
hospitals”) provided $139.7 million of the increase in net patient service revenue, which resulted primarily from
inpatient and outpatient volume increases and rate increases. The source of the remaining net increase of $243.1
million included the following: (i) $240.4 million of net patient service revenue from Fiscal 2001 and Fiscal 2002
acquisitions including the June 2001 acquisition of a 200-bed hospital, the September 2001 acquisition of an 80-bed
hospital, December 2001 acquisition of an 88-bed hospital, the January 2002 acquisitions of an 85-bed hospital, a
129-bed hospital and a 126-bed hospital, and the May 2002 acquisition of a 172-bed hospital, and (ii) $2.7 million
increase in net patient service revenue from psychiatric hospitals and other corporate revenue.

The Company’s hospitals generated 1,000,480 patient days of service in Fiscal 2002, which produced an
overall occupancy rate of 47.9%. During Fiscal 2001 the Company’s hospitals generated 880,624 patient days of
service for an overall occupancy rate of 47.2%. Admissions in same hospitals for Fiscal 2002 increased 2.2%, from
184,533 to 188,576.
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The Company’s salaries and benefits, supplies and other expenses and provision for doubtful accounts for
Fiscal 2002 were $1,698.0 million, or 75.0% of net patient service revenue, as compared to $1,390.4 million, or
74.0% of net patient service revenue for Fiscal 2001. Of the total $307.6 million increase approximately $94.9
million related to same hospitals, which was largely attributable to increased inpatient and outpatient volumes.
Another $199.5 million of increased operating expenses related to the acquisitions mentioned previously. The
remaining increase of $13.2 million represented an increase in corporate and miscellaneous other operating
expenses. During Fiscal 2002, the Company’s rent expense increased by $6.2 million, which resulted both from
acquisitions and the expansion of hospital services.

During Fiscal 2002, the Company’s depreciation and amortization costs increased by $4.7 million. The
increase in depreciation and amortization resulted primarily from the acquisitions mentioned previously, offset by a
decrease in amortization expense related to the Company’s adoption of SFAS No. 142 on October 1, 2001. Interest
expense decreased $4.4 million due to paydowns on higher interest rate debt and lower interest rates on the
remaining overall outstanding debt. The non-cash charge for retirement benefits and write down of assets held for
sale during Fiscal 2001 represents: (i) the present value of the future costs of retirement benefits granted to the
Company’s chairman pursuant to an employment agreement which became effective January 2, 2001, and (i) the
write down of two hospital assets held for sale in conjunction with their respective replacement.

The Company’s income before income taxes was $405.7 million for Fiscal 2002 and, excluding the non-
recurring charge for retirement benefits and write down of assets held for sale of $17.0 million, the Company’s
income before taxes was $338.0 million for Fiscal 2001, an increase of $67.7 million or 20.0%. Including the non-
cash charge, income before income taxes was $321.0 million for Fiscal 2001. As noted above, the increased
profitability resulted from an increase in same hospital inpatient and outpatient business, rate increases, and from the
acquisitions previously mentioned. The Company’s provision for income taxes was $159.2 million for Fiscal 2002
as compared to $126.0 million for Fiscal 2001. These provisions reflect an effective income tax rate of
approximately 39.3% for Fiscal 2002 and Fiscal 2001. As a result of the foregoing, the Company’s net income was
$246.4 million for Fiscal 2002 and $205.3 million for Fiscal 2001, excluding the non-cash charge, and $195.0
million including such charge.

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2000

Net patient service revenue for Fiscal 2001 was §1,879.8 million, as compared to $1,577.8 million for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2000 (“Fiscal 2000"). This represented an increase in net patient service revenue of
$302.0 million, or 19.1%. Hospitals in operation for the entire period of Fiscal 2001 and Fiscal 2000 (“same
hospitals™) provided $134.0 million of the increase in net patient service revenue, which resulted primarily from
inpatient and outpatient volume increases. The source of the remaining net increase of $168.0 million included the
following: (i) $169.5 million of net patient service revenue from Fiscal 2000 and Fiscal 2001 acquisitions including
the July 2000 acquisition of a 268-bed hospital, the October 2000 acquisition of a 149-bed hospital system, the June
2001 acquisition of a 200-bed hospital system and the September 2001 acquisition of a 80-bed hospital, and (ii) $1.5
million decrease in net patient service revenue from psychiatric-only hospitals, due primarily to the closure of one
facility as of December 2000.

The Company’s hospitals generated 880,624 patient days of service in Fiscal 2001, which produced an
overall occupancy rate of 47.2%. During Fiscal 2000, the Company’s hospitals generated 791,617 patient days of
service for an overall occupancy rate of 46.2%. Admissions in same hospitals for Fiscal 2001 increased 4.8%, from
158,830 to 166,521.

The Company’s salaries and benefits, supplies and other expenses and provision for doubtful accounts for
Fiscal 2001 were $1,390.4 million, or 74.0% of net patient service revenue, as compared to $1,163.8 million, or
73.8% of net patient service revenue for Fiscal 2000. Of the total $226.6 million increase approximately $92.5
million related to same hospitals, which was largely attributable to increased inpatient and outpatient volumes.
Another $132.3 million of increased operating expenses related to the acquisitions mentioned previously. The
remaining increase of $1.8 million represented an increase in Corporate and miscellaneous other operating expenses
offset by a reduction in expenses resulting from the closure of one psychiatric facility as previously noted. The
Company’s Fiscal 2001 rent expense increased by $2.7 million, which resulted both from acquisitions and the
expansion of hospital services.
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The Company’s depreciation and amortization costs increased by $16.1 million. Approximately $8.0
million of the increase resulted from the acquisitions mentioned above with the remaining increase attributable to
two replacement hospitals opened in Fiscal 2000, as well as ongoing building improvements and equipment
purchases. Interest expense decreased $5.4 million due to paydowns and lower interest rates on the Company’s
Revolving Credit Agreement. The non-cash charge of §17.0 million was for retirement benefits and write down of
assets held for sale during Fiscal 2001. This charge related to (1) the present value of the future costs of retirement
benefits granted to the Company’s chairman pursuant to an employment agreement which became effective January
2, 2001, and (2) the write down of two hospital assets held for sale subsequent to their respective replacement.

The Company’s income before income taxes was $321.0 million for Fiscal 2001 as compared to $276.0
million for Fiscal 2000, an increase of $45.0 million or 16.3%. Excluding the non-recurring charge for retirement
benefits and write down of assets held for sale of $17.0 million, income before taxes was $338.0 million for Fiscal
2001 as compared to $276.0 million for Fiscal 2000, an increase of $62.0 million or 22.5%.  As noted above, the
increased profitability resulted from an increase in same hospital inpatient and outpatient business and from the
acquisitions previously mentioned. The Company’s provision for income taxes was $126.0 million for Fiscal 2001
as compared to $108.3 million for Fiscal 2000. These provisions reflect an effective income tax rate of 39.25% for
Fiscal 2001 and Fiscal 2000. As a result of the foregoing, the Company’s net income was $195.0 million for Fiscal
2001 including the aforementioned charge, and $205.3 million excluding the charge, as compared to $167.7 million
for Fiscal 2000.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Fiscal 2002 Cash Flows Compared to Fiscal 2001 Cash Flows

Working capital increased to $422.0 million at September 30, 2002 from $377.1 million at September 30,
2001, resulting primarily from increased business volumes and good management of the Company’s working
capital. The Company’s cash flows from operating activities increased by $57.9 million from $296.2 million in
Fiscal 2001 to $354.1 million in Fiscal 2002. Improved profitability contributed to the majority of this net increase.
The use of the Company’s cash in investing activities increased by $172.2 million from $171.0 million in Fiscal
2001 to $343.2 million in Fiscal 2002, resulting primarily from the acquisitions of five hospitals in Fiscal 2002
compared to two hospital acquisitions in Fiscal 2001. The Company’s cash flows from financing activities
increased $113.9 million from $71.4 million used in Fiscal 2001 to $42.5 million provided in Fiscal 2002. The
increase is primarily the result of net payments on debt of $93.5 million in Fiscal 2001 versus net proceeds from
borrowings of debt of $215.8 million which was offset by $186.4 million used for stock repurchases in Fiscal 2002.

Fiscal 2001 Cash Flows Compared to Fiscal 2000 Cash Flows

Working capital increased to $377.1 million at September 30, 2001 from $317.2 million at September 30,
2000, resulting primarily from increased business volumes and good management of the Company’s working
capital. The Company’s cash flows from operating activities increased by $116.7 million from $179.5 million in
Fiscal 2000 to $296.2 million in Fiscal 2001. Improved profitability contributed to the majority of this net increase.
The use of the Company’s cash in investing activities decreased from $250.9 million in Fiscal 2000 to $171.0
million in Fiscal 2001, resulting from smaller outlays of cash for acquisitions and replacement hospitals in Fiscal
2001 compared to Fiscal 2000. The Company’s cash flows from financing activities decreased $146.3 million from
$74.9 million provided in Fiscal 2000 to $71.4 million used in Fiscal 2001. The decrease is primarily the result of
net proceeds from borrowings of debt of $104.3 million in Fiscal 2000 versus net payments on debt of $93.5 million
in Fiscal 2001.
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Capital Resources

The Company currently has a 5-year $450 million Credit Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) due
November 30, 2004, The Credit Agreement is a term loan agreement which permits the Company to borrow under
an unsecured revolving credit loan at any time through November 30, 2004, at which time the agreement terminates
and all outstanding amounts become due and payable. The Company may choose a Base Rate Loan (prime interest
rate) or a Eurodollar Rate Loan (LIBOR interest rate). The interest rate for a Eurodollar Rate Loan is currently -
LIBOR plus 1.00 percent, and will increase or decrease in relation to a change in the Company’s credit rating.
Monthly or quarterly interest payments are required depending on the type of loan chosen by the Company. The
interest rate at September 30, 2002 and 2001 was 2.8% and 3.7%, respectively. As of September 30, 2002, there
were no amounts outstanding under the Credit Agreement.

The Company also has a $15 million unsecured revolving credit commitment with a bank. The $15 million
credit is a working capital commitment which is tied to the Company’s cash management system, and renews
annually on November 1. Currently, interest on any outstanding balance is payable monthly at a fluctuating rate not
to exceed the bank’s prime rate less 1/4%. The interest rate at September 30, 2002 and 2001 was 4.5% and 6.0%,
respectively. As of September 30, 2002 and 2001, there were no amounts outstanding under this credit agreement.

In addition, the Company is obligated to pay certain commitment fees based upon amounts available for
borrowing during the terms of the credit agreements described above.

The credit agreements contain covenants which, without prior consent of the banks, limit certain activities,
including those relating to mergers, consolidations and the Company’s ability to secure additional indebtedness,
make guarantees, grant security interests and declare dividends. The Company must also maintain minimum levels
of consolidated tangible net worth, debt service coverage and interest coverage. At September 30, 2002, the
Company was in compliance with these covenants.

On August 16, 2000, the Company sold $488.8 million face value of Zero-Coupon Subordinated
Convertible Debentures due 2020 (the “Debentures”) for gross proceeds of $287.7 million. The Debentures mature
on August 16, 2020 unless converted or redeemed earlier. The Debentures are convertible into the Company’s
common stock at a conversion rate of 29.5623 shares of common stock for each $1,000 principal amount of the
Debentures (equivalent to a conversion price of $19.9125 per share). Interest on the Debentures is payable
semiannually in arrears on August 16 and February 16 of each year at a rate of .25% per year on the principal
amount at maturity. The rate of cash interest and accrual of original issue discount represent a yield to maturity of
3% per year calculated from August 16, 2000.

Holders may require the Company to purchase all or a portion of their Debentures on August 16, 2003,
August 16, 2008 and August 16, 2013 for a purchase price per Debenture of $635.88, $724.58 and $827.53,
respectively, plus accrued and unpaid interest to each purchase date. The Company may choose to pay the purchase
price in cash or common stock or a combination of cash and common stock. In addition, upon a change in control of
the Company occurring on or before August 16, 2003, each holder may require the Company to repurchase all or a
portion of such holder’s Debentures. The Company may redeem all or a portion of the Debentures at any time on or
after August 16, 2003. There are approximately 14.5 million shares of common stock reserved for future issuance
upon the conversion of the Company’s Debentures,

On January 28, 2002, the Company sold $330.00 million in face value of Zero-Coupon Convertible Senior
Subordinated Notes due 2022 (the “Notes™) for gross proceeds of approximately $277.0 million. The Notes are the
Company’s general unsecured obligations and are subordinated in right of payment to the Company’s existing and
future indebtedness that is not, by its terms, expressly subordinated or pari passu in right of payment to the Notes.
The Debentures rank pari passu with the Notes. The Notes mature on January 28, 2022, unless converted or
redeemed earlier. Upon the occurrence of certain events, the Notes are convertible into the Company’s common
stock at a conversion rate of 32.1644 shares of common stock for each $1,000 principal amount of the Notes
(equivalent to a conversion price of $26.11 per share). The equivalent number of shares associated with the
conversion of the Notes become dilutive (and thus would be included in the Company’s earnings per share
calculation) when the Company’s common stock attains a level of $31.33 for at least 20 trading days of the 30
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trading days prior to the conversion or the Notes otherwise become convertible. The accrual of the original issue
discount represents a yield to maturity of 0.875% per year calculated from January 28, 2002, excluding any
contingent interest which could be payable under the terms of the Notes.

Holders may require the Company to purchase all or a portion of their Notes on January 28, 2005, January
28, 2007, January 28, 2012 and January 28, 2017 for a purchase price per note of $862.07, $877.25, §916.40 and
$957.29, respectively, plus accrued and unpaid interest to each purchase date. The Company will pay cash for all
Notes so purchased on January 28, 2005. The Company may choose to pay the purchase price in cash or common
stock or a combination of cash and common stock for purchases on or after January 28, 2007. In addition, upon a..
change in control of the Company occurring on or before January 28, 2007, each holder may require the Company to
purchase all or a portion of such holder’s Notes. The Company may redeem all or a portion of the Notes at any time
on or after January 28, 2007. There are approximately 10.6 million shares of common stock reserved for future
issuance upon the conversion of the Notes.

Legislative and regulatory action has resulted in continuing change in the Medicare and Medicaid
reimbursement programs which will continue to limit payment increases under these programs. However, the
Company believes that these continued changes will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s future
revenue or liquidity. Within the statutory framework of the Medicare and Medicaid programs, there are substantial
areas subject to administrative rulings, interpretations and discretion which may further affect payments made under
those programs, and the Federal and state governments might, in the future, reduce the funds available under those
programs or require more stringent utilization and quality reviews of hospital facilities, either of which could have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s future revenue and liquidity. Additionally, any future restructuring of the
financing and delivery of health care in the United States and the continued rise in managed care programs could
have an effect on the Company’s future revenue and liquidity. See Item 1 “Sources of Revenue” and “Regulation
and Other Factors.”

Capital Expenditures

Effective December 1, 2001, the Company acquired the assets of East Pointe Hospital. The assets
purchased included substantially all of the property, plant and equipment of the hospital. The total consideration
approximated $16.5 million in cash.

On December 31, 2001 (with an effective date of January 1, 2002), the Company acquired four acute care
hospitals from Clarent Hospital Corporation pursuant to a Stock Purchase Agreement for approximately $170.0
million in cash. On the same day the Company sold one of these hospitals to a third party for $40.0 million in cash.

Effective May 1, 2002, the Company acquired Mesquite Community Hospital pursuant to an Asset
Purchase Agreement from Manor Care, Inc. The Company purchased 100 percent of the assets of the hospital for
$80.0 million using cash on hand and subsequently sold back to Manor Care, Inc. a 20 percent equity interest in such
hospital for $16.0 million in cash. As part of the transaction, the Company also sold to Manor Care, Inc. a 20
percent equity interest in the Medical Center of Mesquite (acquired by the Company on December 31, 2001) for
$16.0 million in cash.

The Company financed the above acquisitions through a combination of cash on hand and borrowings
under its Credit Agreement.

In September 2001, the Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program to repurchase up to
5,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. On January 29, 2002, the Company announced that it had
completed the stock repurchase program by purchasing a total of 5,000,000 shares of its common stock at an
average price of $19.29 per share. The Company used cash on hand for these purchases.

In February 2002, the Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program to repurchase up to
5,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. On August 8, 2002, the Company announced that it had
completed the stock repurchase program by purchasing a total of 5,000,000 shares of its common stock at an
average purchase price of $18.54 per share. The Company used cash on hand for these purchases.
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On August 1, 2002, the Company purchased an office complex in Naples, Florida consisting of two
commercial office buildings, including the one that houses the Company’s corporate headquarters. The Company
paid $25.8 million for the office complex, consisting of $5.8 million in cash and $20.0 million financed using a 5-
year note bearing interest at LIBOR rate plus .75%.

The Company currently has a number of hospital renovation/expansion projects underway. None of these
projects are individually significant nor do they represent a significant commitment in total to the Company. In
addition, the Company plans to replace three of its existing hospitals and build one new hospital over the next four,
years. Regulatory approval to begin construction on one replacement facility has been granted while the remaining
planned projects are awaiting regulatory approval by the appropriate agencies. Included in these planned projects is
the Company’s obligation to construct a new facility at its Carlisle, Pennsylvania location.

The Company anticipates spending between approximately $120 and $125 million for capital equipment
and renovations during the fiscal year ending September 30, 2003 (“Fiscal 2003"). At the present time, cash on
hand, internally generated funds in Fiscal 2003, and funds available under the Credit Agreement are expected to be
sufficient to satisfy the Company's requirements for capital expenditures, future acquisitions and working capital in
Fiscal 2003.

Impact of Seasonality and Inflation

The Company’s business is seasonal, with higher patient volumes and net patient service revenue in the
second and third quarters of the Company’s fiscal year. This seasonality occurs because more people become ill
during the winter months, which results in significant increases in the number of patients treated in the Company’s
hospitals during those months.

The health care industry is labor intensive. Wages and other expenses increase especially during periods of
inflation and when shortages in the marketplace occur. In addition, suppliers pass along rising costs to the Company
in the form of higher prices. The Company has, to date, offset increases in operating costs to the Company by
increasing charges for services and expanding services. The Company has also implemented cost control measures
to curb increases in operating costs and expenses. The Company cannot predict its ability to cover or offset future
cost increases.
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Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements contained in this Form 10-K, including, without limitation, statements containing the
words “believes, "

[TINT3

anticipates,” “intends,” “plans,” “expects” and words of similar import, constitute “forward-
looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking
statements are based upon the Company’s current plans, expectations and projections about future events. However,
such statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause the actual results,
performance or achievements of the Company to be materially different from any future results, performance or
achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such factors include, among others, the.
following: general economic and business conditions, both nationally and in the regions in which the Company
operates; demographic changes; existing governmental regulations and changes in, or the failure to comply with,
governmental regulations; legislative proposals for health care reform; the ability to enter into managed care
provider arrangements on acceptable terms; changes in Medicare and Medicaid payment levels; liability and other
claims asserted against the Company; competition; the loss of any significant ability to attract and retain qualified
personnel, including physicians; the availability and terms of capital to fund additional acquisitions or replacement
facilities. Given these uncertainties, prospective investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such
forward-looking statements. The Company disclaims any obligation to update any such factors or to publicly
announce the results of any revision to any of the forward-looking statements contained herein to reflect future
events or developments.

Item 7A.Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
Interest Rates

The Company is exposed to interest rates, primarily as a result of its $450 million Credit Agreement with a
floating interest rate (see financial statement note No. 3). The Company is currently not using derivative instruments
to alter the interest rate characteristics of the Company’s variable rate long term debt. The following table
summarizes principal cash flows and related weighted average interest rates by expected maturity dates. At
September 30, 2002 the fair value of the Company’s fixed rate debt was $679.6 million, while the carrying value
was approximately $638.3 million. At September 30, 2002 the fair value of the Company’s variable rate debt was
$19.5 million, while the carrying value was approximately $19.5 million.

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Thereafter Total

(in millions, except interest rates)

Long term debt:

Fixed rate long-term debt $5.6 $6.1 $5.7 $4.7 $3.4 $30.8 $56.3
Average interest rates 7.8% 7.8% 7.7% 7.6% 7.5% 7.5% 7.6%
Fixed rate convertible

long-term debt - - - - - $582.0 $582.0
Average interest rate 2.0% 2.0%

Variable rate
long-term debt $2.0 $2.0 $2.0 $2.0 $11.5 - $19.5
Average interest rate * * * * * *

* The interest rate is LIBOR plus 0.75 percent. The interest rate on the outstanding balance at September
30, 2002 was 2.6%.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Health Management Associates, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Health Management Associates, Inc.
and subsidiaries as of September 30, 2002 and 2001, and the related consolidated statements of income,
stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended September 30, 2002. Our audits
also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 14(a). These financial statements and
schedule are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Health Management Associates, Inc. and subsidiaries at September 30, 2002 and
2001 and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended September 30, 2002, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Also,
in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of
accounting for the excess of cost over acquired net assets during the year ended September 30, 2002.

Ernst & Young LLLP

Tampa, Florida
October 23, 2002
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HEALTH MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Net patient SErvice TEVENUE ......ccocervvrreereriiiiriecercieereneresnesaesnennas

Costs and expenses:
Salaries and benefits ...
Supplies and other ........c.occocniiiiiiiiic e
Provision for doubtful accounts ..........ccocviiirivrciniicnnin
Depreciation and amortization ..............cocvvorvrececimereeeniemicnernnns
RENt EXPENSE ..o
INEETESt, NEL ..o
Non-cash charge for retirement benefits and write down of
assets held for sale........occocvininiinci e

Total costs and EXPENSEeS ......c..cccverrrrriceriiernere e

Income before minority interests and income taxes ...............c....
Minority interests in earnings of consolidated entities..................

Income before INCOME tAXES....ccviviiiieiicriie st

Provision for INCOME tAXES ...oovvioiiiieri e

NELINCOIMIE 1oiiiviiiviretieiit i vrer et e st e et et ses e sn e eatesenaas

Net income per share:
BaSIC oot s

Weighted average number of
shares outstanding:
BaSiC .o s

Year ended September 30,

2002 2001 2000

(in thousands, except per share data)
$2,262,601 $1,879,801 §1,577,767
874,729 710,535 569,112
650,852 535,926 458,817
172,430 143,923 135,862
95,328 90,646 74,499
47,048 40,850 38,118
15,543 19,970 25,364
- 17.000 -
1,855,930 1,558.850 1,301,772
406,671 320,951 275,995
1.009 - -
405,662 320,951 275,995
159,226 125,973 108,328
$ 246436 § 194978 § 167,667
$ 1.02 $ 80 § 69
3 97 3 76 $ 68
241,298 244,425 241,946
260,641 264,351 247,277

See accompanying notes.
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Current assets:

HEALTH MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands)

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents ..........coocooonnninnin
Accounts receivable, less allowances for doubtful
accounts of $138,616 and $116,785 at September

30, 2002 and 2001,

TESPECHIVELY wovviiiiiiicic e

Accounts receivable - Other .....ooviiiiiieiicc et e

Supplies, at cost ......

Prepaid expenses and other assets .........ccoooiicvciiiccinnciici
Funds held by trUStee ......ccoooiiiiiiiiiii s
Deferred inCOME tAXES ...ecuvvruerirciiiiiieie e s

TOtal CUITENT ASSELS ..vvvviveeiie et e e et e e e e e rae e

Property, plant and equipment:
Land and improvements ..........coccoiove i
Buildings and improvements .........cccevvveimirierieneneeneereeseessens s aeereerenieniens

Leaseholds ..............
Equipment ...............

ConStruction iN PrOZIESS .ccoerereriririririiieriereeceeeconcaresaesnsssesenssmsresaes

Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization .................... vt

Net property, plant and equIpmMent .........coecvecervvcrinconimcecn e

Funds held by trustee

Excess of cost over acquired net assets, NEt .......covvievievereeiernieereeieseennenns
Deferred charges and other assets ........c.ocovvvirveiineeniin e

See accompanying notes.
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2002 2001
$ 123,736 § 70,263
418,264 350,941
36,163 29,195
59,412 50,113
19,622 19,026
2,628 1,892
35.961 43.801
695,786 565,231
78,879 53,582
964,100 824,363
104,672 103,272
518,129 435,903
57,563 36,783
1,723,343 1,453,903
(441.,561) (364.490)
1,281,782 1,089,413
1,450 1,791
335,313 251,315
49.986 33.827
$2,364317 31,941,577




HEALTH MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands)

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current liabilities:

ACCOUNLES PAYADIE 1.ooviiiiiiiiiiii it
Accrued payroll and related taxes ...
Accrued expenses and other liabilities ...
Due 0 third Party PAYOTS ....ovciviieriiiicr et e st st
Income taxes - currently payable. ...
Current maturities of long-term debt .......ccocvvcriniinieriiii e

Total current JIADIHHES ...ccooeoviiii ittt

Deferred INCOME tAXES ...ooiiviiiiiiiiiiei ettt ettt et et benebanas
Other long-term Habilities .........ccooiiiiiii e
LONG-terT dEDE ..ottt s

Minority interests in conselidated entities..........ccoocoviiiiiiniiiiic

Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value, 5,000 shares

BULNOTIZEA 1ivviriiiei ettt e s et e et b et varae s oae s e bt s s resaenbeeeees

Common stock, Class A, $.01 par value, 750,000
shares authorized, 261,067 and 258,074
shares issued September 30, 2002

and 2001, reSPECLIVELY ..ot et e e
Additional paid-in-capital ... e
Retained CarMINES «..cc.ooviiriiriiiiiiiis ettt st eeanias et et e et ats et sneenaenens

Less: treasury stock, 22,500 and 12,639 shares at

September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively ..cocooiviiiiiicvie e

Total stockholders' €QUILY .......covviieririireiere e e

See‘accompanying notes.
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September 30,

2002 2001
$ 132,228 $ 91,862
39,397 31,942
61,381 41,675
21,900 14,500
11,228 1,356
7.609 6.752
273,743 188,087
17,861 34,286
42,793 36,565
650,159 428,990
33,009 -
2,611 2,581
373,214 340,192
1,271.583 1,025,147
1,647,408 1,367,920
(300,656) (114.271)
1,346,752 1,253,649
32,364,317 51,941,577




HEALTH MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Years ended September 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000
(in thousands)

Balance at September 30, 1999.........c.occcvvrinnnne.

Exercise of stock options..........c.occvveeiiinirinne
Income tax benefit from exercise

Of StOCK OPHIONS. ..c.ceueierierri e e
Purchase of treasury stock, at cost..........ccceeeeie
NEtINCOME. ...voviiieviirisvrtirre e csiaie e e e enine

Balance at Septernber 30, 2000...........coccoevveennee

Exercise of stock options.........c.coccoeeiiiininn.
Income tax benefit from exercise

Of StOCK OPtIONS. c.cvvevece e
Purchase of treasury stock, at cost.. ..........cc.c......
Net InCOme ..o,

Balance at September 30, 2001.......covivieeernnnnnn,

Exercise of stock options ............c..c.ocoocerinnnnn
Income tax benefit from exercise

of stock Options ..........coccoeoviiiiiinii e
Purchase of treasury stock, at cost ...
Net iNCOME ..ot e

Common Stock

Par

Shares Value
253,405 $2,534

1,952 20
255,357 2,554

2,717 27
258,074 2,581

2,993 30
261,067 $2,611

See accompanying notes.

Additional :
Paid-in Retained Treasury
Capital Earnings Stock
$294,579 $ 662,502 $ (69,092)

11,611 - .
2,644 - -
- - (42,399)
- 167,667 -
308,834 830,169 (111,491)
25,245 - -
6,113 - .
- - (2,780)
- 194,978 -
340,192 1,025,147 (114,271)
14,629 - .
18,393 - -
- - (186,385)
- 246436 -
$373,214 31,271,583  $(300,656)




HEALTH MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Year ended September 30.

2002 2001 2000
Cash flows from operating activities:
NELINCOIME oottt e e b e $ 246,436 $194,978 $ 167,667
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization .............cocvveevevercene 95,328 90,646 74,499
Provision for doubtful accounts.........oceeevieviicrinnnn. 172,430 143,923 135,862
Loss (gain) on sale of fixed assets ..........cccocoeeirrnee. 62 (6) 85
Change in deferred income taxes..........ccoocoevvveninnee (8,585) (6,600) (4,979)
Charges for retirement benefits and write down of
assets held forsale ..., - 17,000 -
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects of
acquisitions:
Accounts receivable ... (209,972) (149,288) (160,239)
SUPPLIES ettt (4,656) (9,993) (4,802)
Prepaid expenses and other assets ...........cccocvvcerreenn, 479 257) (9,146)
Deferred charges and other assets ........ccocovvveevnianrennn. (1,035) (6,018) (10,426)
Accounts payable ... 29,746 13,315 4,632
Accrued expenses and other liabilities ..................... 7,915 2,053 1,785
Income taxes — currently payable ... 28,260 5,347 (15,512)
Other long-term liabilities .........cccccooviiiirvcnccnnnn, (2.272) _1.055 115
Net cash provided by operating activities ........c.cco.coeevrveenns 354.136 296,155 179,541
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of facilities, net of cash acquired and
purchase price adjustments.........ccoovevininveerenerenenernnens (300,179) (100,894) (130,402)
Additions to property, plant and equipment ...........ccccoeeevn (116,047) (73,473) (120,704)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment ......... 41,074 3,357 207
Proceeds from sale of minority interests in
consolidated entities ..........cc.ocooeirriniiini e 32,000 - -
Net cash used in investing activities ..........c.occovveeeerivrereeinen. $(343.152) $(171.010) $(250.899)

See accompanying notes.
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HEALTH MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(in thousands)

Year ended September 30,

2002 2001 2000
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from fong-term BOrrowings ........ccocoevevveniiiininnieneinnns $479,314 $ 35,591 $ 447,117
Principal payments on debt ... (263,482) (129,098) (342,774)
Purchase of treasury stock, at COSt........ccvmiimninininiriiis (186,385) (2,780) (42,399)
Proceeds from issuance of common Stock ....ccovovvvervriinininiininnns 14,659 25,272 11,631
Payment of interest on debentures ..., (1,222) (1,222) -
(Decrease) increase in funds held by trustee ..........c...c.cocoovie (395 884 1,328
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities .................... 42.489 (71.353) 74,903
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents......cc.ooecvvnniniiiinnn, 53,473 53,792 3,545
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ...........cccocvrennnn. 70,263 16471 12.926
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ..o $ 123,736 $ 70,263 S 16,471
Supplemental schedule of noncash
investing and financing activities:
Fair value of assets acquired (including cash) ..o, § 292,456 $ 63,049 $ 136,649
Consideration: Cash paid .......c.ooovvvermcniociiic i, 291,435 59.436 130,402
Liabilities assumed .......coccoooev v, § 1021 $ 3,613 § 6,247

See accompanying notes.
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HEALTH MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2002

1. Business and summary of significant accounting policies

Health Management Associates, Inc. (the “Company”), through its subsidiary companies, substantially all of which
are wholly-owned, provides health care services to patients in owned and leased facilities primarily in the southeast and
southwest United States. The Company consistently applies the following significant accounting policies:

a. Principles of consolidation ‘ .
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries in which the
Company exercises control. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

b. Cash equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with a maturity of less than three months to be cash
equivalents. The Company's cash equivalents consist principally of investment grade instruments.

c. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost and include major expenditures which increase their values or
extend their useful lives. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight line method based on estimated
useful lives. Estimated useful lives for buildings and improvements range from twenty to forty years and for equipment
range from three to ten years. Leaseholds are amortized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the respective leases.
Depreciation expense was $91.9 million, $77.3 million and $63.7 million for the years ended September 30, 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively.

d. Excess of cost over acquired net assets, net and deferred charges and other assets

Prior to October 1, 2001, excess of cost over acquired net assets (goodwill) had been amortized on a straight-line
basis over lives ranging from three to twenty-five years. As of October 1, 2001, the Company adopted the provisions of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. SFAS No. 142
requires that goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives no longer be amortized, but instead tested for
impairment at least annually in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 142. The transition provisions of SFAS No.
142 require the completion of a transitional impairment test within six months of adoption of SFAS No. 142. The Company
completed the required transitional impairment test in March 2002, which resulted in no goodwill impairment.

Deferred charges and other assets consist principally of deferred financing costs and certain non-productive assets
held for sale. The financing costs are being amortized over the life of the related debt. The accumulated amortization of
deferred financing costs was $4.5 million and $3.7 million at September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Certain long-lived assets may become impaired, requiring a writedown of the assets to their estimated fair values.
The Company periodically reviews future cash flows related to these assets, and if necessary, will reduce such assets to
their estimated fair values.

e. Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States requires management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

J- Net patient service revenue and accounts receivable

Approximately 59%, 59% and 60% of gross patient service charges for the years ended September 30, 2002, 2001
and 2000, respectively, relates to services rendered to patients covered by the Medicare and Medicaid programs. Payments
for services rendered to patients covered by these programs are generally less than billed charges. Provisions for
contractual adjustments are made to reduce the charges to these patients to estimated receipts based upon the programs'’
principles of payment/reimbursement (either prospectively determined or retrospectively determined costs). Final
settlements under these programs are subject to administrative review and audit, and provision is currently made for
adjustments which may result. Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are extremely
complex and subject to interpretation. As a result, there is a possibility that recorded estimates may change in the future.
Revenues and receivables from government programs are significant to the Company’s operations, but the Company does
not believe that there are significant credit risks associated with these government programs.

Estimates for contractual allowances under managed care health plans are based primarily on the payment terms of
contractual arrangements such as predetermined rates per diagnosis, per diem rates or discounted fee for service rates.
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HEALTH MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. Business and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Net patient service revenue is presented net of provisions for contractual adjustments and other allowances of
$4.121 billion, $2.981 billion and $2.195 billion in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income. In the ordinary course of business, the Company renders services in its facilities to patients who are
financially unable to pay for their hospital care. The value of these services to patients who are unable to pay is not
material to the Company's consolidated results of operations.

g Provision for doubtful accounts

The collection of receivables from third party payers and patients is the Company’s primary source of cash and is
critical to its operating performance. The primary collection risks relate to uninsured patient accounts and patient accounts
for which the primary insurance payer has paid, but patient responsibility amounts (generally deductibles and co-payments)
remain outstanding. Provisions for doubtful accounts are estimated based primarily upon the age of the patients’ account,
the patients’ economic ability to pay and the effectiveness of collection efforts. Accounts receivable balances are routinely
reviewed in conjunction with historical collection rates and other economic conditions which might ultimately affect the
collectibility of patient accounts when considering the adequacy of the amounts recorded as allowances for doubtful
accounts. Significant changes in payer mix, business office operations, economic conditions or trends in Federal and state
governmental health care coverage could affect the Company’s collection of accounts receivable, cash flows and results of
operations.

h. Professional liability insurance claims

The Company insures for its professional liability risks under a “claims-made” basis policy. Each claim is covered
up to §1 million per occurrence, subject to a $100,000 deductible the Company must pay (with an annual deductible cap of
$6.1 million). Liabilities in excess of these amounts are covered through a combination of limits provided by commercial
insurance companies and a self-insurance program. (see Note 9)

Estimates for self-insured professional liability risks are determined by management using the Company’s incident
reporting system and actuarially determined amounts. The estimates are continually reviewed and adjustments recorded as
experience develops and/or new information becomes available. Actual results could vary from those estimates recorded.

i. Minority interests in consolidated entities

The consolidated financial statements include all assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of less than 100%
owned entities controlled by the Company. Accordingly, the Company has recorded minority interests in the earnings and
equity of such entities.

J. Income itaxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. Deferred income
tax assets and liabilities are determined based upon difference between financial reporting and tax bases of assets and
liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected to
reverse (see Note 5). Management must make estimates in recording the Company’s provision for income taxes, including
determination of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities and any valuation allowance that might be required against
the deferred tax asset. Management believes that future income will enable the Company to realize these benefits in the
future; therefore, the Company has not recorded a valuation allowance against the deferred tax asset.

The Company operates in multiple states with varying tax laws. The Company is subject to both Federal and state

audits of tax returns. Management must make estimates to determine that tax reserves are adequate to cover any potential
audit adjustments. Actual results of those audits, if any, could vary from the estimates recorded by management.
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1. Business and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

k. Earnings per share
Earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of common and common equivalent shares (stock
options and convertible debt) outstanding during the periods presented (see Note 7).

1. Segment reporting

The Company’s business of providing health care services to patients in owned and leased facilities comprises a
single reportable operating segment under SFAS No. 131, Disclosures About Segments of an Enterprise and Related
Information.

m. Reclassifications ‘
Certain amounts have been reclassified in prior years to conform with the current year presentation.

n. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, the Company discontinued the amortization of goodwill effective October 1,
2001. During the years ended September 30, 2001 and 2000, the Company recorded $9.2 million and $7.8 million of
goodwill amortization expense which reduced earnings by approximately $5.5 million and $4.7 million (net of tax expense
of approximately $3.7 million and $3.1 million), or approximately $0.02 per share on a diluted basis for 2001 and 2000,
respectively.

In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment
or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, which addresses financial accounting and reporting for the impairment or disposal of
long-lived assets and supersedes SFAS No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived
Assets to be Disposed Of, and the accounting and reporting provisions of APB Opinion No. 30, Reporting the Results of
Operations, for a disposal of a segment of a business. SFAS No. 144 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December
15, 2001. The Company will adopt SFAS No. 144 as of October 1, 2002 and does not expect the adoption will have a
significant impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.
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2. Acquisitions and dispositions

During 2002, the Company acquired certain assets of two hospitals and the stock of three hospitals through
purchase agreements for $226.2 million in cash and the assumption of $1.0 million in labilities. During 2001, the Company
acquired certain assets of two hospitals through purchase agreements for $59.4 million in cash and the assumption of $3.6
million in liabilities. During 2000, the Company acquired certain assets of three hospitals (one at September 30, 2000)
through purchase agreements for $130.4 million in cash and the assumption of $6.2 million in liabilities. The foregoing
acquisitions were accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. The allocation of the purchase price has been
determined by the Company based upon available information and is subject to further refinement.

As part of a group purchase of four hospitals during 2002, the Company acquired one acute-care hospital and sold
it on the same day for $40.0 million in cash.

The operating results of the foregoing hospitals have been included in the accompanying consolidated statements
of income from the respective dates of acquisition. The following unaudited pro forma combined summary of operations of
the Company for each of the years in the three year period ended September 30, 2002 give effect to the operation of the
hospitals purchased in 2002, 2001 and 2000 as if the acquisitions had occurred as of October 1, 2000, 1999 and 1998,
respectively:

2002 2001 2000
(in millions, except per share data)
Net patient SErvice TEVENUE. ....cuvvrvivvieieerireeeee e eeeesienee s $ 2,403.0 § 2,139.9 S 1,963.7
NEEINCOME .ovirenircirnree et see e ranas s 253.0 $ 19238 § 164.6
Net income per share - Basic.......cocoucovenrireiineinr v $ 1.05 by 79 8 67
Net income per share - Diluted ......cc.coooovvivinivnninniees $ .99 $ 75 A .64

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the year ended September 30, 2002 are as follows:

Balance at September 30, 2001..........cccoernn. $ 251,315

Goodwill acquired during the year ................ 92,061
[mpairment 10SSeS ....cocovevvvvvceeirinrinireconirens. -
Goodwill written off related to disposals........

(071115 OO U (8,063)
Balance at September 30,2002 ......c.ccccooeee e, $ 335,313
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3. Long-term debt
The Company's long-term debt consists of the following:
September 30,

2002 2001
(in thousands)

Revolving Credit Agreements (8) .......ocooovveecrmrcrcininimsienrerereonecreeens b - § 45,000
Zero-Coupon Subordinated Convertible Debentures due 2020 at 3%,
net of discount of $184.9 and $192.6 million at September 30, 2002

and 2001, respectively (D)oo 303,274 295,864
Zero-Coupon Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes due 2022

at 0.875%, net of discount of $51.2 million at September 30, 2002(b)... 278,757 -
Mortgage notes, secured by real and personal property (€) .....ccccoeeeennn 10,417 50,486

Various mortgage and installment notes and debentures, some
secured by equipment, at interest rates ranging from 6% to

prime plus 1%, payable through 2009 ... 28,368 9,939
Industrial Revenue Bond ISSue .......ccccoviiiiiiiiiniiie e 5,190 5,580
Capitalized lease obligations (see Note 4) .....ooccovvniiiiciniiniiciin e 31,762 28.873
657,768 435,742

Less CUrrent MAatUIItIES .ooviivievrerreee e e eeirie ittt rrrer e ennse e sences 7,609 6,752
$650.159 3428,990

a. Revolving Credit Agreements

The Company currently has a 5-year $450 million Credit Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) due November 30,
2004. The Credit Agreement is a term loan agreement which permits the Company to borrow under an unsecured revolving
credit loan at any time through November 30, 2004, at which time the agreement terminates and all outstanding amounts
become due and payable. The Company may choose a Base Rate Loan (prime interest rate) or a Eurodollar Rate Loan
(LIBOR interest rate). The interest rate for a Eurodollar Rate Loan is currently LIBOR plus 1.00 percent, and will increase
or decrease in relation to a change in the Company’s credit rating. Monthly or quarterly interest payments are required
depending on the type of loan chosen by the Company. The interest rate at September 30, 2002 and 2001 was 2.8% and
3.7%, respectively. As of September 30, 2002, there were no amounts outstanding under the Credit Agreement.

The Company also has a §15 million unsecured revolving credit commitment with a bank. The $15 million credit
commitment is a working capital commitment which is tied to the Company’s cash management system, and renews
annually on November 1. Currently, interest on any outstanding balance is payable monthly at a fluctuating rate not to
exceed the bank’s prime rate less .25%. The interest rate at September 30, 2002 and 2001 was 4.5% and 6.0%,
respectively. As of September 30, 2002 and 2001, there were no amounts outstanding under this credit commitment.

In addition, the Company is obligated to pay certain commitment fees based upon amounts available for borrowing
during the terms of the credit agreements described above.

The credit agreements contain covenants which, without prior consent of the banks, limit certain activities,
including those relating to mergers, consolidations and the Company’s ability to secure additional indebtedness, make
guarantees, grant security interests and declare dividends. The Company must also maintain minimum levels of
consolidated tangible net worth, debt service coverage and interest coverage. At September 30, 2002, the Company was in
compliance with these covenants.
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3. Long-term debt (Continued)

b.  Subordinated Convertible Debentures and Notes

On August 16, 2000, the Company sold $488.8 million face value of Zero-Coupon Subordinated Convertible
Debentures due 2020 (the “Debentures”) for gross proceeds of $287.7 million. The Debentures mature on August 16, 2020
unless converted or redeemed earlier. The Debentures are convertible into the Company’s common stock at a conversion
rate of 29.5623 shares of common stock for each $1,000 principal amount of the Debentures (equivalent to a conversion
price of $19.9125 per share). Interest on the Debentures is payable semiannually in arrears on August 16 and February 16
of each year at a rate of .25% per year on the principal amount at maturity. The rate of cash interest and accrual of original
issue discount represent a yield to maturity of 3% per year calculated from August 16, 2000.

Holders may require the Company to purchase all or a portion of their Debentures on August 16, 2003, August 16,
2008 and August 16, 2013 for a purchase price per Debenture of $635.88, $724.58 and $827.53, respectively, plus accrued
and unpaid interest to each purchase date. The Company may choose to pay the purchase price in cash or common stock or
a combination of cash and common stock. In addition, upon a change in control of the Company occurring on or before
August 16, 2003, each holder may require the Company to repurchase all or a portion of such holder’s Debentures. The
Company may redeem all or a portion of the Debentures at any time on or after August 16, 2003.

On January 28, 2002, the Company sold $330.00 million in face value of Zero-Coupon Convertible Senior
Subordinated Notes due 2022 (the “Notes™) for gross proceeds of approximately $277.0 million. The Notes are the
Company’s general unsecured obligations and are subordinated in right of payment to the Company’s existing and future
indebtedness that is not, by its terms, expressly subordinated or pari passu in right of payment to the Notes. The
Debentures rank pari passu with the Notes. The Notes mature on January 28, 2022, unless converted or redeemed earlier.
Upon the occurrence of certain events, the Notes are convertible into the Company’s common stock at a conversion rate of
32.1644 shares of common stock for each $1,000 principal amount of the Notes (equivalent to a conversion price of $26.11
per share). The equivalent number of shares associated with the conversion of the Notes become dilutive (and thus would
be included in the Company’s earnings per share calculation) when the Company’s common stock attains a level of $31.33
for at least 20 trading days of the 30 trading days prior to the conversion or the Notes otherwise become convertible. The
accrual of the original issue discount represents a yield to maturity of 0.875% per year calculated from January 28, 2002,
excluding any contingent interest which could be payable under the terms of the Notes.

Holders may require the Company to purchase all or a portion of their Notes on January 28, 2005, January 28,
2007, January 28, 2012 and January 28, 2017 for a purchase price per note of $862.07, $877.25, $916.40 and $957.29,
respectively, plus accrued and unpaid interest to each purchase date. The Company will pay cash for all Notes so
purchased on January 28, 2005. The Company may choose to pay the purchase price in cash or common stock or a
combination of cash and common stock for purchases on or after January 28, 2007. In addition, upon a change in control of
the Company occurring on or before January 28, 2007, each holder may require the Company to purchase all or a portion of
such holder’s Notes. The Company may redeem all or a portion of the Notes at any time on or after January 28, 2007.

¢. Morigage Notes

The Company has four mortgage notes at September 30, 2002 and six mortgage notes at September 30, 2001
which are secured by all the real and personal property related to facilities with a net book value of $64.5 million and $96.3
million at September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The notes are payable in various installments with maturity dates
ranging from 2002 through 2007 and carry interest rates ranging from prime (4.75% and 6.0% at September 30, 2002 and
2001, respectively) to 11.5%.

As of September 30, 2002 and 2001, the quoted market price for the Debentures was approximately $335.4 million
and $340.3 million, respectively. As of September 30, 2002, the quoted market price for the Notes was approximately
$287.9 million. The fair value of the other debt included above, based on available market information, approximates its
carrying value.
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3. Long-term debt (Continued)

Maturities of long-term debt and capital leases for the next five fiscal years and thereafter, are as follows (in
thousands):

2003 s 7,609
2004 8,100
2005 7,708
2006 6,742
2007 14,936
Thereafter $612,673

The Company paid interest of $7.4 million, $14.9 million and $31.1 million for the years ended September 30,
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. There was no capitalized interest for the years ended September 30, 2002 and 2001.
Capitalized interest totaled $3.1 million for the year ended September 30, 2000.

4, Leases

The Company leases real estate properties, equipment and vehicles under cancelable and non-cancelable leases.

Future minimum operating and capital lease payments, including amounts relating to leased hospitals, are as follows at
September 30, 2002 (in thousands):

Operating Capital
Real
Real Property and

September 30, Property Egquipment Eguipment Total
2003 o § 6,469 $21,310 $ 5,839 § 33,618
2004 . 5,800 16,674 5,714 28,188
2005 (o 5,432 12,674 5,134 23,240
2006 ..., 4,589 8,439 4,247 . 17,275
2007 o 3,869 3,550 3,048 10,467
Thereafter ......c.ococooevenine 19.479 1,259 35.649 56,387
Total minimum payments $45,638 $63,906 59,631 $169,175
Less amounts

representing interest........ 27.869
Present value of minimum

lease payments ................ $31,762

The following summarizes amounts related to assets leased by the Company under capital leases (in thousands):

September 30,

2002 2001
08ttt ettt et $76,819 $71,870
Less accumulated amortization ..........o..oooveveeieeviienns (16,729) (17.191)
Netbook value .......c.cccovioiivc s $60,090 §$54.679

The Company entered into capitalized leases for equipment of $8.7 million, $4.0 million and $.2 million for the
years ended September 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
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5. Income taxes

The significant components of the provision for income taxes are as follows (in thousands):

Year ended September 30,

2002 2001 2000
Federal:
(000 V4 (=111 A O OSSO $144,017 $§114,109 $96,713
Deferred ..ooveiiiiiiicc e (11,322) (6,731) (3.439)
Total Federal .......ooocviviviieiiiiiiceecei e 132,695 107,378 93,274
State:
(0111543 1 SRR 28,794 19,823 16,594
DEferred ..o (2.263) (1.228) (1.540)
Total STALE ..ovviviriri e e 26,531 18,595 15,054
TOtAl Lot e $§159.226  $125.973 $108.,328

An analysis of the Company's effective income tax rates is as follows:

Year ended September 30,

2002 2001 2000

Statutory income

1AX TALS L.eoveiireceerires e e $141,982 35.0% $112,333 35.0% $96,598 35.0%
State income taxes, net

of Federal benefit .......cccocevvvrvernennnn, 15,824 39 12,628 3.9 10,797 3.9
Other items (each less

than 5% of computed

TAX) -t 1420 __ 4 1012 _ 4 933 _ 4

Total e, $159,226 39.3% $125,973 39.3% $108,328 39.3%

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the Federal and state deferred
income tax assets and liabilities are comprised of the following:

September 30,
2002 2001
(in thousands)

Deferred income tax assets:

Allowance for doubtful accounts $27,417 $ 24,082
Accrued liabilities 14,645 10,524
Self insurance liability risks 17,505 6,519
Other 3.606 2,676
63,173 43,801
Less: Valuation allowance - -
Net deferred income tax assets 63,173 43,801
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Depreciable assets (38,441) (32,124)
Accrued liabilities and other (6.632) (2,162)
Net deferred income tax asset 518,100 $ 9515
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S. Income taxes (continued)

SFAS No. 109 requires a valuation allowance to reduce the deferred tax assets reported if, based on the weight of
the evidence, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. After
consideration of all the evidence, both positive and negative, management has determined that a valuation allowance is not
necessary as of September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Income taxes paid (net of refunds) amounted to $139.7 million, $126.1 million, and $123.6 million for the years
ended September 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
6. Retirement plans

The Company has a defined contribution retirement plan which covers substantially all eligible employees at its
hospitals and the corporate office. This plan includes a provision for the Company to match a portion of employee
contributions. Total retirement program expense under this plan was $6.0 million, $4.5 million and $4.0 million for the
years ended September 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000 respectively.

In addition, the Company maintains a supplemental retirement plan for certain Company executives which
provides for predetermined annual payments to these executives after the attainment of age 62, if still employed by the
Company at that time. These payments generally continue for the remainder of the executive’s life (see Note 10).

7. Earnings per share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share (in thousands, except per share data):

Year ended September 30,

2002 2001 2000
Numerator:
Nuimerator for basic earnings
per share - net income $246,436  $194,978  $167,667
Effect of convertible debt 5419 5,346 655
Numerator for diluted
earnings per share $251,855  $200,324 168,322
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings
per share-weighted average shares 241,298 244 425 241,946
Effect of dilutive securities:
Employee stock options 4,894 5,477 3,550
Convertible debt 14.449 14,449 1.781
Denominator for diluted
earnings per share 260,641 264,351 247,277
Basic earnings per share $ 102 § 8 8 69
Diluted earnings per share § 97 § 76 3 68

Outstanding options to purchase 2.8 million, 1.2 million, and 1.4 million shares of the Company’s common stock
were not included in the computation of earnings per share for the years ended September 30, 2002, 2001, and 2000,
respectively, because the options’ exercise prices were greater than the average market price of the Company’s common
stock.

45




HEALTH MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

8. Stockholders' equity

The Company has elected to follow Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees (“APB 25"). Under APB 25, since the exercise price of the Company's employee stock options equals the
market price of the underlying stock on the date of grant, no compensation expense is recognized. Pro forma disclosure of
alternative fair value accounting is then required under SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, utilizing

an option valuation model.

The Company has a 1991 Stock Option Plan, a 1993 Stock Option Plan and a 1996 Executive Incentive
Compensation Plan for the granting of options to key employees of the Company. All options granted have 10 year terms

and vest and become fully exercisable at the end of either 3 or 4 years of continued employment.

Pertinent information covering the plans is summarized below:

Price
Shares Range
(in thousands)

Balance at September 30, 1999 20,238 $1.24 -$21.63
Granted 3,807 12.13 - 14.69
Exercised (1,809) 1.24 - 13.00
Terminated (403) 1033 - 21.63

Balance at September 30, 2000 21,833 1.24 - 21.63
Granted 2,804 16.60 - 21.25
Exercised (2,553) 1.24 - 13.00
Terminated (1.506) 12.13 - 21.63

Balance at September 30, 2001 20,578 2.07 - 21.63
Granted 1,808 19.10 - 19.95
Exercised (2,847) 2.07 - 19.63
Terminated (320) 8.25 - 21.63

Balance at September 30, 2002 19,219 $2.07 - $21.63

Exercisable at
September 30, 2002 14,073

Weighted
Average Price

$10.30
12.14
5.97
16.14

10.87
16.62

9.99
13.38

11.59
19.93

441
18.17

$13.33

The following table summarizes information concerning currently outstanding and exercisable options:

Options Outstanding, Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Range of Remaining Average Average
Exercise Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise
Prices Outstanding Life Price Exercisable Price
$ 207-% 833 2,419,000 2.8 $5.24 2,366,000 $5.18
$10.33-%13.00 11,298,000 5.7 $12.47 10,010,000 $12.49
$14.50 - $21.63 5,502,000 8.4 $18.66 1,697,000 $19.76
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Stockholders' equity (continued)

Pro forma information regarding net income and earnings per share is required by SFAS No.123, which also
tequires that the information be determined as if the Company has accounted for its employee stock options granted
subsequent to December 31, 1995 under the fair value method of SFAS No.123. The fair value for these options was
estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted-average
assumptions for 2002, 2001 and 2000: risk-free interest rate of 4.60%, 5.51%, and 6.56%; no dividend yields; volatility
factor of the expected market price of the Company's common stock of .536, .489 and .486; and weighted average expected
lives of the options of 5, 7 and 7 years.

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options
which have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require the input of
highly subjective assumptions including the expected stock price volatility. Because the Company's employee stock
options have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, and because changes in the subjective input
assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in management's opinion, the existing models do not necessarily
provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of its employee stock options.

For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options is amortized to expense over the
options' vesting period. The Company's pro forma information follows (in thousands, except per share data):

2002 2001 2000
Pro forma net income $235,261 $184,537 $156,702
Pro forma earnings per share:
Basic $ .97 by 75 5 .65
Diluted $ 93 $ 72 $ .64

At September 30, 2002, there were approximately 13.1 million shares of common stock reserved for future
issuance under the plans. In addition, the Company has granted options for shares of Class A Common Stock to seven non-
employee directors. At September 30, 2002, there were approximately 196,000 options outstanding at $4.49 to $21.63 per
share, expiring in 2004 through 2012.

The Company also has a Stock Incentive Plan for corporate officers and management staff. This plan provides for
the awarding of additional compensation to key personnel in the form of Company stock. The stock will be issued to the
grantee four years after the date of grant, provided the individual is still an employee of the Company. At September 30,
2002, there were approximately 450,000 shares reserved under the plan, for which the Company has recorded $2.9 million,
$2.0 million and $1.5 million of compensation expense for the years ended September 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively.

In September 1999, the Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program of up to 25 million shares of
common stock. On October 14, 1999 the Company executed a share repurchase agreement with an independent third party,
whereby the third party agreed to “sell short” 5 million shares of the Company’s common stock to the Company. As of
October 19, 1999 the 5 million shares were delivered to the Company and became treasury stock. From October 15, 1999
to December 15, 1999, a period of 60 days, the third party covered the “short sale” by buying shares on the open market.
On December 15, 1999 the Company reimbursed the third party $42,399,000, which represented the cost of the common
stack purchased plus a commission plus interest (at LIBOR) on the outstanding balance of funds used to purchase the
common stock.

In September 2001, the Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program to repurchase up to 5,000,000
shares of the Company’s common stock. On January 29, 2002, the Company announced that it had completed the stock
repurchase program by purchasing a total of 5,000,000 shares of its common stock at an average purchase price of $19.29
per share.

In February 2002, the Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program to repurchase up to 5,000,000
shares of the Company’s common stock. On August 8, 2002, the Company announced that it had completed the stock
repurchase program by purchasing a total of 5,000,000 shares at an average purchase price of $18.54 per share.

At September 30, 2002 and 2001, there were approximately 14.5 million shares of common stock reserved for
future issuance upon the conversion of the Company’s Debentures. At September 30, 2002, there were approximately 10.6
million shares of common stock reserved for future issuance upon the conversion of the Company’s Notes.
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9.  Professional liability risks

Through September 30, 2002, the Company insured for its professional liability risks under a “claims-made” basis
policy, whereby each claim is covered up to $1 million per occurrence, subject to a $100,000 deductible {with an annual
deductible cap of $6.1 million). Liabilities in excess of these amounts are covered through a combination of limits
provided by commercial insurance companies and a self-insurance program.

Accruals for self-insured professional liability risks are determined using asserted and unasserted claims identified
by the Company’s incident reporting system and actuarially determined estimates based on Company and industry
historical loss payment patterns and have been discounted to their present value using a discount rate of 6.0%. Although
the ultimate settlement of these accruals may vary from these estimates, management believes that the amounts provided in
the Company’s consolidated financial statements are adequate. If actual payments of claims exceed projected estimates of
claims, the Company’s insurance accruals could be materially adversely affected.

Effective October 1, 2002, in response to difficulty in obtaining primary insurance from commercial companies at
reasonable rates, the Company formed a wholly owned insurance subsidiary in order to self-insure a greater portion of its
primary professional and general liability risk. The captive subsidiary reinsures risk up to $1 million per claim and $3
million in the aggregate per hospital, and further acts as an excess insurer for all hospitals in combination with three
commercial insurance companies.

10. Non-cash charge

The non-cash charge for retirement benefits and write down of assets held for sale in 2001 represents (1) the
present value of the future costs of retirement benefits granted to the Company’s chairman pursuant to an employment
agreement which became effective January 2, 2001, and (2) the write down of two hospital assets held for sale in
conjunction with their respective replacement.

11. Commitments

The Company has a number of hospital renovation/expansion projects underway at September 30, 2002. None of
these projects are individually significant nor do they represent a significant commitment in total at September 30, 2002. In
addition, the Company plans to replace three of its existing hospitals and build one new hospital over the next four years.
Regulatory approval to begin construction on one replacement facility has been granted while the remaining planned
projects are awaiting regulatory approval by the appropriate agencies. Included in these planned projects is the Company’s
obligation to construct a new facility at its Carlisle, Pennsylvania location.

12. Subsequent events
On October 29, 2002, the Company initiated a quarterly cash dividend policy and declared its first cash dividend

of $0.02 per share of the Company’s common stock payable on December 2, 2002 to stockholders of record at the close of
business on November 8, 2002.
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13. Quarterly data (unaudited)

2002

Net patient

SErVICE TEVENUE..........ovvinren

Income before income

TAXES. i,
Net INCOME...viivirieriiirninns

Net income per share:

Basic.....ocoo.coviiiinl.
Diluted..............oon0.

Weighted average
number of shares:

BasiC...cooieneviiinn
Diluted....................

2001

Net patient

SCIVICE TEVENUE......ev'vvennn.ns

Income before income

LAXES . teeenreiiiee e rir e raees
NetINCOME...oovvviei i,

Net income per share:

BasiC.occoieivriiiininnn
Diluted......................

Weighted average
number of shares:

Basic..oooee oo
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Years ended September 30, 2002 and 2001

(in thousands, except per share data)

Quarter
Ist 2nd 3rd 4th Total

$495,821 $579,948 $592,476 $594,356 $2,262,601
83,072 113,965 109,665 98,960 405,662
50,466 69,236 66,616 60,118 246,436

$ 21 $ .29 $ 28 $ 25 $ 1.02
$ 20 3 27 $ 26 S 24 $ 97
243,649 241,259 241,227 239,052 241,298
263,365 260,661 260,821 257,740 260,641
$434,237 $481,144 $473,203 $491,217 $1,879,801
66,122 80,265 89,156 85,408 320,951
40,178 48,740 54,138 51,922 194,978

$ 17 $ 20 $ 22 $ 21 S .80
$ .16 S 19 $ 21 $ 20 $ .76
243,234 244,117 245,048 245,297 244,425
264,297 263,100 264,305 265,568 264,351
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

PART III
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information required by this Item 10 is (i) incorporated herein by reference to the Company's proxy statement
to be issued in connection with the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Company to be held on February 18, 2003 under
"Election of Directors,” which proxy statement will be filed within 120 days after the end of Fiscal 2002 and (ii) set forth
under "Executive Officers of the Registrant” in Part I, Item 4 of this form 10-K.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item 11 is incorporated herein by reference to the Company's proxy statement to
be issued in connection with the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders of the Company to be held on February 18, 2003
under "Executive Compensation," which proxy statement will be filed within 120 days after the end of Fiscal 2002.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The information required by this Item 12 is incorporated herein by reference to the Company's proxy statement to
be issued in connection with the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Company to be held on February 18, 2003 under
"Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management," which proxy statement will be filed within 120 days
after the end of Fiscal 2002.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this Item 13 is incorporated herein by reference to the Company's proxy statement to
be issued in connection with the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Company to be held on February 18, 2003 under
"Certain Transactions," which proxy statement will be filed within 120 days after the end of Fiscal 2002.

PART IV
Item 14. Controls and Procedures

(a) Explanation Of Disclosure Controls And Procedures. The Company's President and Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer) and Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (principal financial officer),
after evaluating the effectiveness of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Securities
Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(c) and 15d-14(c)) as of a date within 90 days of the filing date of this Form 10-K (the
"Evaluation Date"), have concluded that as of the Evaluation Date the Company's disclosure controls and
procedures were adequate and effective to ensure that material information relating to the Company would be
made known to such officers by others within the Company, particularly during the period in which this Form 10-
K was being prepared.

(b) Changes In Internal Controls. There were no significant changes in the Company's internal controls or in other
factors that could significantly affect the Company's disclosure controls and procedures subsequent to the
Evaluation Date, nor were there any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in such disclosure controls
and procedures requiring corrective action. As a result, no corrective action was taken.
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Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedule, and Reports on Form 8-K

[tem 15(a)(1), 15(a)(2) and 15(d):

The Company has filed its consolidated financial statements in Part 11, Item § of this form 10-K. In addition, the
following financial statement schedule is filed as part of this form 10-K at page 51 hereof:

Schedule II - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
All other schedules are omitted since the required information is not present or is not present in amounts sufficient
to require submission of the schedule, or because the information required is included in the consolidated financial

statements and notes thereto.

Item 15(a)(3) and 15(c): See Index to Exhibits.

Item 15(b):
Reports on Form 8-K:

Form 8-K - Reporting Date August 13, 2002
Item Reported — Item 9. Regulation FD Disclosure

HEALTH MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATES, INC.
SCHEDULE 11 - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
(in thousands)

Balance at Acquisitions Charged Balancc at
Beginning of and Charges to to other End of
Pcriod Dispositions Operations(a) Accounts Deductions(b)  __Period _
Year cnded Scptember 30, 2000
Allowance for doubtful
ACCOUNtS....oevenne S114.792 s - §169,712 S - (8165.902) S118.602
Yecar ended Scptember 30, 2001
Allowance for doubtful
ACCOUMS...onrverocrirnne $118.,602 $5482 $154,114 S - (5161.413) S116,785
Year ended September 30, 2002
Allowance for doubtful
ACCOUNIS...ovrrer.e... . $116,785 533,143 179,347 § - (5190,659) 8138616
(a) Charges to operations include amounts related to provisions for doubtful accounts, before
recoveries.
(b) Includes amounts written-off as uncollectible.
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant

SIGNATURES

has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

HEALTH MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATES, INC.

By _/s/Joseph V. Vumbacco

Joseph V. Vumbacco

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by

President and Chief
Executive Officer

December 4, 2002

the following persons on behalf of the Registrant in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

/s/ William J. Schoen

William J. Schoen

/s/ Joseph V. Vumbacco

Joseph V. Vumbacco

/s/ Robert E. Farnham
Robert E. Farmham

/s/ Kent P. Dauten
Kent P. Dauten

/s/ Robert A. Knox
Robert A. Knox

/s/ Kenneth D. Lewis
Kenneth D. Lewis

/s/ William E. Mayberry
William E. Mayberry, M.D.

/s/ Randolph W. Westerfield

Randolph W. Westerfield, Ph.D.

/s/ Donald E. Kiernan
Donald E. Kiernan

Chairman of the Board
of Directors

President, Chief Executive Officer,
and Director (Principal
Executive Officer)

Senior Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer
and Principal Accounting Officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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December 4, 2002

December 4, 2002

December 4, 2002

December 4, 2002

December 4, 2002

December 4, 2002



Certification of Principal Executive Officer

[, Joseph V. Vumbacco, certify that:
1. Thave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Health Management Associates, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared,

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for
the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether there were
significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent
to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses.

Date: December 4, 2002 /s/ Joseph V. Vumbacco
Joseph V. Vumbacco,
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Certification of Principal Financial Officer

1, Robert E. Farnham, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Health Management Associates, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such-
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3, Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for
the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and 1 have indicated in this annual report whether there were
significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent
to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses.

Date: December 4, 2002 /s/ Robert E. Farnham
Robert E. Farnham,
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Plan of acquisition, reorganization, arrangement, liquidation or succession

Not applicable.

)

(i)

Articles of Incorporation

Fifth Restated Certificate of Incorporation. (Exhibit 3.1)

Certificate of Amendment to Fifth Restated Certificate of Incorporation. (Exhibit 3.2)
By-laws

By-laws, as amended. (Exhibit 3.3)

Instruments defining rights of security holders, including indentures

The Exhibits referenced under (3) of this Index to Exhibits are incorporated herein by reference.
Specimen Stock Certificate. (Exhibit 4.11)

Credit Agreement by and among Health Management Associates, Inc., as Borrower, Bank of
America, N.A., as Administrative Agent and as Lender, First Union National Bank, as Syndication
Agent and as Lender, and the Chase Manhattan Bank, as Syndication Agent and as Lender, and
The Lenders Party Thereto From Time To Time, dated November 30, 1999. (Exhibit 4.5)

Credit Agreement dated March 23, 2000 between First Union National Bank and Health
Management Associates, Inc. pertaining to a $15 million working capital and cash management
line of credit. (Exhibit 4.1)

Indenture dated as of August 16, 2000 between Health Management Associates, Inc. and First
Union National Bank, as Trustee, pertaining to the $488.7 million face value of Convertible Senior
Subordinated Debentures due 2020 (includes form of Convertible Senior Subordinated Debenture
due 2020). (Exhibit 4.1(1))

Indenture dated as of January 28, 2002, by and between Health Management Associates, Inc. and
First Union National Bank, as Trustee, pertaining to the $330.0 million face value of Zero-Coupon
Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes due 2022 (includes form of Zero-Coupon Convertible
Senior Subordinated Note due 2022). (Exhibit 4(a))

Voting Trust Agreement

Not applicable.
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10.69
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10.9®

10.10®

10.11®

10,129

10.139
10.149

10.15®

10.169

10.179

10.189

Material Contracts

The Exhibits referenced under (4) of this Index to Exhibits are incorporated herein by reference.

First Amended and Restated Lease Agreement, dated as of January 1, 1995 between The Board of
Commissioners of the Highlands County Hospital District and Sebring Hospital Management
Associates, Inc. (Exhibit 10.1)

Lease dated as of July 1, 1986 between Fishermen's Hospital, Inc. and Marathon HM.A., Inc.
(Exhibit 28.1)

First Amendment of the July 1, 1986 Lease Agreement by and between Fishermen's Hospital, Inc.
and Marathon HM.A | Inc. dated December 18, 1991. (Exhibit 28.1)

Lease Agreement dated January 12, 1990 between Biloxi Regional Medical Center, Inc. and
Biloxi H.M.A., Inc. (Exhibit 10.54)

Lease Agreement between Heart of Florida Hospital Association, Inc., Haines City HMA, Inc. and
the Company, dated April 30, 1993. (Exhibit 10.49)

Health Management Associates, Inc. Stock Incentive Plan for Corporate Officers and Management
Staff. (Exhibit 10.56)

Amendment No. 1 to the Health Management Associates, Inc. Stock Incentive Plan for Corporate
Officers and Management Staff. (Exhibit 10.2)

Health Management Associates, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, dated July 12,
1990. (Exhibit 10.22)

First Amendment to the Health Management Associates, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement
Plan, dated January 1, 1994. (Exhibit 10.51)

Registration Agreement dated September 2, 1988 between HMA Holding Corp., First Chicago
Investment Corporation, Madison Dearborn Partners IV, Prudential Venture Partners, Prudential
Venture Partners I, William J. Schoen, Kelly E. Curry, Stephen M. Ray, Robb L. Smith, George
A. Taylor and Earl P, Holland. (Exhibit 10.23)

Health Management Associates, Inc. 1991 Non-Statutory Stock Option Plan. (Exhibit 10.67)

Amendment No. 1 and Amendment No. 2 to the Health Management Associates, Inc. 1991 Non-
Statutory Stock Option Plan. (Exhibit 10.44)

Health Management Associates, Inc. 1993 Non-Statutory Stock Option Plan. (Exhibit 10.45)
Health Management Associates, Inc. Stock Option Plan for Outside Directors. (Exhibit 10.5)

Stock Option Agreement dated May 17, 1994, between the Company and Kenneth D. Lewis.
(Exhibit 10.53)

Amendment No. S to the Health Management Associates, Inc. 1991 Non-Statutory Stock Option
Plan. (Exhibit 10.57)

Amendment No. 3 to the Health Management Associates, Inc. 1993 Non-Statutory Stock Option
Plan. (Exhibit 10.58)

Amendment No. 1 to the Health Management Associates, Inc. Stock Option Plan for Outside
Directors. (Exhibit 10.59)
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10.30Y

1031©
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10.34W
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Lease Agreement dated as of December 28, 1995 among Coahoma County, Mississippi,
Clarksdale HMA, Inc. and the Company. (Exhibit 10.1)

Lease Agreement dated May 21, 1996 among Midwest City Memorial Hospital Authority, an
Oklahoma Public Trust, and Midwest City HMA, Inc. and Health Management Associates, Inc.
(Exhibit 2.1)

Amendment No. 6 to the Health Management Associates, Inc. 1991 Non-Statutory Stock Option
Plan. (Exhibit 10.2)

Amendment No. 7 to the Health Management Associates, Inc. 1991 Non-Statutory Stock Option
Plan. (Exhibit 10.3)

Amendment No. 4 to the Health Management Associates, Inc. 1993 Non-Statutory Stock Option
Plan. (Exhibit 10.4)

Amendment No. 5 to the Health Management Associates, Inc. 1993 Non-Statutory Stock Option
Plan. (Exhibit 10.5) :

Health Management Associates, Inc. 1996 Executive Incentive Compensation Plan.
(Exhibit 99.15)

Amendment No.1 to the Health Management Associates, Inc. 1996 Executive Incentive
Compensation Plan. (Exhibit 10.1)

Second Amendment to the Health Management Associates, Inc. Supplemental Executive
Retirement Plan, dated September 17, 1996. (Exhibit 10.64)

Hospital Management Agreement by and between Anniston HMA, Inc. and the Trust created
under the last will and testament of Susie P. Stringfellow, entered into on January 24, 1997.
(Exhibit 10.1)

Lease Agreement made as of June 1, 1998 between Hernando County, Florida and Hernando
HMA, Inc. (Exhibit 10.2)

Amendment No. 5 to the Health Management Associates, Inc. 1996 Executive Incentive
Compensation Plan. (Exhibit 10.1)

Amendment No. 6 to the Health Management Associates, Inc. 1996 Executive Incentive
Compensation Plan. (Exhibit 10.2)

Amendment No. 10 to the Health Management Associates, Inc. 1991 Non-Statutory Stock Option
Plan. (Exhibit 10.37)

Amendment No. 8 to the Health Management Associates, Inc. 1993 Non-Statutory Stock Option
Plan. (Exhibit 10.38)

Amendment to Stock Option Agreements between Health Management Associates, Inc. and
William J. Schoen dated as of December 5, 2000. (Exhibit 10.39)

Third Amendment to the Health Management Associates, Inc. Supplemental Retirement Plan.
(Exhibit 10.40)

Employment Agreement for William J. Schoen made as of January 2, 2001. (Exhibit 99.2)
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10.38

an
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(13)

(16)

(18)
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211

(22)

(23)

231

(24)

99)

Amendment No. 8 to the Health Management Associates, Inc. Stock Option Plan for Outside

Directors. (Exhibit 10.1)

Amendment No. 9 to the Health Management Associates, Inc. Stock Option Plan for Outside

Directors is filed as part of this Report as Exhibit 10.38.

Statement re computation of per share earnings
Not applicable.

Statements re computation of ratios

Not applicable.

Annual report to security holders, Form 10-Q or quarterly report to security holders
Not applicable.

Letter re change in certifying accountant

Not applicable.

Letter re change in accounting principles

Not applicable.

Subsidiaries of the registrant

Subsidiaries of the Registrant are listed on Exhibit 21.1.

Published report regarding matters submitted to vote of security holders
None.

Consents of experts and counsel

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP is filed as part of this Report as Exhibit 23.1.
Power of Attorney

Not applicable.

Additional Exhibits

99.1 Principal Executive Officer Certification pursuant to Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the

United States Code.

99.2 Principal Financial Officer Certification pursuant to Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the

United States Code.
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(a)

(b)

(d)

(e)

®

(8)

(h)

0

(k)

M

(m)

(n)

Exhibit previously filed as part of and is incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 33-36406). The exhibit number contained in parenthesis refers to
the exhibit number in such Registration Statement.

Exhibit previously filed as part of and is incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 33-43193). The exhibit number contained in parenthesis refers to
the exhibit number in such Registration Statement.

Exhibit previously filed as part of and is incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Current Report
on Form 8-K dated July 1, 1986 (SEC File No. 1-9182). The exhibit number contained in parenthesis
refers to the exhibit number in such Form §-K.

Exhibit previously filed as part of and is incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1991 (SEC File No. 000-18799). The exhibit number
contained in parenthesis refers to the exhibit number in such Form 10-Q.

Exhibit previously filed as part of and is incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 1991 (SEC File No. 000-18799). The exhibit
number contained in parenthesis refers to the exhibit number in such Form 10-Q.

Exhibit previously filed as part of and is incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1992 (SEC File No. 000-18799). The exhibit
number contained in parenthesis refers to the exhibit number in such Form 10-K.

Exhibit previously filed as part of and is incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1993 (SEC File No. 000-18799). The exhibit
number contained in parenthesis refers to the exhibit number in such Form 10-K.

Exhibit previously filed as part of and is incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1994 (SEC File No. 000-18799). The exhibit
number contained in parenthesis refers to the exhibit number in such Form 10-K.

Exhibit previously filed as part of and is incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1995 (SEC File No. 000-18799). The exhibit
number contained in parenthesis refers to the exhibit number in such Form 10-Q.

Exhibit previously filed as part of and is incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1995 (SEC File No. 000-18799). The exhibit
number contained in parenthesis refers to the exhibit number in such Form 10-K.

Exhibit previously filed as part of and is incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Registration
Statement on Form S-8 (Registration No. 33-80433). The exhibit number contained in parenthesis refers to
the exhibit number in such Registration Statement.

Exhibit previously filed as part of and is incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 1995 (SEC File No. 000-18799). The exhibit
number contained in parenthesis refers to the exhibit number in such Form 10-Q.

Exhibit previously filed as part of and is incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1996. The exhibit number contained in parenthesis
refers to the exhibit number in such Form 10-Q.

Exhibit previously filed as part of and is incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Current Report

on Form 8-K dated June 10, 1996. The exhibit number contained in parenthesis refers to the exhibit
number in such Form 8-K.

59




(0)

(P

@

®

(s)

(W)

)

(W)

(%)

§%)

(@

Exhibit previously filed as part of and is incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1996. The exhibit number contained in parenthesis
refers to the exhibit number in such Form 10-K.

Exhibit previously filed as part of and is incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 1996. The exhibit number contained in
parenthesis refers to the exhibit number in such Form 10-Q.

Exhibit previously filed as part of and is incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1998. The exhibit number contained in parenthesis
refers to the exhibit number in such Form 10-Q.

Exhibit previously filed as part of and is incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1999. The exhibit number contained in parenthesis
refers to the exhibit number in such Form 10-K.

Exhibit previously filed as part of and is incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter year ended March 31, 2000. The exhibit number contained in
parenthesis refers to the exhibit number in such Form 10-Q.

Exhibit previously filed as part of and is incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter year ended June 30, 2000. The exhibit number contained in
parenthesis refers to the exhibit number in such Form 10-Q.

Exhibit previously filed as part of and is incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2000. The exhibit number contained in parenthesis
refers to the exhibit number in such Form 10-K.

Exhibit previously filed as part of and is incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-8 (Registration No. 333-53602) filed on January 12, 2001. The exhibit contained in
parenthesis refers to the exhibit number in such Registration statement.

Exhibit previously filed as part of and is incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2000. The exhibit number contained in parenthesis
refers to the exhibit number in such Form 10-Q.

Exhibit previously filed as part of and is incorporated by reference herein by reference to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-3 (Registration No. 333-48820) filed on October 27, 2000. The exhibit
number contained in parenthesis refers to the exhibit number in such Registration Statement.

Exhibit previously filed as part of and is incorporated by reference herein by reference to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 13, 2002, The exhibit number contained in parenthesis refers
to the exhibit number in such Form 8-X.

Exhibit previously filed as part of and is incorporated by reference herein by reference to the Company’s

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 2001. The exhibit number contained
in parenthesis refers to the exhibit number in such Form 10-Q.
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